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“Trinity Oaks”
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In accordance with Chapter 58, Article 64-20(b) of the North Carolina
General Statutes of the State of North Carolina, the delivery of a disclosure
statement to a contracting party before the execution of a contract for the
provision of continuing care is required by NCGS 58-64.

*This Disclosure Statement may be delivered until revised, but not after
July 29, 2020.

*This Disclosure Statement has not been reviewed or approved by any
government agency or representative to ensure the accuracy or
completeness of the information set out.
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DISCLOSURE STATEMENT
LUTHERAN RETIREMENT CENTER - SALISBURY, INC.

Provider

(@) Name of Provider. The Provider is:
Lutheran Retirement Center - Salisbury, Inc.
doing business as “Trinity Oaks,” a
North Carolina nonprofit corporation
728 Klumac Road
Salisbury, North Carolina 28144

(Lutheran Services for the Aging (LSA) recently naatded its name to Lutheran
Services Carolinas (LSC))

Officers and Directors. The names and businesgeasgés of officers and directors of the

Provider are:

Chair of the Board and Director:
Mr. Eric Hoyle
496 Stonegate Lane
Winston Salem, NC 27104

Vice Chair of the Board and
Director
Mrs. Betty Lohr
1232 Quiet Cove Lane
Hickory, NC 28601

President and Director
(President of Lutheran Retirement
Center — Salisbury dba Trinity Oaks)
Mr. Ted W. Goins, Jr.
P.O. Box 947
Salisbury, NC 28145-0947

Director
Mrs. Carolyn Hood
422 Spyglass Hill Place
Salisbury, NC 28144

Experience and Relationships

Secretary:
(Corporate Secretary of Lutheran
Retirement Center — Salisbury dba
Trinity Oaks)
Mrs. Karen K. Maddry
P. O. Box 947
Salisbury, NC 28145-0947

Treasurer
(Treasurer of Lutheran Retirement
Center — Salisbury dba Trinity Oaks)
Mr. Kirby Nickerson
PO Box 947
Salisbury, NC 28145-0947

Director (Resident Representative)
Mrs. Kate Noujaim
728 Klumac Road, Apt. 242C
Salisbury, NC 28144

€)) Experience in Similar Facilities. The followingdiriduals have had experience in
the operations management of similar facilities:

Ted Goins, Jr.
Bill Johnson

Kirby Nickerson



Ted W. Goins, Jr., President and CEO, Lutherani&=s\Carolinas (LSC) — Prior
to being named President in 2000, Mr. Goins wasleyegd by LSC for over 10
years as administrator of Trinity Village nursingnie in Hickory, N. C. He also
previously served for three years in administraiod development, and has spent
his entire career in the long-term care professidn. Goins received his AB from
Lenoir-Rhyne College (now University), and earned MS from Pfeiffer
University. He is a certified nursing assistantd dicensed nursing home
administrator. Mr. Goins is active in a number lotal, state, and national
organizations, including serving on the North Ciaa@lMedical Care Advisory
Committee, the Board of the North Carolina HealéneOFacilities Association, the
Board of Lutheran Immigration and Refugee Serviees, as Chair of the Rowan
County Chamber of Commerce. He previously servethe Lutheran Services in
America Board, including two years as Chair, arsb aerved two terms on the
North Carolina Study Commission on Aging. He wapanted to the North
Carolina State Board of Examiners for Nursing Ho&deninistrators and went on
to serve for seven years, four of those as Chagnoir-Rhyne University honored
Mr. Goins received the Distinguished Alumnus Award2012 and an honorary
doctorate in humane letters in 2018.

Kirby D. Nickerson, Chief Financial Officer/Treasuy Lutheran Services
Carolinas (LSC) - Mr. Nickerson joined LSC as CFf@dsurer in June 2012 after
stints in similar roles in senior living organizais beginning in 1995 in Florida,
North Carolina and Virginia; he has held a nurdioghe administrator’s license
since 2008. He has served on various boards @ftdirs including The Pines at
Whiting (NJ CCRC), Shared Services (southeast nagjigroup purchasing
organization) and Virginia Senior Care Group (irswe collaboration of CCRCs
in VA). Mr. Nickerson received undergraduate degrig|om Gordon College and
an MBA from Florida State University; he is an g&etchurch member and also
served on the board of directors of a local meoniméless shelter in Winchester,
VA.

William M. “Bill” Johnson, Executive Director, Trity Oaks—Mr. Johnson
joined LSC in August 2006 as administrator of tkesmg and rehab component
of Trinity Oaks and was named Executive Directothaf campus in 2013. Mr.
Johnson has a BA from Urbana University and haa bd&ensed nursing home
administrator for over thirty years.

(b) Relationship to Organization Providing Serviceie Dnly officers and directors
that have a 10% or greater interest in any orgénizaor which any organization
has in the officers and directors, that currentlysoexpected to provide $500 or
more of goods, leases or services to the facilityp aesidents of the facility, are as
follows:

Ted W. Goins, Jr. is President and Chief Execu@ifcer, Kirby Nickerson is
Treasurer and Chief Financial Officer, and KarerM&ddry is Secretary of LSC,
which provides financial and management servicdgitoty Oaks.



(c) Proceedings and Orders. No member of the Manage&taff nor the Board of
Directors (i) has been convicted of a felony oapled nolo contendere to a felony
charge, or been held liable or enjoined in a agilion by final judgment, if the
felony or civil action involved fraud, embezzlemeftaudulent conversion, or
misappropriation of property; or (ii) is subjecta@urrently effective injunctive or
restrictive court order, or within the past fiveayg, had any State or federal license
or permit suspended or revoked as a result of aonalsrought by a governmental
agency or department, if the order or action amseof or related to business
activity of health care, including actions affectia license to operate a foster care
facility, nursing home, retirement home, home fged, or facility subject to this
Article or a similar law in another state. [NCGS&820(a)(3)(c)].

Religious Affiliation. Trinity Oaks is a nonstodkorth Carolina corporation sponsored
by Lutheran Services Carolinas (LSC), a not-forfipsocial ministry agency affiliated
with the North Carolina Synod of the Evangelicatheran Church in America, and is a
501(c)(3) tax-exempt facility under the InternaMBeue Code. In 2004, LSA created a
management company, LSA Management, Inc., to peomdnagement services. LSA
Management, Inc., is an affiliate organization &A_and is a 501(c)(3) tax-exempt
company under the Internal Revenue Code. LSAnwillbe responsible for the contractual
obligations of Trinity Oaks. Through private cohttions, Trinity Oaks expects to have,
from time to time, funds to assist Residents unabiaeet the full cost of the monthly fees,
but it cannot contract in advance for such assistafLSA recently rebranded as Lutheran
Services Carolinas (LSC).

Location and Description of Facility. Trinity Oalssconstructed on a site of approximately
50 acres. The site is located in the city of Balrg, North Carolina on Klumac Road,
north of Jake Alexander Boulevard, adjacent toifyi@aks health and rehab. This health
care facility consists of 115 nursing beds withd3hose being a secured Alzheimer’s
unit, 12 assisted living beds with 11 of the assidiving beds located in the secured
Alzheimer’s unit, and 12 independent living apamiseTrinity Oaks consists of a three-
story building containing 125 independent livingidential units and 38 assisted living
units. There are 42 cottage residential units. ritreing care and assisted living units meet
all terms and conditions of the North Carolina Dépant of Human Resources for the
licensing of such units. The total resident popatabeing served on the date of this
Disclosure Statement was 377. Construction ofdbegregate center was started in
October 1991 and completed in January 1993. Thktyebecame operational on January
12, 1993 upon admission of its first resident. §arction of the cottages began in 1997
and was completed in fall 2004. An Alzheimer’siliacwas added to the nursing facility
in the fall of 2007. In the fall of 2008, TrinitYaks added new common, dining, and
wellness areas to the community’s main buildingn&auction on a new assisted living
wing was completed in the summer of 2018.

Admissions Policies and Procedures. Upon execufahe Residency Agreement and
fulfillment of his/her obligations hereunder, theddent will be qualified for admission as
an occupant of Trinity Oaks subject to the terms @anditions of this Section 6:




(@)

(b)

()

(d)

(€)

(f)

(¢))

Non-Discrimination. Requirements for admission torinify Oaks are
nondiscriminatory except as to age. Admissioresgricted to persons sixty (60)
years of age or older. Trinity Oaks is open toaeyregardless of race, color,
religion, sex, handicap, familial status, or nasiborigin.

Reservation Agreement. Upon selection of an agartror cottage for personal
occupancy, Resident will execute a Reservation &gent. Accompanying this
agreement will be a reservation fee of $1,000. Rbservation Deposit will be

applied to the 10% deposit required at the timeinitfal acceptance by the

Admissions Committee and execution of the Residexgngement. At any time

prior to entering the Residency Agreement, Resideny cancel the Reservation
Agreement and the entire $1,000 will be refunded ke processing fee of $500.

The Reservation Agreement is precedent to the BesydAgreement. Resident
agrees to enter the Residency Agreement withinay® af notification of initial
acceptance by the Admissions Committee and payrdh®ining 10% of the
Entrance Fee.

Disclosure Statement. Upon execution of the Redenv Agreement, the
Marketing Representative will provide the Resideantopy of Trinity Oaks'
Disclosure Statement which fully describes the oizgtion, facilities, policies,
services, fees, financial condition, projectiong] #&e vital information related to
Trinity Oaks. Included in the Disclosure Statemisrd Residency Agreement.

Application. Within thirty (30) days of executiaif the Reservation Agreement,
the Resident will submit an Application for Admissj Personal Health History
and a Confidential Financial Statement or othedewce of sufficient financial
means for the review and approval by the Trinitk®©Admissions Committee.

Admissions Committee Review. The Admissions Cotteaiwill review the
completed Application Forms including financialonination as a basis for initial
approval for admission to Trinity Oaks. The Adnoss Committee will accept or
deny the application based on criteria and polies&sblished by the Board of
Directors. The Executive Director will notify tiesident in writing of the action
taken by the Admissions Committee.

Residency Agreement. The Resident shall execet®#sidency Agreement and
submit it with a 10% deposit of the Entrance Fem@sthe $1,000 Reservation
Deposit previously paid) within 10 days of notificen of initial acceptance by the
Admissions Committee. At the same time, Residelte notified of

availability of the Apartment or Cottage for occapg.

Health. Each independent living resident must tsafBcient physical and mental
capacities to live independently without posingaager to his/her health or to the
health and safety of other Trinity Oaks residemis staff. We respect the privacy



of the Resident’s personal health information ardcammitted to maintaining the
Resident’s confidentiality. This applies to aliarmation and records related to the
Resident’s health that Trinity Oaks has receivedreated.

(h) Interview. The Resident must have an interviewhvatrepresentative from the
Provider prior to being approved by the Admissi@mnmittee. Upon review of
the information outlined in subsections (b), (M)dde) above, the Provider may
request additional personal interviews with theiéRad.

0] Representations and Warranties. The represamanade in the Application for
Admission, Personal Health History and Confiderfiialancial Statement, or other
statements of financial capability, will be relisdon by Provider as the basis for
the Residency Agreement.

()] Financial Condition. Immediately prior to embgy Trinity Oaks for occupancy, the
Resident will affirm to the Admissions Committeeatier or not his/her personal
financial situation differs materially and adveysd&om the financial situation
presented in the Resident's Confidential Finan@shtement described in
subsection 6(d) of this document. If the Residentirrent personal financial
statement does differ materially and adversely feuoh prior financial situation,
the provider may terminate the Residency Agreement.

(k) Additional Financial Statements. After occupgnihie Executive Director may
require updated financial information. In the caséwo Residents occupying an
Apartment or Cottage and in the event of the deathne of the occupants, the
surviving Resident may be required to submit araetgdf the original application
and provide a new Confidential Financial Statement.

() Rules and Regqulations. Upon entering Trinitjk©#or occupancy, the Resident
agrees to abide by the administrative policies@odedures as may be established
by Trinity Oaks for the operation and managemeritrofity Oaks, including such
amendments, modifications or changes in thoseipsleEnd procedures as may be
established by Trinity Oaks from time to time.

7. Residence Related Services and Programs

(a) Residential. As stated in the Residency Agreememnjty Oaks provides to its
Residents the following facilities and serviceseptas plans noted on pagfe

(2) Description of Living Unit. A Living Unit as desbed in the Residency
Agreement.

2 Furnishings. Trinity Oaks will provide all majoitéhen appliances and a
washer and dryer in each unit. All units are egagpwith hardwood floors,
ceramic tile floors and showers, and such furnighiand fixtures as may
be described in the informational brochures publishy Trinity Oaks for

10



(3)

(4)

(5)

(6)

(7)

(8)

(9)

the purpose adlescribing Trinity Oaks. All other Living Unit farshings and
furniture are to be provided by Resident.

Utilities.  Trinity Oaks will furnish individuayl controlled heating, air
conditioning, water, sewer, electricity, gas if bggble, and trash removal.
Resident shall be responsible for and pay foreddighone, internet and cable
television service, including installation and haplkcharges. Cottage residents
shall pay their own gas and electric bills.

Meals All apartment residents and cottagelesds are provided breakfast
each day. Apartment residents are provided orer otleal per day (their
choice of lunch or dinner). Missed meals may beenap in the month that
they are missed (no rollovers month to month). teiiyet residents receive 180
meals per year in addition to daily breakfast.

Housekeeping Services. Trinity Oaks shall furrislusekeeping services to
Apartment Residents every two weeks, which shallighe cleaning all sinks,
tubs, bathroom fixtures, floors, dusting and vacingm Trinity Oaks shall
furnish Cottage Residents housekeeping servicesy eveek, which shall
include cleaning all sinks, tubs, bathroom fixtyrél®ors, dusting and
vacuuming. Additional housekeeping services wallavailable at Resident's
expense.

Laundry. Trinity Oaks shall furnish to Apartmenedtdents regular flat
laundry and bed linen service at such times ag bbadtated on a published
schedule. Cottage Residents are furnished a watlyer and are responsible
for their own laundry.

Maintenance Services. Trinity Oaks will be respblesior the maintenance
and replacement of the property, furnishings andpegent owned or leased
by Trinity Oaks for use at Trinity Oaks occurring @ result of normal wear
and tear. Resident will be responsible for any agento such property,
furnishings and equipment, including the cost giaie or replacement or the
diminution in value thereof, caused by the neglageor intentional acts of
Resident or Resident's guests.

Changes to Living Unit. Any structural or physicalange or redecoration of
any kind within or outside the Living Unit may beade by Resident only with

the prior written consent of the Trinity Oaks Extee Director, and at the sole
expense of Resident. Resident shall also paygpepriate cost necessary to
return the Living Unit to its original condition dithe cost of redecoration. All

such improvements or changes shall be the propéfiyinity Oaks.

Groundskeeping. Trinity Oaks shall maintain angare the grounds
surrounding the Apartments and Cottages and allnomm areas and
grounds, including the lawns, trees, and shrublpeoyided by Trinity

Oaks. Plantings and customization of landscapedsaby Residents are

11



(10)

(11)

(12)

(13)

(14)

(15)

(16)

subject to approval of the Trinity Oaks Executiveelbtor, and are not
maintained by Trinity Oaks staff.

Programs. Trinity Oaks shall provide recreationsgcial, spiritual,
educational and cultural programs and activitiesHe Residents of Trinity
Oaks, subject to additional charges from timertetior some activities.

Parking. Trinity Oaks will furnish parking areas Residents and limited
parking for guests of Residents.

Transportation. Trinity Oaks will provide schediillocal transportation,
including transportation for shopping, medical ¢amed some recreational
activities. Some transportation is subject to toldal charges.

Trash Removal. Apartment Residents shall dispbsash and recyclables
in the designated areas on each Apartment floattage Residents' trash
and recyclables shall be placed in approved comtsito be collected at
curbside according to a printed schedule.

Pets. Pets are permitted per residence upon thmpleton of a Pet
Agreement and payment of a $300 non-refundable fee.

Optional Services. A schedule of fees for servigewided at extra cost
("Optional Services") including, but not limited timose Optional Services
described above, shall be made available to Resmelater than the date
upon which Resident occupies the Living Unit.

Insurance. Trinity Oaks will maintain general ligl insurance but will
not be responsible for the personal property ofideed. Residents are
encouraged to obtain insurance to cover suchiligisil See Section 7(a)(7)
regarding Resident's responsibility for damagertperty owned or leased
by Trinity Oaks.

Except for those services identified in subsectio@g(1) through (16) above as being
items which shall be the expense of Resident, @saii@y the services listed above are
included within the Monthly Maintenance Fee desamlin the Residency Agreement.

(b)

(1)

Health Care

Terms of Transfer or Changes in Level of Care. j&ilio the terms and
conditions set forth in this Agreement, Trinity Gakgrees to arrange for
any needed health care or nursing services throlghAssisted Living
Center or Trinity Oaks health and rehab, subjeeavalability of beds, on
a priority basis. In the event Trinity Oaks headiid rehab has no bed
available, services will be arranged at such ottealth care or nursing
facility of similar quality (“Nursing Center”). Thé&lonthly Maintenance

12



Fee includes a 10% discount on Trinity Oaks heaithrehab (or such other
Nursing Center if space is not first available ainity Oaks health and
rehab) then current private pay rates. If a Residecomes eligible for
Medicaid then the 10% discount does not apply. Rdbkidents at Trinity
Oaks health and rehab are responsible for thempd@y copayments. If a
temporary stay at Trinity Oaks health and rehd®esident will continue to
pay the Monthly Maintenance Fee in the Independ@nhg Unit. If a
permanent transfer to Trinity Oaks health and rette@bResident will cease
paying the Monthly Maintenance Fee when eitherairertment or cottage
has been totally vacated.

In addition, Trinity Oaks will make available, atefldent's additional

expense, the periodic services of other medicdepstonals as it deems
necessary or appropriate. Some of these servidebenprovided at no

additional cost in the form of educational sessionglinics.

Trinity Oaks assisted living uses a level of cagedmination process upon
admission, every six months and after either a itelsgtay or significant
health change to determine which services are efmtecach Resident.
The following levels of care are defined as follows

Independent-This service level provides accommodatineals, minimal
help with ADLs and residents that self administexdmation or minimal
help with medication administration, selected daddal services such as
special dietary planning. Residents in this lareltypically independent.

Enhanced Care Services-This level of care providederate levels of help
with ADLSs to residents that can perform part of #loéivity for him/her, and
several additional services including but not leditto, assistance with
medications, ambulation, bathing, dressing, grogméating, hygiene and
toileting. These residents may require some asgist from Licensed
Health Professional Support as well as confusiomagament and/or
management of diabetes, skin integrity, and/orrfsll interventions.

Enhanced Care Plus Services-This level of careigesva significant
degree of help with ADLs and is geared towardlezgis who can perform
part of the activity and are very frail/impaired will require several
services on a regular basis. These residents etpyre some assistance
from Licensed Health Professional Support as wedl @nfusion
management and/or management of diabetes, skuriiiyteand/or fall risk
interventions.

Maximum Care-This level of care provides assistdagcesidents that need
someone else to complete the task for the residest of the time. These
residents may require extensive assistance witliusmm management
and/or management of diabetes, skin integrity,@rfdll risk interventions.
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8.

(2)

3)

(4)

(5)

(6)

Medical Director. Trinity Oaks assisted living iéimploy as a consultant
to Trinity Oaks a licensed physician (therein reddrto as the "Medical
Director") to assist in establishing and implemegthealth care related
policies and practices at Trinity Oaks assisteth¢jyand to perform such
other duties described in this document or presdriby Trinity Oaks.

Expenses for Resident-related physician servicesha responsibility of
the Resident. Trinity Oaks also will employ licedsgpersonnel to perform
all such duties prescribed by the Medical Direatathin such person's
licensed authority.

Health Care Support Services. Trinity Oaks willkeavailable to the
Resident, or make arrangements for, other heald srvices, including
but not limited to, physical therapy, occupatioti®rapy, rehabilitative
treatments and equipment, ambulance servicesglinmharmacy services,
laboratory tests and other health care relatedcgsras may be determined
by Trinity Oaks. Charges for these health careises will be in addition
to the Monthly Maintenance Fee. At various timfese services will be
available through educational programs and clinics.

Emergency Response System. Trinity Oaks will gteyon a twenty-four
(24) hour basis, an emergency call system. Susporse to a call shall be
limited to an evaluation of the needs of the Resid¢f additional medical
attention is determined necessary, the Residamisigonsible for costs by
such private physician and such other medical papgider as may be
selected by the Resident, including emergency raétliansportation. In
the event that Resident is admitted to the Assilsteédg Center or Trinity
Oaks health and rehab after such emergency respibesiees set forth in
Sections 7 and 9 shall apply.

Designation of Practicing Personal Physician. Resident will be
required to designate a local licensed physicianhi&gher personal
physician. The Resident will be responsible far tost of any personal
services of his/her physician or related servieegiested by the Resident.
The Provider may, after occupancy, require the deegito have other
physical examinations by his/ her personal physiciaanother physician
selected by the Provider at Resident's expense.

Limitations. Health Care accommodations and sesvishall be made
available to Residents of the Living Units on abpty basis, subject to the
terms of this document and to all admissions reguants imposed by
applicable laws and regulatory procedures.

Fees and Other Charges, Admissions, Transfers,ifiation

(@)

Entrance Fee
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For the right to reside at Trinity Oaks for a pdrlonger than one year as long as
all terms and conditions are met, Resident ageepay to Trinity Oaks an Entrance
Fee described below:

Independent Apartment and Cottage Entrance Fee% B@fund Plan: The
Entrance Fee is refundable at a minimum of ninetggnt (90%). The Entrance
Fee is reduced by a one percent (1.0%) at thedfnmatial occupancy and by one
half of one percent (0.5%) per month for the fiesghteen (18) months of
occupancy after which an ninety percent (90%) réfwill be paid to the Resident
or the Resident's estate if the Living Unit is uada The balance of any Entrance
Fees to be reimbursed after termination of the deesiy Agreement will be paid
by Trinity Oaks after the Living Unit is vacateddathe re-occupancy of the
Apartment or Cottage.

Independent Apartment and Cottage Entrance Fee% B@fund Plan: The
Entrance Fee is refundable at a minimum of fiftycpat (50%). The Entrance Fee
is reduced by a two percent (2.0%) at the timendfal occupancy and by one
percent (1.0%) per month for the first forty-eigi8) months of occupancy after
which a fifty percent (50%) refund will be paid tlee Resident or the Resident's
estate if the Living Unit is vacated. The balamteany Entrance Fees to be
reimbursed after termination of the Residency Agreset will be paid by Trinity
Oaks after the Living Unit is vacated and the reupancy of the Apartment or
Cottage.

Independent Apartment and Cottage Entrance Feenitdd Refund Plan: The

Entrance Fee is reduced by a four percent (4%)cgefee at the time of occupancy
and by two percent (2%) per month for the firsttyegight (48) months of

occupancy. The Entrance Fee is non-refundable fafty-eight (48) months.

The balance of any Entrance Fees to be reimbufsadermination of the
Residency Agreement will be paid by Trinity Oakteathe Living Unit is vacated
and reoccupied.

Resident agrees that, subject to the escrow pomssireferred to below,

notwithstanding any right to a reimbursement fboakny portion of the Entrance
Fee as provided in the Residency Agreement, suttaiire Fee, when paid to
Trinity Oaks, shall become part of the funds amapprty of Trinity Oaks, may be

commingled with any other funds received by Trirfigks, and may be used by
Trinity Oaks for any ordinary and necessary purpastated to the operation of
Trinity Oaks, including payment of the principal aamt and any interest with

respect to any loans made to Trinity Oaks. Tridigks reserves the right to run
entrance fee incentive programs during the year.
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Schedule of Apartment Entrance Fees Effective 8/1/1

Limited
INDEPENDENT LIVING Refund 50% Refund 90% Refund
Studio $56,650 $75,705 $135,445
One Bedroom $66,700 $88,840 $159,135
One Bedroom Deluxe $70,040 $93,215 $166,860
Two Bedroom $104,545 $139,565 $249,520
2nd Person $3,865 $5,150 $9,270

Previous Apartment Entrance Fees 8/2/13 -2/29/16

INDEPENDENT LIVING Limited Refund 50% Refund 90% Refund
Studio $55,000 $73,500 $131,500
One Bedroom $64,750 $86,250 $154,500
One Bedroom Deluxe $68,000 $90,500 $162,000
Two Bedroom $101,500 $135,500 $242,250
2nd Person $3,750 $5,000 $9,000

Previous Apartment Fees 1/1/11-8/1/13 (These 80f@rikePlans are no longer available).

Unit Type (80% Refund Plan) 1/1/2011 1/1/2012 131/8/1/13
Studio $77,300 $77,300 $77,300
One Bedroom $90,800 $90,800 $90,800
One Bedroom Deluxe $95,344 $95,344 $95,344
Two Bedroom $142,480 $142,480 $142,480
Unit Type (Limited Refund

Plan) 1/1/2011 1/1/2012 1/1/13 - 8/1/13
Studio $57,975 $57,975 $57,975
One Bedroom $68,100 $68,100 $68,100
One Bedroom Deluxe $71,508 $71,508 $71,508
Two Bedroom $106,860 $106,860 $106,860
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Cottage Entrance Fees Effective 1/1/19

Address Sq. Ft. Limited Refund 50% Refund 90% Refund
114CWD 1453 $99,395 $132,355 $236,900
202LL 1674 $118,193 $153,000 $282,220
408TOD 1677 $118,193 $153,000 $282,220
103CWD 1677 $118,193 $153,000 $282,220
111CWD 1677 $118,193 $153,000 $282,220
303MHD 1677 $118,193 $153,000 $282,220
304MHD 1677 $118,193 $153,000 $282,220
316MHD 1687 $118,193 $153,000 $282,220
314MHD 1699 $118,193 $153,000 $282,220
207LL 1713 $118,193 $153,000 $282,220
205LL 1733 $118,193 $153,000 $282,220
107CWD 1765 $118,193 $153,000 $282,220
305CWD 1821 $132,098 $176,130 $315,180
109CWD 1828 $132,098 $176,130 $315,180
402TOD 1861 $132,098 $176,130 $315,180
404TOD 1861 $132,098 $176,130 $315,180
105CWD 1861 $132,098 $176,130 $315,180
101CWD 1861 $132,098 $176,130 $315,180
118CWD 1861 $132,098 $176,130 $315,180
113CWD 1861 $132,098 $176,130 $315,180
302MHD 1861 $132,098 $176,130 $315,180
312MHD 1903 $132,098 $176,130 $315,180
301MHD 1905 $132,098 $176,130 $315,180
307MHD 1909 $132,098 $176,130 $315,180
208LL 1913 $132,098 $176,130 $315,180
310MHD 1915 $132,098 $176,130 $315,180
116CWD 1916 $132,098 $176,130 $315,180
115CWD 2044 $132,098 $176,130 $315,180
204LL 2077 $132,098 $176,130 $315,180
206LL 2077 $132,098 $176,130 $315,180
311MHD 2089 $132,098 $176,130 $315,180
309MHD 2092 $132,098 $176,130 $315,180
406TOD 2095 $132,098 $176,130 $315,180
104CWD 2250 $173,813 $231,750 $393,975
120CWD 2309 $173,813 $231,750 $393,975
106CWD 2318 $173,813 $231,750 $393,975
306MHD 2318 $173,813 $231,750 $393,975
308MHD 2318 $173,813 $231,750 $393,975
2121LL 2545 $173,813 $231,750 $393,975
102CWD 2589 $173,813 $231,750 $393,975
108CWD 2932 $178,813 $231,750 $393,975
210LL 3049 $173,813 $231,750 $393,975
2nd Person $5,410 $7,210 $12,875
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Cottage Entrance Fees Effective 3/1/16 — 12/31/18

Address Sq. Ft. Limited Refund 50% Refund 90% Refund
114CWD 1453 $99,395 $132,355 $236,900
202LL 1674 $118,193 $153,000 $282,220
408TOD 1677 $118,193 $153,000 $282,220
103CWD 1677 $118,193 $153,000 $282,220
111CWD 1677 $118,193 $153,000 $282,220
303MHD 1677 $118,193 $153,000 $282,220
304MHD 1677 $118,193 $153,000 $282,220
316MHD 1687 $118,193 $153,000 $282,220
310MHD 1699 $118,193 $153,000 $282,220
314MHD 1699 $118,193 $153,000 $282,220
207LL 1713 $118,193 $153,000 $282,220
205LL 1733 $118,193 $153,000 $282,220
107CWD 1765 $118,193 $153,000 $282,220
305CWD 1821 $132,098 $176,130 $315,180
115CWD 1828 $132,098 $176,130 $315,180
109CWD 1828 $132,098 $176,130 $315,180
402TOD 1861 $132,098 $176,130 $315,180
404TOD 1861 $132,098 $176,130 $315,180
406TOD 1861 $132,098 $176,130 $315,180
105CWD 1861 $132,098 $176,130 $315,180
101CWD 1861 $132,098 $176,130 $315,180
118CWD 1861 $132,098 $176,130 $315,180
120CWD 1861 $132,098 $176,130 $315,180
113CWD 1861 $132,098 $176,130 $315,180
204LL 1861 $132,098 $176,130 $315,180
206LL 1861 $132,098 $176,130 $315,180
302MHD 1861 $132,098 $176,130 $315,180
312MHD 1903 $132,098 $176,130 $315,180
301MHD 1905 $132,098 $176,130 $315,180
307MHD 1909 $132,098 $176,130 $315,180
208LL 1913 $132,098 $176,130 $315,180
116CWD 1916 $132,098 $176,130 $315,180
311MHD 2089 $132,098 $176,130 $315,180
309MHD 2092 $132,098 $176,130 $315,180
104CWD 2250 $173,813 $231,750 $393,975
106CWD 2318 $173,813 $231,750 $393,975
306MHD 2318 $173,813 $231,750 $393,975
308MHD 2318 $173,813 $231,750 $393,975
2121LL 2545 $173,813 $231,750 $393,975
102CWD 2589 $173,813 $231,750 $393,975
210LL 2797 $173,813 $231,750 $393,975
108CWD 2860 $173,813 $231,750 $393,975
2nd Person $5,410 $7,210 $12,875
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Previous Cottage Entrance Fees 8/2/13-2/29/16

Address Sq. Ft. Limited Refund 50% Refund 90% Refund
114CWD 1453 $96,500 $128,500 $230,000
202LL 1674 $114,750 $157,590 $274,000
408TOD 1677 $114,750 $157,590 $274,000
103CWD 1677 $114,750 $157,590 $274,000
111CWD 1677 $114,750 $157,590 $274,000
303MHD 1677 $114,750 $157,590 $274,000
304MHD 1677 $114,750 $157,590 $274,000
316MHD 1687 $114,750 $157,590 $274,000
310MHD 1699 $114,750 $157,590 $274,000
314MHD 1699 $114,750 $157,590 $274,000
207LL 1713 $114,750 $157,590 $274,000
205LL 1733 $114,750 $157,590 $274,000
107CWD 1765 $114,750 $157,590 $274,000
305CWD 1821 $128,250 $171,000 $306,000
115CWD 1828 $128,250 $171,000 $306,000
109CWD 1828 $128,250 $171,000 $306,000
402TOD 1861 $128,250 $171,000 $306,000
404TOD 1861 $128,250 $171,000 $306,000
406TOD 1861 $128,250 $171,000 $306,000
105CWD 1861 $128,250 $171,000 $306,000
101CWD 1861 $128,250 $171,000 $306,000
118CWD 1861 $128,250 $171,000 $306,000
120CWD 1861 $128,250 $171,000 $306,000
113CWD 1861 $128,250 $171,000 $306,000
204LL 1861 $128,250 $171,000 $306,000
206LL 1861 $128,250 $171,000 $306,000
302MHD 1861 $128,250 $171,000 $306,000
312MHD 1903 $128,250 $171,000 $306,000
301MHD 1905 $128,250 $171,000 $306,000
307MHD 1909 $128,250 $171,000 $306,000
208LL 1913 $128,250 $171,000 $306,000
116CWD 1916 $128,250 $171,000 $306,000
311MHD 2089 $128,250 $171,000 $306,000
309MHD 2092 $128,250 $171,000 $306,000
104CWD 2250 $168,750 $225,000 $382,500
106CWD 2318 $168,750 $225,000 $382,500
306MHD 2318 $168,750 $225,000 $382,500
308MHD 2318 $168,750 $225,000 $382,500
2121LL 2545 $168,750 $225,000 $382,500
102CWD 2589 $168,750 $225,000 $382,500
210LL 2797 $168,750 $225,000 $382,500
108CWD 2860 $168,750 $225,000 $382,500
2nd Person $5,250 $7,000 $12,500
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(b)

Article 64 of Chapter 58 of the General StatutedNofth Carolina includes a

requirement that Residents' Entrance Fees recbiv@&dnity Oaks be placed in an

escrow account as specified in the statutes. iesithat have met pre-sales or
occupancy requirements as outlined in NCGS 58-G4)8®a, are not required

To escrow Entrance Fees, unless otherwise reqliyethe Commissioner of

Insurance. Trinity Oaks has met these particidguirements and is no longer
escrowing Entrance Fees.

Monthly Maintenance Fee, Other Charges

Resident shall pay to Trinity Oaks by the 10th dagach month after occupancy
commences a Monthly Maintenance Fee. An additidtedident shall pay a
Second Resident Fee. The Monthly Maintenance Bearfy part of a month
occurring at the beginning of occupancy shall bergited and become due and
payable upon occupancy.

Schedule of Monthly Maintenance Fees ( January 1025 - December 31, 2015)

Unit Type Monthly Fee Additional for
Independent Living Units: Single Resident Second Ralent
Studio $1,710 N/A
One Bedroom $2,147 $942
One Bedroom Deluxe $2,490 $942
One Bedroom Deluxe (new floor plan) $2,296 $942
Two Bedroom $2,740 $942
Cottage $2,954 $1,051
Cottage (Freedom Plan)* $1,657 $229
Cottage (Unbundled Plan)* $2,306 $688
Assisted Living
Standard $4,799 N/A
Enhanced Care Services $5,164 N/A
Enhanced Care Plus Services $5,529 N/A
Maximum Care $5,894 N/A

*Limited service plan with no nursing care daysto@dskeeping and cottage maintenance
are the two services included in this plan. Enti@d/13.
**Please see Attachment 6.
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Schedule of Monthly Maintenance Fees ( January 1026 - December 31, 2016)

Unit Type Monthly Fee Additional for
Independent Living Units: Single Resident Second Relent
Studio $1,761 N/A
One Bedroom $2,211 $970
One Bedroom Deluxe $2,565 $970
One Bedroom Deluxe (new floor plan) $2,365 $970
Two Bedroom $2,822 $970
Cottage $3,043 $1,083
Cottage (Freedom Plan)* $1,707 $236
Cottage (Unbundled Plan)* $2,375 $709
Assisted Living
Standard $4,943 N/A
Enhanced Care Services $5,308 N/A
Enhanced Care Plus Services $5,673 N/A
Maximum Care $6,038 N/A

*Limited service plan with no nursing care daysto@dskeeping and cottage maintenance

are the two services included in this plan. Enti@d/13.

**Please see Attachment 6.

Schedule of Monthly Maintenance Fees ( January 1027 - December 31, 2017)

Unit Type Monthly Fee Additional for
Independent Living Units: Single Resident Second Relent
Studio $1,814 N/A
One Bedroom $2,277 $999
One Bedroom Deluxe $2,642 $999
One Bedroom Deluxe (new floor plan) $2,436 $999
Two Bedroom $2,907 $999
Cottage $3,134 $1,115
Cottage (Freedom Plan)* $1,758 $243
Cottage (Unbundled Plan)* $2,446 $730
Assisted Living
Standard $5,091 N/A
Enhanced Care Services $5,456 N/A
Enhanced Care Plus Services $5,821 N/A
Maximum Care $6,186 N/A

*Limited service plan with no nursing care daysto@dskeeping and cottage maintenance

are the two services included in this plan. Enti@d/13.

**Please see Attachment 6,
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Schedule of Monthly Maintenance Fees ( January 1028 - December 31, 2018)

Unit Type Monthly Fee Additional for
Independent Living Units: Single Resident Second Relent

Studio $1,868 N/A
One Bedroom $2,345 $1,029
One Bedroom Deluxe $2,509 $1,029
Two Bedroom $2,994 $1,029
Cottage $3,228 $1,148
Cottage (Freedom Plan)* $1,811 $250
Cottage (Unbundled Plan)* $2,520 $750
Assisted Living

Standard $5,244 N/A
Enhanced Care Services $5,609 N/A
Enhanced Care Plus Services $5,974 N/A
Maximum Care $6,339 N/A

*Limited service plan with no nursing care daysto@dskeeping and cottage maintenance

are the two services included in this plan. End&d/13.

**Please see Attachment 6.

Schedule of Monthly Maintenance Fees ( January 1029 - December 31, 2019)

Unit Type Monthly Fee Additional for
Independent Living Units: Single Resident Second Relent
Studio $1,924 N/A
One Bedroom $2,415 $1,060
One Bedroom Deluxe $2,584 $1,060
Two Bedroom $3,084 $1,060
Cottage $3,325 $1,182
Cottage (Freedom Plan)* $1,865 $258
Cottage (Unbundled Plan)* $2,596 $773
Assisted Living
Standard $5,401 N/A
Enhanced Care Services $5,766 N/A
Enhanced Care Plus Services $6,131 N/A
Maximum Care $6,496 N/A

*Limited service plan with no nursing care daysto@dskeeping and cottage maintenance

are the two services included in this plan. End&d/13.

**Please see Attachment 6.




Extra Charges:

Notary Services - $5.00 per stamp

Typing - $2.00 per page

Delivery of Meals- $3.00 per meal

Personal Laundry - $5.00 per load

Transportation Charges — See pdQe

Unscheduled housekeeping - $15.00 per hour, Y2thoumum at $7.50
Extra Maintenance - $20.00 per hour, % hour mininai$10.00

Changes in Monthly Fees for the Previous Five Years2015-2019

Assisted Living: 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
Average % Increase 3.00% 3.00% 3.00% 3.00% 3.00%
Average $ Increase $140 $144 $148 $153 b
Independent Living: 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
Average % Increase 3.00% 3.0000 3.00% 3.00% 3.00%
Average $ Increase

Studio $50 $51 $53 $54 $56

1 Bedroom $67 $64 $66 $68 $70

1 Bedroom Deluxe $73 $69 $71 $73 $7b

2 Bedroom $80 $82 $85 $87 $90

2nd Occupant Apartment $27 $28 $29 $30 $31

Cottage $86 $89 $91 $94 $97

2nd Occupant Cottage $31 $32 $3p $33 $34

Trinity Oaks may from time to time, at its solea®tion and upon sixty (60) days
prior written notice to Resident, increase or dasesthe Monthly Maintenance Fee
to cover the cost of maintaining the services anghaintain the financial integrity
of Trinity Oaks, including maintaining adequateene® funds. Residents can
generally anticipate an annual increase in monttdintenance fees of 4-6% based
on inflation, health care inflation, market condiits, insurance increases, rising
expenses, etc. It is agreed that monthly paymiemtsesidency and care shall
continue during any temporary absence from Tri@igks. However, if Resident
is voluntarily absent from Trinity Oaks for sevef) br more consecutive days, a
daily meal credit in an amount to be published frtomre to time by Trinity Oaks
will apply from the first day of absence, provididwht Resident has given Trinity
Oaks prior written notice of such absence. Feeadditional and optional services
may be increased or decreased at Trinity Oakstelisn without such notice.
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(€)

(d)

(e)

(f)

Nursing Home Fees and Charges

Trinity Oaks will obtain and publish, from time tone, daily rates from Trinity
Oaks health and rehab, for assisted living, andingrcare services provided by
the Nursing Center.

If a Resident is admitted to Trinity Oaks healtld arhab (or any other nursing
center if space is not first available at Trinitgk3 health and rehab), the Resident
will continue to pay the Monthly Maintenance Fee Fis/her Independent or
Assisted Living Unit. The Resident will receivel@% discount on Trinity Oaks
health and rehab at then current private pay ra@adly when services cannot be
provided by Trinity Oaks health and rehab will Seeg at another nursing center
be covered by this 10% discount. When eligibleM&dicare benefits, Medicare
pays first for health care. When benefits areomgér applicable, the 10% discount
will apply. If a Resident becomes eligible for Meaid then the 10% discount does
not apply. All Residents at Trinity Oaks healtldarhab are responsible for their
pharmacy copayments.

If a transfer to the Trinity Oaks health and rehslbdetermined likely to be

permanent in accordance with Section 7(b) of thiuthent, then the Resident will
continue payment of the Monthly Maintenance Feetaphe point that the

Apartment or Cottage is vacated including the retfrthe keys to the residence,
entrance door cards, personal pendant(s), and eai@y opener, if applicable.
However, in such an event, a reduction in the Mignkhaintenance Fee will be

made in an amount determined by Trinity Oaks tmiglate, where possible, the
duplication of services and charges to the Resident

Additional Charges. Resident also agrees to pajemmand any and all additional
amounts which may become due under the ResidenmeAnt, and any and all
charges for additional or optional services proditie the Resident. (See Section
11, Personal Belongings.)

Monthly Statements. Trinity Oaks will furnish tlResident with a monthly
statement showing the total amount of the Monthbimfenance Fee and all other
charges owed by the Resident. Fees and otherahaifi be due and payable by
the tenth (10) day of each month. Late payments will be asseasgenalty of
twenty-five dollars ($25).

Inability to Pay. Resident agrees that in the ewerishe shall become unable to
pay the Monthly Maintenance Fee, or any part tHefiegmity Oaks may, at its sole
discretion, credit such fees or charges againstaangunts which Trinity Oaks
would be required to reimburse to Resident underpttovisions of Section 8 of
this document. It is the declared policy of Tyn@aks to operate as a charitable,
not-for-profit organization and not to terminate tiesidency of Resident solely by
reason of financial inability of Resident to pag tiotal Monthly Maintenance Fee
or any other fees or charges assessed under tideRegAgreement, even though
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(¢))

Resident's right to reimbursement of any portionthef Entrance Fee has been
extinguished by reason of the credits referredbtova, so long as the following
conditions have been met: (i) in the sole disoretf Trinity Oaks, the ability of
Trinity Oaks to operate on a sound financial b&sisot impaired; and (ii) after
entering into the Residency Agreement, Resident sbg without Trinity Oaks'
prior written consent, have impaired his abilityrteeet financial obligations to
Trinity Oaks, and (iii) Resident has applied fodatocumented justification for
special financial consideration.

Terms of Residence

(2) Permitted Occupants. The Resident(s) and no pirsion(s) shall reside
in or occupy the Living Unit during the term of tResidency Agreement,
except with the express prior written approval aghify Oaks. If a second
occupant, including a resident marrying a new sppw#o is not party to
the Residency Agreement is accepted for resideftey the date of the
Residency Agreement, such acceptance shall becsubjeompletion of
application materials, approval by the Admissiomsntittee, and
admissions policies then governing all other adimnss  Trinity Oaks may
charge a new occupant an Entrance Fee of up tohinds (2/3) of the then
current Entrance Fee for the residence to be oedugtiits sole discretion.
If such second occupant does not meet the requinesni@r residency, or if
such second occupant does not execute a Residegm@erent, such
second occupant shall not be permitted to occupyiving Unit. Trinity
Oaks' decision as to such second occupant’s residgrall be at Trinity
Oaks' sole discretion. Resident may terminatéiggdency Agreement as
provided therein. If two residents marry and dedallive in one of the two
current Living Units, they would pay the two-perddonthly Maintenance
Fee for the Living Unit. The surrendered Livingitsrefund would be
paid according to the refund policy in 8(a) undetr&nce Fees. If both
Residents surrender their Living Units and mova thfferent Living Unit,
an additional Entrance Fee may or may not be reduas defined in the
Transfers Section 8(g)(2). This will be determimeded on the size of the
Living Unit they are moving into and the size oéthiving Units they are
vacating. A revised contract will be signed by tlmaiple, outlining the
terms of any refund.

(2) Transfers. Should a Resident desire to transfemtither Apartment or
Cottage he/she must notify the Executive Directowriting. Following
receipt of this request, Resident shall be graatedption to move to the
next available Apartment or Cottage of the sizeuested, subject to the
Executive Director satisfying prior, similar reqtesf other Residents, and
subject to the rights other Residents may have hiir tResidency
Agreements.
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3)

(4)

If the Entrance Fee for the new apartment or cettadpigher than the
Entrance Fee paid by the Resident for their orighgaommodation, the
Resident will pay the difference between then-aurEntrance Fee for the
smaller accommodation from which the Resident isingand the then-
current Entrance Fee for the larger accommodatitmwhich the
Resident is moving. The Resident will be respdeditr paying the
difference in these two Entrance Fees prior to panay. When the
contract is terminated, the amount of the refuhdny, will be based on
the total Entrance Fee paid.

The Resident acknowledges and agrees that anyd#tetence required
to be paid toward the Entrance Fee will be deemdxbtincluded in the
original Entrance Fee as of the Effective Dateailidbe subject to the
terms and conditions of this Agreement regardirfigngs in the same
manner as any portion of the original Entrance faé by the Resident.

If the Resident elects to move to a smaller residethe Resident will not
be entitled to any refund of the Entrance Feerasualt of the move. When
the contract is terminated, the amount of the r@fifrany, will be based on
the total Entrance Fee paid.

With all transfers, the Monthly Maintenance Feetfee month in which the
move takes place shall be prorated to reflect #regmtage of the month
that the Resident spends in each type of resideWi®en transferring, the
Resident shall pay the then current Monthly Maiateze Fee. With all

transfers, there will be an up-fitting charge ofta$5,000, for the vacated
residence. Resident will move all furnishings daibngings to the new
residence within 30 days of the established ocaupaiate for the new
residence. Any moving expense and service cororector phone will be

the responsibility of the Resident.

Death or Transfer of One Resident. If one of mpldtResidents occupying
a Living Unit dies, moves out or is permanentlyngf@rred to Trinity Oaks
health and rehab, or any other nursing centergiimaining Resident(s) may
elect to continue to occupy that Living Unit at tygplicable occupancy rate
then in effect.

Procedure. In the event it is determined that Resident requires a
permanent transfer or change in the level of catkaccommodations at
Trinity Oaks, the Resident hereby agrees to maké suchange. Such
determination of a change will be made by and basethe professional
opinion of the resident’s personal physician, thee@or of Community

Relations, the Executive Director and if needetieptealth care support
staff of Trinity Oaks. Such a decision to transfex Resident will be made
only after consultation to the extent possible wilie Resident, the
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(h)

(5)

(6)

(7)

representatives of the Resident's family or spgnand the Resident's
physician.

Transfer Outside Trinity Oaks. If it is determinég the Director of

Community Relations, the Executive Director andekded, other health
care support staff that the Resident needs carenbethe scope of the
facility and personnel of Trinity Oaks, the Resitlell be transferred to a
qualified hospital, nursing center or instituticquéped to give such care,
at the expense of the Resident. Such transféreoResident will be made
only after consultation to the extent possible witie Resident, a
representative of the Resident's family or sponamg the Resident's
physician.

Medical/Mental Condition. Trinity Oaks is not dgsed or licensed to care
for persons who have certain medical or mental itmmd or suffer from
certain contagious or dangerous diseases. lfgtisrmined by the Director
of Community Relations, the Executive Director #meeded, other health
care support staff,, using standard legal/medicdlacceptable evaluation
procedures, that a Resident suffers from a medicaiental condition, so
that a Resident’s continuing presence at Trinitkia detrimental to the
health or safety of the Resident or other Reside¢hén the Resident may
be transferred to an institution capable of adnenisg such care and
his/her Apartment or Cottage shall be assignedthers, subject to the
rights of any remaining second Apartment or CottRgsident. In such
situations, the expenses of such institution welithe responsibility of the
Resident. The final determination will be at thecdetion of the Executive
Director. (Also see Section 11, Personal Belongjing

Release/Readmission. If a determination is madehiey Director of
Community Relations, the Executive Director andekded, other health
care support staff, that any such transfer or chaegcribed in this Section
will likely be permanent in nature, the Residentely agrees to release
his/her rights and use of the Apartment or Cottagéject to the rights of
any remaining second Apartment or Cottage Resifmtording to the
provisions of the Residency Agreement). If howevwle Resident’s
physician, the Director of Community Relations, Ehecutive Director and
if needed, other health care support staff, subssgudetermine that the
Resident can resume occupancy in accommodationsaéent to those
previously occupied by the Resident, the Residealt bave priority to such
accommodations as soon as they become availabile, nei additional
Entrance Fee unless the Entrance Fee has beendedfumder the
provisions described in Section 8.

Termination.
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(2)

3)

Statutory 30-Day Period. The Residency Agreememt be rescinded by
Resident at any time within thirty (30) days follogy the later of the date
of execution of the Residency Agreement or theipt¢d®/ Resident of the
Disclosure Statement (the "Disclosure Statememeijpired by Article 64

of Chapter 58 of the North Carolina General Statut®uring this thirty

(30) day period, Resident shall not be requirethtwe into Trinity Oaks.

If such rescission is made, any money or propeaig pr transferred to
Trinity Oaks, except those periodic charges spattiiin the Residency

Agreement and applicable only to such period aslikang Unit was
actually occupied by the Resident, shall be rediinefull to the Resident
or to the party who made the payment or paymentdemalf of the
Resident, except for a non-refundable processirgy dé 2% of the
Apartment or Cottage Entry Fee and any nonstandastis (including
custom selections and upgrades) specifically irclby Trinity Oaks at the
request of the Resident and described in the Resydagreement or an
amendment to it signed by the resident. Therea#gher party shall have
any further obligation or duty to the other. Reurdement due the Resident
will be made within 90 days of written notificatioof rescission by
Resident.

Death or lliness Before Occupancy. If Residens diefore occupying a
Living Unit or if, on account of illness, injury ancapacity, Resident is
precluded from occupying a Living Unit under theme of the Residency
Agreement, the Residency Agreement is automaticedyceled and
Resident or his legal representative shall recaivefund of all money or
property paid or transferred to Trinity Oaks, I@sthose nonstandard costs
(including Major Options, custom selections andrapgs, and requested
change orders for a Cottage), specifically incutogdrlrinity Oaks at the
request of the Resident and described in the Resydagreement or an
amendment to it signed by the Resident and (ii) nloa-refundable
processing fee of $1,000 of the basic Cottage ariypent Entrance Fee.
All other refunds due the Resident will be madeniit90 days of written
notification by resident or his/her legal repreadine.

Termination by Resident After Statutory 30-Day Bdri  After the

expiration of the statutory thirty (30) days begnghwith the first full

calendar day following the execution of the ResayeAgreement, and
before Resident has begun occupancy in Trinity O&esident may
terminate the Residency Agreement for reasons tiiaer (i) death, or (ii)
illness, injury or other incapacity which would neak appropriate for
Trinity Oaks to accept the Resident's occupancythi Living Unit.

Resident will receive a refund of all money or pdp paid or transferred
to Trinity Oaks, less those nonstandard costs dousselections and
upgrades), specifically incurred by Trinity Oaks the request of the
Resident and described in the Residency Agreenteart amendment to it
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(4)

(5)

(6)

signed by the Resident and the non-refundable pstug fee equal to two
percent (2%) of the basic Cottage or Apartment & e Fee. All other
refunds due the Resident will be made within 90sdafynotification by

Resident or his/her legal representative.

Termination by Resident After Occupancifter occupancy, subject to the
provisions of Section 8 hereof, Resident may teatanthis Residency
Agreement by giving written notice to Trinity Oafs less than ninety (90)
days before Resident intends to move out of Tridgks. Resident is
responsible to pay Monthly Maintenance Fees duthed@0-day period, or
until the Living Unit is vacated, whichever occlast.

Termination by Trinity Oaks. Trinity Oaks may, gedt to the provisions
of Section 8 hereof, upon notice and opportunitguce as stated in this
document, revoke Resident's right to reside atiffjri@daks and terminate
the Residency Agreement upon the occurrence of defgult by the
Resident in meeting the covenants, warrantiesesgmtations, and terms
of Residency provided for in this Disclosure Statein Trinity Oaks may
also terminate this Agreement at any time for amgdgcause. Good cause
shall be limited to:

1. Proof that you are a danger to yourself or others;

2. Nonpayment by you of any fee due to the Community;

3. Repeated conduct by you that interferes with otlesidents' quiet
enjoyment of the Community;

4. Persistent refusal by you to comply withe reasonable written rules
and regulations of the Community;

5. Material misrepresentation made intentionally arkltessly by you in
your application for residency, or related materialegarding
information which, if accurately provided, wouldveeresulted in either
a failure of you to qualify for residency or a nr&eincrease in the cost
of providing to you the care and services provideuder this
Agreement, including with respect to those itenisrred to in Section
6.

6. Material breach by you of this Agreement.

However, we shall not terminate the Agreement asiged herein until we
give you written notice of, and a reasonable opputy to cure within a
reasonable period, the conduct warranting the datoa of this
Agreement.

Notice and Right to Cure. Once Resident has aedugie Living Unit,

Trinity Oaks shall give Resident notice in writiofjany default by Resident
which may not involve the payment of money and &esti shall have thirty
(30) days thereafter within which to correct sudfadit. If Resident
corrects such default within such time, the Resigielgreement shall not
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then be terminated. If Resident fails to corraathsdefault within such
time, Trinity Oaks may, at its sole option, termigahe Residency
Agreement at the expiration of the thirty (30) geeyiod.

(7 Death of Resident After Occupancy. In the everthefdeath of Resident
after occupancy, the Residency Agreement shalubgest to termination
as follows:

® If there is only one Resident occupying theihgy Unit, the
Residency Agreement shall be automatically ternechais of
the date of death of such Resident or the datedlfter upon
which all of Resident’s property is removed frore thiving
Unit, all keys, pendant, entrance slide and gadage opener
(if applicable) have been turned in to the DirectbResident
Services. The Monthly Maintenance Fee shall autimaily be
terminated at this point. Resident’s Estate isoasjble for any
payment due Trinity Oaks. Resident’s Entrance Besilbject to
refund as provided in Section 8.

(i) If there is more than one Resident occupying tivengi Unit,
the second person shall have the option of comtgto reside
in the Living Unit at the single person rate. Trginal
Residency Agreement will terminate at the deattheffirst
Resident and a new Residency Agreement will beesidpy the
remaining Resident. If the second Resident etedisrminate
the original Residency Agreement, Trinity Oaks nreseive a
written notice of such election within sixty (603ys after the
date of the first Resident’s death. The Monthlyilenance
Fee shall continue until the removal of all Resteproperty,
all keys, pendant, entrance slide and garage duweney (if
applicable) are turned in to the Director of Restdgervices.
The surviving Resident’s Entrance Fee is subjectfiond as
provided in Section 8.

(1) Reimbursement of Entrance Fee.

Q) Amount. If, after Resident has commenced occupdRegident or Trinity
Oaks terminates the Residency Agreement, or iretieat of the death of
the Resident, Resident (or Resident's estatepwiteimbursed as follows:

Independent Apartment and Cottage Residents - 96%n& Plan: The
Entrance Fee is refundable at a minimum of ninexcent (90%). The
Entrance Fee is reduced by a one percent (1.0%theatime of initial
occupancy and by one half of one percent (0.5%)npanth for the first
eighteen (18) months of occupancy after which aretyi percent (90%)
refund will be paid to the Resident or the Resigegtate if the Living Unit
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(2)

is vacated. The balance of any Entrance Fees teceibgbursed after
termination of the Residency Agreement will be gaydTrinity Oaks after
the Living Unit is vacated and the re-occupancytleg Apartment or
Cottage.

Independent Apartment and Cottage Residents - 58%6n& Plan: The
Entrance Fee is refundable at a minimum of fiftyceat (50%). The
Entrance Fee is reduced by a two percent (2.0%hetime of initial

occupancy and by one percent (1.0%) per montinhéofitst forty-eight (48)

months of occupancy after which a fifty percent%@0efund will be paid
to the Resident or the Resident's estate if theagiWnit is vacated. The
balance of any Entrance Fees to be reimbursed t&fterination of the
Residency Agreement will be paid by Trinity Oakgeathe Living Unit is

vacated and the re-occupancy of the Apartment tiaGe.

Independent Apartment and Cottage Residents - éciefund Plan: The
Entrance Fee is reduced by a four percent (4%)ceefee at the time of
occupancy and by two percent (2%) per month foffitseforty-eight (48)
months of occupancy. The Entrance Fee is non-dekie after forty-eight
(48) months. The balance of any Entrance Fees toeipgbursed after
termination of the Residency Agreement will be pgaydTrinity Oaks after
the Living Unit is vacated and the re-occupancytlid Apartment or
Cottage.

In addition, Trinity Oaks will retain as reimbursem for previously
incurred expenses on behalf of the Resident, aesjural to:

0] The amount of medical expenses incurred by Triigks for
Resident's care during the term of his/her resigenapaid by
Resident at date of termination;

(i) The amount of any Monthly Maintenance Fee or oluens owed
by Resident to Trinity Oaks under the Residencyeggrent;

(i)  The amount of any Monthly Maintenance Fee, theectibn of
which may have been deferred by Trinity Oaks orabieti Resident
under Section 8(f) hereof; and

(iv)  The cost of any extraordinary repairs or refurlyighwith respect to
the Living Unit, including entry and doors, or amjterations
required to restore the Living Unit to standardigie®r condition.

Time of Payment. Subject to clauses of Sectioth8, balance of the
Entrance Fee to be reimbursed to the Resident #dterination of the
Residency Agreement (or to the Resident's estaia dpath) will be paid
by Trinity Oaks after the Living Unit is vacateddareoccupied.
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10.

11.

12.

3) Multiple Residents. It is understood that wheiw v more persons are
named in the Residency Agreement, reimbursementhefrefundable
portion of the Entrance Fee will be made only affter termination of the
Residency Agreement in accordance with Section 8.

(4)  Accounting. An accounting shall be provided to iRest or Resident's
legal representative upon reimbursement of thealBo& Fee, as provided
in this document.

Required Health Insurance Coverage. Resident statitain Medicare Part A, Medicare

Part B and one supplemental health insurance policsnaintain equivalent insurance
coverage comparable to Medicare and approved byEkezutive Director to assure
Resident's ability to cover such health care rdlatests, and shall furnish to Trinity Oaks
evidence of such coverage as it may from timene tiequest. In the event Resident is not
eligible or does not qualify for Medicare Part ARart B, Resident shall maintain other
health insurance approved by Trinity Oaks. If nasice coverage is provided through a
managed health care policy, terms of the policy rd&yate where the Resident may
receive health care services. If insurance coeeisigot maintained, or if Resident refuses
medical treatment, which, in the opinion of Resiteattending physician or the Medical
Director is medically required for the health o tResident or the health or safety of other
Residents of Trinity Oaks, the Executive Direct@ynterminate Resident's right to reside
at Trinity Oaks and terminate the Residency Agredras provided in Section 8.

Funeral Expenses. Trinity Oaks will not be liafdethe cost of the burial of the Resident.
The costs of burial and related services shall &id for by the Resident's estate, the
Resident's relatives, or other agent designatatidoiresident.

Personal Belongings. Jewelry and personal possessir effects brought into Trinity
Oaks by the Resident will remain the property & BResident. Trinity Oaks will not be
responsible for the loss or theft thereof. Redidgmell, prior to occupancy of the
Apartment or Cottage, make provisions in a lastavitl testament for the final disposition
of his/her furniture and possessions located atiffriOaks, for burial and payment of
funeral expenses and for the appointment of a patsepresentative; and shall deliver to
the Director of Community Relations a copy of tleetiment provisions of Resident’s Last
Will and Testament at the time he/she commencesgpaecy. If removal of Resident's
property is not accomplished within thirty (30) dafter termination of residency, Trinity
Oaks may remove and place in storage with a bontu®dng or storage company, all of
Resident's property and possessions, and ResidBeisident's estate, as the case may be,
shall be charged for all costs associated withdioeage. Trinity Oaks shall not be
responsible for the loss of, or damage to, any gntgpbelonging to the Resident due to
theft, mysterious disappearance, fire or any ottarse. The Resident maintains the
responsibility for obtaining desired insurance potibn covering any liability.

Indebtedness to Trinity Oaks and LSC AffiliateEo the extent allowed by applicable law,
Trinity Oaks and other LSC affiliates shall haveraferred claim against the estate of the
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13.

14.

Resident for any care furnished or for any fundg&ctvimay be advanced for the residency
or care of the Resident which may remain unpaid,aary personal property, or real estate
which the Resident owns shall stand as securitaiforis hereby pledged to the payment
of any unpaid claims due to Trinity Oaks and oth®€ affiliates. To the extent allowed
by applicable law, the Resident for himself/hersei/her heirs and legal representatives,
hereby waives any and all claims which the Residaght have to exemption and agrees
that these personal assets shall be liable fordabys owed Trinity Oaks and other LSC
affiliates by Resident.

Casualty Loss, Condemnation.

(@)  Total Destruction. If Resident's Apartment or @g# at Trinity Oaks is totally
destroyed or damaged by fire or other casualtyawourring through fault or
negligence of Trinity Oaks or those employed byacting for Trinity Oaks, that
the same cannot be repaired and restored witheriagpof ninety (90) days, the
Residency Agreement shall absolutely cease andinatep and the Monthly
Maintenance Fee shall abate for the balance ofteta as of the date of the
casualty. Trinity Oaks will maintain property imance coverage to cover the
building and contents losses sustained becauskeohécessary termination of
operations from an insured peril.

(b) Partial Destruction. If the damage caused as ibestin Section 13(a) above is
only partial, so that the Resident's Apartment oit&je can be reasonably restored
within a period of ninety (90) days to its conditiprior to the partial destruction,
Trinity Oaks may, at its option, terminate the Resicy Agreement, provide
alternative temporary housing, or restore Trinigk®to such condition reserving
the right to enter the Apartment or Cottage fort fiarpose. In any event, the
Monthly Maintenance Fee shall be reduced duringtitme Trinity Oaks is in
possession, taking into account the extent thagagtment or Cottage is rendered
untenable and the duration of Trinity Oaks' possessTrinity Oaks will maintain
business income and extra expense insurance cevevagpver losses sustained
because of the necessary suspension of operatamsah insured peril.

(c) Condemnation. If Trinity Oaks is taken or condethfa a public or quasi-public
use or adeed in lieu is given, in whole or in psotthat Trinity Oaks can no longer
be operated reasonably in the opinion of Trinityk©aoard of Directors, the
Residency Agreement shall terminate as the daestiiall rest in the condemner,
and the Monthly Maintenance Fee shall abate. énetrent of condemnation, the
Resident waives all claims against Trinity Oakg] &esident agrees that he/she
will not make or be entitled to any claim or recovegainst the condemning
authority.

Government Eligibilities. Should either Trinity &=aor the Resident be eligible for federal,
state or other funds on behalf of the Residentingtin the Residency Agreement shall
be construed so as to make either party ineligdslsuch funds, and the Resident expressly
waives any provision in the Residency Agreementctvimight now or hereafter be in
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16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

conflict with any federal, state or other law ogu&ations, and agrees to apply for and
cooperate in obtaining such benefits.

Liability of Trinity Oaks. The death of the Resndevill cancel any and all obligations or
liability of Trinity Oaks under the terms of the $t@ency Agreement.

Rights of Management. The absolute rights of mamamt are reserved by Trinity Oaks.
Trinity Oaks reserves the right to accept or regut person for residency. The rights of
the Residents do not include any right to partit@pa the management of Trinity Oaks, to
determine admissions or terms of admission of dhgrdResident, to alter common areas
within Trinity Oaks, or to make unapproved altevas to their Apartment or Cottage.

Durable Power of Attorney. Resident agrees to @econder seal and maintain in effect
a Durable Power of Attorney that is valid under tdo€arolina law and will survive
Resident's incapacity or mental incompetence. Dhisable Power of Attorney may be
effective only upon certification by a licensed pityan that Resident is incapacitated or
mentally incompetent, and shall designate as Retsdattorney-in-fact a bank or some
responsible person of his/her choice to act for/l@nmanaging his/her financial affairs
and in filing for insurance and/or other benefitsder private and public assistance
programs in as full and complete a manner as Reismild do if acting personally for
himself/herself. Resident shall deliver a fullyeented original of this Durable Power of
Attorney to Trinity Oaks prior to occupancy of tApartment or Cottage.

Binding Effect. The covenants and conditions ef Residency Agreement shall bind and
benefit respectively Trinity Oaks and its successord assigns, and Resident and his/her
heirs, personal representatives, successors agdsssxcept as otherwise specified in this
document. The Residency Agreement, together wighrtiles and regulations provided
for, shall constitute the full and entire agreemamd understanding between the parties.
There are no restrictions, promises, warrantieggigants or undertakings, other than those
set forth or referred to in this document. Thei®ascy Agreement, the Exhibits to the
Residency Agreement, and other documents and agrésmeferred to herein supersede
all prior agreements and undertakings betweendhép and respect to this subject matter.

Interruptions. Trinity Oaks shall not be requirtx perform any condition, term or
covenant in the Residency Agreement so long aspserdbrmance is delayed or prevented
by force majeure, which shall mean acts of Godkedr material or labor shortages or
failures, lockouts, restrictions by any governmeatathority, civil riot, floods and any
other cause not reasonably within the control afifyr Oaks and which by the exercise of
ordinary care Trinity Oaks is unable, wholly orpart, to prevent or overcome.

Severability. If any clause or provision of theskiency Agreement should be illegal,
invalid or unenforceable, the provisions shall berded to be severable and the remainder
of the Residency Agreement shall not be affectétb amendment of the Residency
Agreement will be valid and enforceable unless iitimg and executed by the
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21.

22.

23.

24,

25.

Executive Director and Resident except that managémay amend the Residency
Agreement from time to time so that the Residengye&ment complies with applicable
laws, rules and regulations of the Federal, Stateaal government.

Governing Law. The Residency Agreement will beegoed by and construed under the
laws of the State of North Carolina.

Execution. The Residency Agreement has been eegtout behalf of Trinity Oaks by its
duly authorized agent. No officer, director, agenemployee of Trinity Oaks shall have
any personal liability hereunder to Resident uradgr circumstances.

Waiver. No waiver of any term or condition of tResidency Agreement shall be effective
unless made in writing and executed by the patti¢se Residency Agreement. Nor shall
any waivers be deemed to excuse the performanaeyofict other than those specifically
referred to in the written notice of waiver. Argiltire of Trinity Oaks to insist upon strict
and/or prompt performance of the foregoing, or ather covenants, terms or conditions
of the Residency Agreement and/or the acceptanseadf performance thereafter will not
constitute or be construed as a waiver or the gaishment of Trinity Oaks' right to
thereafter enforce the same strictly accordingédaénor hereof in the event of a continuing
or subsequent default on the part of the Resident.

Interpretation. The captions contained hereinfareonvenience and reference only and
in no way define, limit, or describe the scopenpemnt of the Residency Agreement or affect
any of the terms and provisions of this documety reference expressed in any gender
shall be deemed to include each of the other gendad the singular shall be deemed to
include the plural and vice versa, unless the comtiherwise requires.

Notice. All notices and other communication heamshall be in writing and shall be
deemed given if delivered personally or mailedibst tlass mail (postage paid) to the
persons at the following addresses (or at suctr atlidress for a party as specified by like
notice):

(@) If to Trinity Oaks:
0] LUTHERAN RETIREMENT CENTER - SALISBURY, INC.
d/b/a TRINITY OAKS

728 Klumac Road
Salisbury, North Carolina 28144-5714
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(b)

(i)

(ii)

If to the Resident:

If before Occupancy, as follows:

If after occupancy, at the Apartment or Cottage.

26. Nature of Residency Agreement. Subject to the deamd conditions set forth in the
Residency Agreement, nursing services, medical@Enand other health-related services
are available at additional fees.

27. Reserve Funding. Section 58-64-33 of the Northoliaa General Statutes requires
continuing care facilities to establish operatiagarves equal to a percentage (based upon
maintenance of occupancy levels) of total operatimgjs projected in forecasted financial
statements for the following 12-month periods. Towecasted reserve for 2018, 2019,
2020, 2021 and 2022 is calculated as follows:

2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
Forecasted (estimated)
Total
Operating
Expenses $8,956,000 $9,178,000 $9,380,000 $ 9,585,000/ $9,780,000
Include:
Principle
Payment 414,000 439,000 465,000 492,000 522,000
Exclude:
Depreciation (2,291,000)  (2,358,000) (2,410,000) (2,449,000) (2,486,000)
Amortization (2,000 (2,000) (2,000 (2,000 (2,000)
Total
Adjusted
Operating
Costs 7077,000 7,257,000 7,433,000 7,626,000 7,814,000
Occupancy
Factor (a) 0.25 0.25 0.25 0.25 0.25
Operating
Reserve
Requirement | $1,769,000 $1,814,000 $1,858,000 $ 1,907,000 $ 1,953,000
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29.

30.

(a) The requirement to maintain operating reserveshiat percentage of total
forecasted expenses (less depreciation and antmtizexpenses and bond
interest expense) is based on the maintenancecapancy at less than 90%
for the years 2016 and forward.

As indicated in the forecasted financial statemehtsamount of the operating reserve for
2019is $1,769,000. The 2019 operating reserudlisfinded. To the extent the operating
reserve requirement increases in future yearsetin@ining amount needed to comply with
the operating reserve requirement will be fundedabliong-term investments and board
designated funds, which are presently on hand.ra@ipg reserve funds will be invested
primarily in obligations of the United States Tregs highly rated corporate bonds and
money market accounts. Investments will be managegh institutional investment trust
established through a bank of investment firm.

Cottage Project

Trinity Oaks expanded its facilities with the adulit of 42 independent living Cottages.
Financing of the project was through the sale oftiN@€arolina Bonds. The bonds were
issued in March 1998. Variable interest ratesaomexempt bonds were converted into a
fixed rate of 4.088% through the use of an interatt swap agreement effective June 1,
2007 through maturity in 2028. In March 201& 1998 bond issue was refinanced with
a 2017 bond issue. The refinancing allowed foeteb interest rate and the removal of
the letter of credit enhancement that was on tl88 nd issue. The 2028 maturity and
Swap Agreement still remain in place.

The Board of Directors shall direct, under the sulermulated by the Board, the fiscal
policies of Trinity Oaks and the investment offiteds. Within the parameters of these
policies, specific investment decisions may be auled by any of the following offices
and/or positions of Trinity Oaks:

Chair of the Board of Directors of Trinity Oaks
Vice Chair of the Board of Directors of Trinity Cak
President of Trinity Oaks

Vice President of Trinity Oaks

Treasurer of Trinity Oaks

In 2004, Trinity Oaks adderesident and a community citizen to its Board.

Miscellaneous. Wherever appropriate in this doauntbe singular shall include the
plural, and the masculine shall include the fenmerand vice versa.

Copy of Residency Agreement. A copy of the Resigekgreement used by Trinity Oaks
is attached hereto as Attachment 1.
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32

33.

34.

35.

36.

Certified Financial Statement of Trinity Oaks. A combined Certified Financial Statement
of Trinity Oaks and Lutheran Services Carolinas, Inc. for the Fiscal Year 2017 is attached
as Attachment 2.

Certified Forecast Financial Statements. A copy of Trinity Oaks’ Certified Forecast
Financial Statement is attached as Attachment 3.

Interim Financials (January 31, 2019). A copy of Trinity Oaks’ interim financials is
attached as Attachment 4.

Assisted Living Enhanced Care Program. A copy of Trinity Oaks assisted living’s
enhanced care program is attached as Attachment 5,

Cottage Unbundling of Services Program. A copy of Trinity Oaks’ Cottage Unbundling
of Services Program is attached as Attachment 6.

Trinity Oaks Resident Transportation Charges

Medical Transportation,

Medical transportation is provided within Rowan County as the schedule permits at no
charge.

Medical transportation is provided to counties bordering Rowan County, as the schedule
permits, at the following rates. (Cabarrus, Davidson, Davie, Iredell, and Stanley)

o $20 for one way trip. (Drop off or pick up only)

o $20 for the I* hour and $10 at the start of each hour thereafter. (These transports
force the driver to stay near the destination site, therefore, the time starts at the
departure of the origination point and will end at the arrival of the origination
point.)

Medical transportation is provided to counties not bordering Rowan County, as the
schedule permits, at the following rates.

o $30 for a one way trip. (Drop off or pick up only)

o $30 for the 1% hour and at $10 at the start of each hour thereafter. (These
transports force the driver to stay near the destination site, therefore, the time
starts at the departure of the origination point and will end at the arrival of the
origination point.)

Non-Medical Transportation:

Non-Medical transportation is provided within Rowan County, as the schedule permits, at
the following rate.

o $10 per destination.
Non-Medical transportation is provided to counties bordering Rowan County, as the
schedule permits, at the following rates. (Cabarrus, Davidson, Davie, Iredell, and
Stanley)

o $40 for one way trip. (Drop off or pick up only)

o $40 for the 15 hour and $20 at the start of each hour thereafter. (These transports

force the driver to stay near the destination site, therefore, the time starts at the
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departure of the origination point and will endlrag arrival of the origination
point.)
* Non-Medical transportation is provided to counties bordering Rowan County, as the
schedule permits, at the following rates. (i.e pait runs)

o $60 for a one way trip. (Drop off or pick up only)

o $60 for the 1 hour and $30 at the start of each hour theredffbese transports
force the driver to stay near the destination #iterefore, the time starts at the
departure of the origination point and will endlrag arrival of the origination
point.)

37. Comparison Forecast Financial Statements (Pagesi2)
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Lutheran Services for the Aging
Trinity Oaks
Balance Sheet

Actual Forecast

Assets 2018 2018 Difference Explanation

Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,284,028 $ 1,275,000 $ 9,028
Receivables, net of allowance 87,950 15,000 72,950
Other 184,614 282,000 (97,386)
Inventories 38,282 40,000 (1,718)

Total current assets 1,594,874 1,612,000

Assets limited as to use - non current 1,561,006 1,794,000 (232,994)

Net Property and Equipment 22,929,404 22,785,000 144,404

Total assets $ 26,085,284 $ 26,191,000

Liabilities

Current Liabilities
Current portion of long-term debt $ 390,000 $ 390,000 -
Accounts payable - trade 163,201 237,000 (73,799)
Accrued salaries and payroll taxes 273,597 229,000 44,597
Accrued employee benefits 21,277 14,000 7,277
Accrued interest payable (15,349) - (15,349)
Refundable fee deposits - current 923,987 872,000 51,987
Due to related party 5,103,124 5,555,000 (451,876)

Total current liabilities 6,859,837 7,297,000

Other liabilities and credits
Refundable fee deposits 7,779,760 7,724,000 55,760
Deferred revenue from fee deposits 7,500,443 7,146,000 354,443
Long-term debt 4,760,357 4,637,000 123,357

Total other liabilities and credits 20,040,559 26,804,000

Unrestricted (830,090) (626,000)

Temporarily restricted 14,977 13,000

Total net assets (815,113) (613,000)

Total liabilities and net assets $ 26,085,284 $ 26,191,000

Explanation of Material Differences Between Projected Statements of Operations and Changes in Net Assets for the Year Ended September 30, 2018 and
Year Ended September 30, 2018 Actual Results. Please note that the basic threshold for a comment on variances was >$500,000 on the balance sheet and
cash flow statement and >$200,000 on the financial statement.

The following explanation is furnished pursuant to Section 58-94-30 of the General Statues of North Caralina. The explanation pertainsto material difference
between the Projected Statement of Activitiesand Changesin Net Assets for the Year Ended September 30, 2018 contained as part of the Disclosure Statement
Nated March 1 2019
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Lutheran Services for the Aging
Trinity Oaks
Consolidating Statement of Operations

Actual Forecast
2018 2018 Difference Explanation
Revenue and other Support
Net resident service revenue $ 6,986,963 $ 7,247,000 $ (260,037) Lower cottage occ
Amortization of deferred entrance fee 1,375,242 920,000 455,242 Accel amort
Restricted funds released for operatic 3,717 - 3,717
Other revenue 147,353 16,000 131,353
Total revenue and other support $ 8,513,275 $ 8,183,000 $ 330,275
Expenses
Health care 584,554 510,000 74,554
Maintenance 818,114 907,000 (88,886)
Laundry 24,890 31,000 (6,110)
Housekeeping 222,410 290,000 (67,590)
Grounds 164,660 188,000 (23,340)
Security 141,961 169,000 (27,039)
Dietary 1,558,992 1,319,000 239,992 Raw food costs
Life Enrichment Services 309,527 304,000 5,527
Administration 1,804,275 1,594,000 210,275 Increase campus
Depreciation 2,058,640 2,000,000 58,640 size
Interest expense 299,945 279,000 20,945
Total expenses 7,987,968 7,591,000 396,968
Operating income (loss) 525,307 592,000 (66,693)
Other Income
Investment Income 35,377 50,000 (14,623)
Unrealized Gain (Loss) 67,500 - 67,500
Unrestricted contributions and beques 1,530,239 1,563,000 (32,761)
Total other income (loss) 1,633,116 1,613,000 20,116
Excess revenues over expenses $ 2,158,423 $ 2,205,000 $ (46,577)
Non-Recurring Transactions (159,297) - (159,297)

Increase (decrease) unrestricted ass' $ 1,999,126 $ 2,205,000 $ (205,874)

Temporary restricted

Contributions 6,190 - 6,190
Net assets released from restrictions (3,717) - (3,717)
Increase (decrease) temp. restricted 2,473 - 2,473
Increase (decrease) net assets 2,001,599 2,205,000 (203,401)
Net deficit - beginning of year (2,816,712) (2,818,000)
Net deficit - end of year $ (815,113) $ (613,000)

Explanation of Material Differences Between Projected Statements of Operations and Changes in Net Assets for the Year Ended
September 30, 2018 and Year Ended September 30, 2018 Actual Results. Please note that the basic threshold for a comment on variances
was > $500,000 on the balance sheet and cash flow statement and >$200,000 on the financial statement.

The following explanation is furnished pursuant to Section 58-94-30 of the General Statues of North Carolina. The explanation pertainsto
material difference between the Projected Statement of Activities and Changes in Net Assets for the Year Ended September 30, 2018
contained as part of the Disclosure Statement Dated March 1, 2019.
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Lutheran Services for the Aging

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Change in net assets
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to
net cash provided by operating activities:
Amortization of deferred revenue
from advance fees
Depreciation
(Gain) loss on disposal of assets
Realized/unrealized (gain) loss on investments
(Increase) decrease in other current assets
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable/accrued expenses
Net cash provided by operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchase of property and equipment
Investments (net)
(Increase) decrease in assets whose use is limited
Net cash used in investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Net proceeds from bond issue/debt payments
tAdvanced fees received, net
Other changes in financing activities
Net cash provided by financing activities
NET CHANGE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS BEGINNING OF YEAR

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF YEAR

Trinity Oaks
Statement of Cash Flows

Actual Forecast
2018 2018
$ 2,001,599 $ 2,205,000 $
(1,375,242) (920,000)
2,058,640 2,000,000
(67,500) -
41,460 17,000
(26,865) 10,000
2,632,092 3,312,000
(4,102,223) (3,900,000)
67,500 -
(2,877) (237,000)
(4,037,599) (4,137,000)
(245,158) (369,000)
1,590,520 673,000
17,354 469,000
1,362,715 773,000
(42,793) $ (52,000)
1,326,821 $ 1,327,000
$ 1,284,028 $ 1,275,000

Difference Explanation

(203,401)

(455,242)
58,640
(67,500)
24,460
(36,865)

(202,223)
67,500
234,123

123,842
917,520 More entry fees rec'd
(451,646)

Explanation of Material Differences Between Projected Statements of Operations and Changes in Net Assets for the Year Ended September 30, 2018 and Year Ended
September 30, 2018 Actual Results. Please note that the basic threshold for a comment on variances was >$500,000 on the balance sheet and cash flow statement and

>$200,000 on the financial statement.

Thefollowing explanation is furnished pursuant to Section 58-94-30 of the General Satues of North Carolina. The explanation pertains to material difference between the
Projected Statement of Activities and Changesin Net Assets for the Year Ended September 30, 2018 contained as part of the Disclosure Statement Dated March 1, 2019.
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TRINITY OAKS
RESIDENCY AGREEMENT

Recitals

THIS RESIDENCY AGREEMENT is made this aybf , , between
LUTHERAN RETIREMENT CENTER - SALISBURY, INC., a Ntr Carolina nonprofit corporation

operating under the name of Trinity Oaks, and

eirthandividually or collectively called

"Resident"). If a husband and wife or two otherspes desiring to share an Apartment or Cottageiaityl
Oaks enter into this Agreement, the term Residwat apply to them jointly and severally and to sevivor
of them.

WHEREAS, Lutheran Retirement Center - Salisburny, évns and operates the retirement center and
adjacent Cottages known as Trinity Oaks (hereimifjrOaks"), located at 728 Klumac Road in Salighu
Rowan County, North Carolina; and

WHEREAS, Resident desires to use and occupy tideres ("Apartment”) or ("Cottage") located in
Trinity Oaks and designated in this Agreement andifff Oaks desires to make the selected Apartroent
Cottage available to Resident;

As conditions precedent to the execution of thiseggnent, the Resident shall meet the following
requirements to the satisfaction of Trinity Oaksject to such exceptions as the Board of Directbfsinity
Oaks may approve in writing:

Health: Each independent living Resident must lsawicient physical and mental capacities to live
independently without posing a danger to his/heidtheor to the health and safety of other Trinity
Oaks residents and staff. The Resident will preadPersonal Health Application.

Financial: The Resident shall have furnished mfamtion to Trinity Oaks with respect to the
Resident's financial resources demonstrating tieaResident has the financial income and assets to
pay the Entrance Fee, Monthly Maintenance Feeaexéal charges, charges for additional services,
personal living expenses, and the future adjustnehtthese charges during the term of this
Agreement.

Age: The Resident must be at least 60 years o&atfes time he or she occupies an Apartment or
Cottage at Trinity Oaks, with an exception in theea of one of two married Residents.

1. Residence, Related Services and Programs. @Gubjihne terms and conditions of this Agreement,
Trinity Oaks shall make available to Resident aapent or Cottage, related services, programs and
amenities at Trinity Oaks as described below:

@) Description of Apartment or Cottage. Residsmll be entitled to the exclusive use of
Apartment or Cottage at Trinity Oaks.




(b)

()

(d)

(e)

(f)

(9)

(h)

()

()

(k)

Furnishings. Trinity Oaks will provide all foa kitchen appliances and a washer and dryer in
each unit. All units are equipped with hardwoaabfk, ceramic tile floors and showers, and such
other furnishings and fixtures as may be describéke informational brochures published by
Trinity Oaks for the purpose of describing Triniaks. All other Living Unit furnishings and
furniture are to be provided by Resident.

Utilities. Includes individually controlledeiating, air conditioning, water, sewer, gas, @ty

and trash removal. Resident shall be responsiblarfd pay for all telephone, internet and cable
television services, including installation and kop charges. As of January 2003, Cottage
residents shall pay their own gas and electris Bl shown on the resident’s monthly statement.

Meals. All apartment residents and cottageleess are provided breakfast each day. Apartment
residents are provided one other meal per dayr(theice of lunch or dinner). Missed meals
(except breakfast) may be made up in the monthtkiegt are missed (no rollovers month to
month). Cottage residents receive 180 meals arigeaddition to daily breakfast.

Housekeeping Services. Housekeeping sengeesy two weeks for Apartment Residents and
weekly for Cottage Residents, shall include clegmithsinks, tubs, bathroom fixtures and floors,
dusting, and vacuuming. Additional housekeepingise shall be available at the Resident's
expense.

Laundry. Apartment Residents shall be prositlundering of regular flat and bed linen on a
weekly basis. Laundry facilities are provided actefloor for personal laundry, free of charge.
Cottage Residents are provided a washer and drgach residence and will be responsible for
their own laundry.

Maintenance Services. Trinity Oaks will begessible for normal wear and tear, maintenance
and replacement of the property, furnishings andpnent owned by or leased for use at Trinity

Oaks. Resident will be responsible for any dantageich property, furnishings and equipment,
including the cost of repair or replacement or dirainution in value thereof, caused by the

negligence or intentional acts of Resident or Redid guests. Resident will be responsible for
the maintenance and repair of his/her personalgstpp

Changes to Apartment or Cottage. Any stru¢toraphysical change or redecoration and
remodeling of any kind within or outside the Apagimb or Cottage may be made by Resident
only with the prior written consent of the TrinfBaks Executive Director and at the sole expense
of Resident. Resident shall pay the appropriatemecessary to return the Apartment or Cottage
to its original condition and the cost of redecimmat All such improvements or changes shall be
the property of Trinity Oaks.

Groundskeeping. Trinity Oaks will maintaindarepair grounds surrounding Apartments and
Cottages and common areas, including lawns, tredsshrubbery. Personal plantings and
customization of landscaped areas are subjeciimagl by the Trinity Oaks Executive Director
and are not maintained by the Groundskeeping Deygautt

Programs. Recreational, social, spiritualj@tional and cultural programs and activities will
be coordinated by staff in conjunction with Resideommittees. Some activities are subject
to an additional charge.

Parking. Parking areas for Residents’ perkwahicles and limited parking for guests of
Residents will be provided.



0] Transportation. Scheduled local transportatiithin Rowan County is provided, including
group transportation for shopping, medical appoertta and some other recreational
activities. Some transportation is subject to ddiittonal charge.

(m) Emergency Response System. Trinity Oaks wil/jgle, on a twenty-four (24) hour basis, an
emergency call system. Response to a call shéihited to an evaluation of the needs of the
Resident. If other medical response is determireagssary, the Resident is responsible for
costs by such private physician or nurse and stiobr anedical care provider as may be
selected by the Resident, including emergency rakédiiansportation. In the event that
Resident is admitted to the Assisted Living Centeo Trinity Oaks health and rehab after
such emergency response, the fees described ii0B6¢t) shall apply.

(n) Insurance. Trinity Oaks will maintain gendiability insurance but will not be responsible
for the personal property of Residents. Residamt&ncouraged to obtain insurance to cover
such liabilities. See Section 1(g) regarding Resideesponsibility for damage to property
owned or leased by Trinity Oaks.

(0) Optional Services. A schedule of fees for mexwprovided at extra cost including, but not
limited to those optional services described absival] be established by Trinity Oaks’ Board
of Directors and shall be made available to Residenlater than the date upon which
Resident occupies the Apartment or Cottage.

(p) Trash Removal. Apartment Residents shall dispbs@sh in the areas designated on each
Apartment floor. Cottage Residents’ trash showdlaced in approved containers to be
collected at curbside.

(a) Pets. Pets are permitted per residence upon ctiarpté a Pet Agreement and payment of a
$300 non-refundable fee. The pet can be replactaddordance with the Pet Policy.

Charges for services listed above in subparagréghbrough (p) are included within the Monthly
Maintenance Fee described in the Residency Agreemeless otherwise indicated for alternate
plans.

Terms of Residence.

@) Nature and Extent of Rights. Resident's rigliiccupy the Apartment or Cottage for a term
of years or for life shall exist unless terminaésdorovided for in Section 8 of the Residency
Agreement. Nothing contained herein shall be capstor is intended to require that Trinity
Oaks care for the Resident for life, nor shall thgreement be construed as a life-care
contract.

(b) Terms of Occupancy. Signing of this Residefgyeement and payment of the Entrance Fee
does not deliver title to real or personal propeatyd may not be assigned, transferred,
inherited or devised. Any rights, privileges, biseor interests created by or under this
Agreement shall be subordinated to any mortgaged @€ trust, or other security interest
created on any of the premises or interests in estdte of Trinity Oaks and to all
amendments, modifications, replacements or refunitiareof. Resident agrees to execute
and deliver any document required by Trinity Oakkyothe holder of any mortgage, deed of
trust or other interest to evidence or effect ssidhordination.




()

(d)

(e)

(f)

Alteration or Modification. Notwithstandingaother provisions in this Agreement, Trinity
Oaks may alter or modify the Apartment or Cottagmeet requirements of any statute, law
or regulation of the Federal, State or local Goment. Resident may not, without prior
written consent of the Executive Director, make aitgrations or modifications to the
Apartment or Cottage.

Use. The Apartment or Cottage shall be usedefidential purposes only and shall not be
used for business or professional purposes, namyrmanner in violation of any zoning or
health ordinances.

Permitted Occupants. The parties hereto réoegnd agree that the amount of wear and tear
evident in the Apartment or Cottage depends in @aonh the number of persons regularly
occupying the Apartment or Cottage. It is therefagreed that the Resident(s) named herein
and no other person(s) shall reside in or occupyartment or Cottage during the term of
this Agreement, except with the express prior emitipproval of the Executive Director. If a
second occupant, including a resident marrying\a sigouse, who is not a party to this
Agreement is accepted for residency after the afat@is Agreement, such acceptance shall
be subject to the approval of the Admissions Comemiaind adherence to policies then
governing all other admissions. If the second peow does not meet the requirements for
residency, or does not execute a Residency Agreemefshe shall not be permitted to
occupy the Apartment or Cottage. The Residentterayinate this Agreement as provided in
Section 8. If two residents marry and decideue ih one of the two current Living Units,
they would pay the two-person Monthly Maintenanee For the Living Unit. The
surrendered Living Unit's refund would be paid aciiog to the refund policy in 8(a) under
Entrance Fees. If both Residents surrender thvgind.Units and move to a different Living
Unit, an additional Entrance Fee may or may notduogiired as defined in the Transfers
Section 8(g)(2). This will be determined basedransize of the Living Unit they are moving
into and the size of the Living Units they are waa A revised contract will be signed by
the couple, outlining the terms of any refund.

Transfers. Should a Resident desire to transf@nather Apartment or Cottage he/she must
notify the Executive Director in writing. Followgrreceipt of this request, Resident shall be
granted an option to move to the next availablerfypent or Cottage of the size requested,
subject to the Executive Director satisfying prisimilar requests of other Residents, and
subject to the rights other Residents may havheir Residency Agreements.

If the Entrance Fee for the new apartment or cetisadpigher than the Entrance Fee paid by
the Resident for their original accommodation,Resident will pay the difference between
then-current Entrance Fee for the smaller accomtimufiom which the Resident is moving
and the then-current Entrance Fee for the largggramodation into which the Resident is
moving. The Resident will be responsible for pgyihe difference in these two Entrance
Fees prior to occupancy. When the contract isitexted, the amount of the refund, if any,
will be based on the total Entrance Fee paid.

The Resident acknowledges and agrees that anyd#ftetence required to be paid towards
the Entrance Fee will be deemed to be includedcéndriginal Entrance Fee as of the
Effective Date and will be subject to the terms aodditions of this Agreement regarding
refunds in the same manner as any portion of tiginat Entrance Fee paid by the Resident.



(¢))

If the Resident elects to move to a smaller residethe Resident will not be entitled to any
refund of the Entrance Fee as a result of the m&hen the contract is terminated, the
amount of the refund, if any, will be based onttital Entrance Fee paid.

With all transfers, the Monthly Maintenance Feetfa month in which the move takes place
shall be prorated to reflect the percentage ofrtbeth that the Resident spends in each type
of residence. When transferring, the Residentlspay the then current Monthly
Maintenance Fee. With all transfers, there wilabeaup-fitting charge of up to $5,000, for the
vacated residence. Resident will move all furmighiand belongings to the new residence
within 30 days of the established occupancy datihéonew residence. Any moving expense
and service connections for phone will be the resjimlity of the Resident.

Death or Transfer of One Resident. If one of tkeifents named herein dies, moves out or
is permanently transferred to the Assisted Livirenter, Trinity Oaks health and rehab

or any other nursing center, the remaining Resideay elect to continue to occupy the
Apartment or Cottage at the single occupancy raa in effect.

Admissions Requirements and Procedures. Upecugrn of this Agreement and subject to

fulfillment of his/her obligations hereunder, theditdent will be qualified for admission as an
occupant of Trinity Oaks:

(@)

(b)

()

(d)

Nondiscrimination. The requirements for admisgmiirinity Oaks are nondiscriminatory
except as to age. Admission is restrictegketsons sixty (60) years of age or older with
the exception of a younger spouse. Trinigak€©is open to both single and married men
and women of all races, religions and gedgg boundaries.

Reservation Agreement. At the time a Resideldcts an Apartment or Cottage, he/she will
complete a Reservation Agreement and submit ittaeketing Representative at Trinity
Oaks along with a Reservation Deposit of $1,000is Reservation Deposit will be applied
to the 10% Deposit required at the time of iniiateptance by the Admissions Committee
and execution of this Residency Agreement.

The Resident may terminate the Reservation Agreepriam to entering into the Residency
Agreement for any reason by giving written notioeTtinity Oaks. The Resident shall be
refunded the Reservation Deposit of $1,000, mihaptocessing fee of $500 as noted in the
Reservation Agreement within 30 days of such notidee Reservation Agreement is
preliminary in nature and precedent to the Resigémgeement.

Disclosure Statement. Upon execution of thedRetion Agreement, the Marketing
Representative will provide the Resident a copyrafity Oaks' Disclosure Statement which
fully describes the organization, facilities, p@i services, fees, financial condition,
projections, and the vital information related tanity Oaks. Included in the Disclosure
Statement is a Residency Agreement.

Application. Within thirty (30) days of exean of the Reservation Agreement, the Resident
will complete an Application for Admission, a PanabHealth History and a Confidential
Financial Statement and/or other evidence of gefficfinancial means for the review and
approval by the Admissions Committee.



()

(f)

(9)

(h)

(i)

()

(k)

()

Admissions Committee Review. The Admissionsn@ittee will review the completed

Application Forms as a basis for initial approvat idmission to Trinity Oaks. The
Admission Committee will accept or deny the appiaa based on criteria and policies
established by the Board of Directors. The Exe&eubirector will notify the Resident in

writing of the action taken by the Admissions Cortted.

Residency Agreement. The Resident shall exethé Residency Agreement and submit it
with a 10% deposit of the Entrance Fee (minus he® Reservation Deposit previously
paid) within 10 days of notification of initial agptance by the Admissions Committee. At
the same time, Resident will be notified of avallabof the Apartment or Cottage for
occupancy. See Section 4.

Physician's Report. Trinity Oaks asks thatdests provide a copy of their most recent
physical after occupancy along with copies of lreiaurance cards for emergency purposes.
We respect the privacy of the Resident’s persoealth information and are committed to
maintaining the Resident’s confidentiality. Thigpéies to all information and records related
to the Resident’s health that Trinity Oaks hasivexkor created.

Interview. The Resident must have an intervievinaitepresentative from Trinity Oaks prior
to being approved by the Admissions Committee. nLpeiew of the information outlined in
subparagraphs (b), (d) and (e) above, the Exechireetor may request additional personal
interviews with the Resident.

Representations and Warranties. The Residénna that the representations made in the
Application for Admission, Personal Health Histaryd Confidential Financial Statement, or
other statements of financial capability, are aatiand reflect the Resident's current status
and, as such, are the basis for which Trinity Cajtees to enter into this Agreement.

Financial Condition. Immediately prior to eriteg Trinity Oaks for occupancy, the Resident
will affirm to the Admissions Committee that his/lgersonal financial situation does not
differ materially or adversely from the financiatusition as presented in the Resident's
Confidential Financial Statement described in ®act(e) of this Agreement. If the
Resident's then Personal Financial Statement sliffeaterially and adversely from prior
financial situation, the Admissions Committee mayrtinate this Agreement.

Additional Financial Statements. After occupgnthe Executive Director may require

updated financial information. In the case of tResidents occupying an Apartment or
Cottage and in the event of the death of one obticepants, the surviving Resident may be
required to submit an update of the original agtia and provide a new Confidential

Financial Statement.

Rules and Regulations. Upon entering Trinigkd, the Resident agrees to live in harmony
with his/her neighbors in a spirit of good will. hd Resident agrees to abide by the
administrative policies and procedures as estadalisly the Board of Directors and Trinity
Oaks including such amendments, modifications angke in those policies and procedures.
These policies and procedures are designed focdh#ort, safety and security of all
Residents.

Notification of Availability. After the Residérs initially approved for admission as state&atction

3, the Executive Director will notify the Residesftthe Apartments or Cottages projected date of



availability for occupancy. Residents have si@)(days from date of notification to occupy the
Apartment or Cottage, pay the remaining Entranes &ed begin paying the Monthly Maintenance
Fee. All notifications shall be in writing and el to the address of the Resident as providedsn t
Agreement.

Health Services for Independent Living Residents

(@)

Transfer or Changes in Level of Care. Sulietihe terms and conditions set forth in this
Agreement, Trinity Oaks agrees to arrange for aggded health care or nursing services
through the Assisted Living Center or Trinity Odlealth and rehab, subject to availability of
beds, on a priority basis. In the event Trinityk®&ealth and rehab has no bed available,
services will be arranged at such other health ocareursing facility of similar quality
(“Nursing Center”). The Monthly Maintenance Fedumes a 10% discount on Trinity Oaks
health and rehab (or such other Nursing Centgraiés is not first available at Trinity Oaks
health and rehab) then current private pay rdfesResident becomes eligible for Medicaid
then the 10% discount does not apply. All ResilentTrinity Oaks health and rehab are
responsible for their pharmacy copaymernifsa temporary stay at Trinity Oaks health and
rehab, a Resident will continue to pay the MontMigintenance Fee in the Independent
Living Unit. If a permanent transfer to Trinity Kmhealth and rehab, the Resident will cease
paying the Monthly Maintenance Fee when the apanrtrhas been totally vacateth
addition, Trinity Oaks will make available to Resid, at Resident's expense, the periodic
services of other medical professionals as it daeemessary or appropriate. Some of these
services will be provided at no additional costhia form of educational sessions or clinics.

Trinity Oaks assisted living uses a level of cartednination process upon admission, every
six months and after either a hospital stay oriigmt health change to determine which
services are needed for each Resident. The fallpleivels of care are defined as follows:

Independent-This service level provides accommodatiheals, minimal help with ADLs and

residents that self administer medication or minihedp with medication administration,

selected additional services such as special giglanning. Residents in this level are
typically independent.

Enhanced Care Services-This level of care providederate levels of help with ADLs to
residents that can perform part of the activity ion/her, and several additional services
including but not limited to, assistance with medions, ambulation, bathing, dressing,
grooming, eating, hygiene and toileting. Thesé&egs may require some assistance from
Licensed Health Professional Support as well afusion management and/or management
of diabetes, skin integrity, and/or fall risk intentions.

Enhanced Care Plus Services-This level of careigesva significant degree of help with
ADLs and is geared towards residents who can parfoart of the activity and are very
frail/impaired or will require several servicesaregular basis. These residents may require
some assistance from Licensed Health Professiomgdt as well as confusion management
and/or management of diabetes, skin integrity, @nfall risk interventions.

Maximum Care-This level of care provides assistancesidents that need someone else to
complete the task for the resident most of the tifikese residents may require extensive
assistance with confusion management and/or mareagehdiabetes, skin integrity, and/or
fall risk interventions.



(b)

()

(d)

(€)

Role of Medical Director. Trinity Oaks assistedrig will employ as a consultant, a licensed
physician (herein referred to as the "Medical Qe to assist in establishing and
implementing health care related policies and preastfor Trinity Oaks assisted living and
to perform such other related duties describedhig Agreement. Trinity Oaks will also
employ licensed personnel to perform all such dutieescribed by the Medical Director
within such person's licensed authority.

Availability of Health Services. The Directof Nursing, the Social Worker, Director of

Community Relations will make available, or arrafge other health care services for the
Resident, including but not limited to physicalréygy, occupational therapy, rehabilitative
treatments and equipment, ambulance servicesgtiniharmacy services, and laboratory
tests. Charges for these health care servicebpavilt addition to the Monthly Maintenance
Fee.

Limitations. Health care accommodations amdises, as set forth in 5 (a), (b) and (c), shall
be made available to Residents on a priority basigject to the terms of this Agreement and
to all admissions requirements imposed by applews and regulatory procedures.

Designation of Personal Physician. The Resiéhbe required to designate a local North
Carolina licensed physician as his/her personasiplan. The Resident will be responsible
for the cost of any personal services of his/hgislian or related services as requested by
the Resident or Trinity Oaks. The Provider mayerabccupancy, require the Resident to
have other physical examinations by their persphgsician or another physician selected by
Trinity Oaks at Resident's expense. Annual updafteach Resident’'s Physician’s History
and Physical Examination Report will be requested.

Fees and Other Charges.

(@)

Entrance Fees.

0] Entrance Fees for Apartment Residents

For the right to reside in Apartment or afterm of years or for life as

long as all terms and conditions of the agreemenireet at Trinity Oaks, Resident

agrees to pay to Trinity Oaks an Entrance Fee of $ under the
Entrance Fee Refund Plan:

Ten percent (10%) of the Entrance Fee (less tHg0®Ireservation fee) is due and
payable upon the execution of this Agreement ard#iance of the Entrance Fee
shall be due and payable prior to occupancy. Rasid required to occupy the
Apartment within sixty (60) days after notificatioh availability (see Section 4).

Independent Apartment and Cottage Entrance Fel f8§fund Plan: The Entrance
Fee is refundable at a minimum of ninety perce@4R® The Entrance Fee is
reduced by a one percent (1.0%) at the time ti&lrdccupancy and by one half of
one percent (0.5%) per month for the first eight@ed) months of occupancy after
which an ninety percent (90%) refund will be paidhie Resident or the Resident's
estate if the Living Unit is vacated. The balamfeany Entrance Fees to be
reimbursed after termination of the Residency Agrest will be paid by Trinity




(ii)

Oaks after the Living Unit is vacated and the repemcy of the Apartment or
Cottage.

Independent Apartment and Cottage Entrance Fel Héfund Plan: The Entrance
Fee is refundable at a minimum of fifty percentg0 The Entrance Fee is reduced
by a two percent (2.0%) at the time of initial opancy and by one percent (1.0%)
per month for the first forty-eight (48) months aécupancy after which a fifty
percent (50%) refund will be paid to the Residenthe Resident's estate if the
Living Unit is vacated. The balance of any Enteiff@es to be reimbursed after
termination of the Residency Agreement will be fid rinity Oaks after the Living
Unit is vacated and the reoccupancy of the Apartroeottage.

Independent Apartment and Cottage Entrance Feenitdd Refund Plan: The
Entrance Fee is reduced by a four percent (4%)cgefee at the time of occupancy
and by two percent (2%) per month for the firsttyfaright (48) months of
occupancy. The Entrance Fee is non-refundablefafty-eight (48) months. The
balance of any Entrance Fees to be reimbursedtaftaination of the Residency
Agreement will be paid by Trinity Oaks after thevinig Unit is vacated and the
reoccupancy of the Apartment or Cottage.

Entrance Fees for Cottage Residents

For the right to reside in Cottage at for a term of years or for life
as long as all terms and conditions of the agreearermet, Resident agrees to pay
to Trinity Oaks an Entrance Fee of $ under the

Cottage Refund Plan. The Entrance Fee is an aneguia to the basic Cottage fee
and the total of all Major Options selected, andegbased on the selection of
foundation type, refund plan, and Major Optiongstdd (See Addendum VI).

Ten percent (10%) of the Cottage Entrance Fee aadiondred percent (100%) of
the cost of Major Options selected is due and pgayapon the execution of this
Agreement less any Reservation Deposit already paid

Payment for any custom features may be due prianyowork on those features
being initiated.

A final payment equal to the balance (90%) of theit Cottage Entrance Fee is due
and payable prior to occupancy. Resident is reguio occupy the Cottage within
sixty (60) days after notification of availabilifgee Section 4).

Independent Apartment and Cottage Entrance Felé F8§fund Plan: The Entrance
Fee is refundable at a minimum of ninety perce@24R® The Entrance Fee is
reduced by a one percent (1.0%) at the time ti&lrdccupancy and by one half of
one percent (0.5%) per month for the first eight@ed) months of occupancy after
which an ninety percent (90%) refund will be paidhite Resident or the Resident's
estate if the Living Unit is vacated. The balamfeany Entrance Fees to be
reimbursed after termination of the Residency Agrest will be paid by Trinity
Oaks after the Living Unit is vacated and the repancy of the Apartment or
Cottage.




(b)

(iii)

Independent Apartment and Cottage Entrance Felé Rfund Plan: The Entrance
Fee is refundable at a minimum of fifty percentg0 The Entrance Fee is reduced
by a two percent (2.0%) at the time of initial opancy and by one percent (1.0%)
per month for the first forty-eight (48) months @fcupancy after which a fifty
percent (50%) refund will be paid to the Residenthe Resident's estate if the
Living Unit is vacated. The balance of any Enteir@es to be reimbursed after
termination of the Residency Agreement will be fmid rinity Oaks after the Living
Unit is vacated and the reoccupancy of the Apartroefottage.

Independent Apartment and Cottage Entrance Feenitdd Refund Plan: The
Entrance Fee is reduced by a four percent (4%)ceefee at the time of occupancy
and by two percent (2%) per month for the firsttyfagight (48) months of
occupancy. The Entrance Fee is non-refundablefafty-eight (48) months. The
balance of any Entrance Fees to be reimbursedtafmaination of the Residency
Agreement will be paid by Trinity Oaks after thevibig Unit is vacated and the
reoccupancy of the Apartment or Cottage

Resident agrees that, notwithstanding anytritp a reimbursement of all or any
portion of the Entrance Fees as provided in thisesAment, such Entrance Fees,
when paid to Trinity Oaks, shall become part offilmeds and property of Trinity
Oaks, may be commingled with any other funds rexklwy Trinity Oaks, and may
be used by Trinity Oaks for any ordinary and nemgspurposes related to the
operation of Trinity Oaks, including payment of grancipal amount and any interest
with respect to any loans made to Trinity Oaks.

Monthly Fees and Charges.

(i)

(ii)

Monthly Fees and Charges for Apartment or GEitResidents:

Resident shall pay to Trinity Oaks by the tenthif) 0f each month after occupancy

commences a Monthly Maintenance Fee of $ . If there is a
second Resident in the Apartment or Cottage, tbenskResident shall pay the
published Second Person Monthly Maintenance Fe® of . The

Monthly Maintenance Fee for any part of a monthuogog at the beginning of
occupancy shall be prorated and become due andblpayaon occupancy.

The Monthly Maintenance Fee generally is adjustetuially. Fee adjustments are
approved by the Board of Directors with sixty (6@ys prior written notice given to
Resident. Fee adjustments are to cover the cobtinity Oaks of maintaining
services and the financial integrity of Trinity Gakcluding maintaining adequate
reserve funds. Residents can generally anticigatannual increase in monthly
maintenance fees of 4-6% based on inflation, healthinflation, market conditions,
insurance increases, rising expenses, etc. diréed that payments of the Monthly
Maintenance Fee shall continue during any tempahbsgnce from Trinity Oaks.
However, if Resident is absent from Trinity Oaksdeven (7) or more consecutive
days, a daily meal credit will apply from the fiddy of absence, provided that
Resident has given Trinity Oaks prior written netif such absence, excepting those
instances in which a resident is hospitalized. sHee additional and optional
services may be increased or decreased at Trirdks'Qliscretion without such
notice.

10



()

(d)

(e)

(iii) The Assisted Living Center and Trinity Oakedith and rehab Monthly and Daily
Fees/Charges.

Trinity Oaks will obtain and publish, from timetime, daily rates from Trinity Oaks
health and rehab, for Assisted Living, and nursiage services provided by the
Nursing Center.

If a Resident is admitted to Trinity Oaks healtld ehab (or any other nursing center
if space is not first available at Trinity Oaks hleand rehab), the Resident will
continue to pay the Monthly Maintenance Fee fofheisIndependent or Assisted
Living Unit. The Resident will receive a 10% disc on Trinity Oaks health and
rehab at then current private pay rates. Only wiggnmices cannot be provided by
Trinity Oaks health and rehab will services at Aronhursing center be covered by
this 10% discount. When eligible for Medicare HaéagMedicare pays first for
health care. When benefits are no longer applicabé 10% discount will applif.

a Resident becomes eligible for Medicaid then 8 Hiscount does not apply. All
Residents at Trinity Oaks health and rehab areoresbple for their pharmacy
copayments.

If a transfer to the Trinity Oaks health and relsatbetermined likely to be permanent
in accordance with Section 7(b) of this documdmntthe Resident will continue
payment of the Monthly Maintenance Fee up to thiatpithat the Apartment or
Cottage is vacated including the return of the keythe residence, entrance door
cards, personal pendant(s), and garage door oplesygplicable. However, in such
an event, a reduction in the Monthly Maintenance Wil be made in an amount
determined by Trinity Oaks to eliminate, where flassthe duplication of services
and charges to the Resident.

Additional Charges. Resident also agrees yoapa and all additional amounts which may
become due under this Agreement and any and atheb#or additional or optional services
provided to the Resident (see Section 15).

Monthly Statements. The Business Office wiltfish the Resident with a monthly statement
showing the total amount of the Monthly Maintenakee and all other charges owed by the
Resident. All charges will be due and payablehgytenth (10th) day of each month. Late
payments will be assessed a penalty of twentydoltars ($25).

Inability to Pay. Resident agrees that indgkient he/she shall become unable to pay the
Monthly Maintenance Fee, or any part thereof, TyiGiaks may, at its sole discretion, credit
such fees or charges against any amounts whichyl@aks would be required to reimburse
to Resident under the provisions of Section 10s tihe declared policy of Trinity Oaks to
operate as a charitable, not-for-profit organizatismd not to terminate the residency of
Resident solely by reason of financial inability Resident to pay the total Monthly
Maintenance Fee or any other fees or charges assesder this Agreement, even though
Resident's right to reimbursement of any portiomefEntrance Fee has been extinguished by
reason of the credits referred to in this secsoripng as the following conditions have been
met: (i) in the sole discretion of Trinity Oaksethbility to operate Trinity Oaks on a sound
financial basis is not impaired; (ii) after entgrimto this Agreement, Resident shall not,
without the Executive Director's prior written censg, have impaired his/her ability to meet
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financial obligations to Trinity Oaks; and (iii) Bident has applied for and documented
justification for special financial consideration.

Transfer or Changes in Levels of Care.

(@)

(b)

()

(d)

Procedure. Inthe event it is determinedtti@Resident requires a transfer or change in the
level of care and accommaodations, the Residenbliergrees to make such a change. Such
determination will be made by and based on theegsibnal opinion of the Director of
Community Relations, the Executive Director andagéded, other health care support staff.
A decision to transfer the Resident will be madthimbest interest of the Resident and only
after consultation to the extent possible withRiasident, the representatives of the Resident's
family or sponsor, and the Resident's physician.

Transfer Qutside Trinity Oaks. If it is detén@d by the Director of Community Relations,
the Executive Director and if needed, other hezdtie support staff, that the Resident needs
care beyond the scope of the facility and personhdlrinity Oaks, the Resident will be
transferred to a qualified hospital, nursing centénstitution equipped to give such care, at
the expense of the Resident. Such transfer ofRbsident will be made only after
consultation to the extent possible with the Retideerepresentative of the Resident's family
or sponsor and the Resident's physician.

Medical/Mental Condition. Trinity Oaks is not dgsed or licensed to care for persons who
have certain medical or mental conditions or sufifem certain contagious or dangerous
diseases. Ifitis determined by the Director ofr@nunity Relations, the Executive Director
and if needed, other health care support staffingustandard legal/medical and acceptable
evaluation procedures, that a Resident suffers &onedical or mental condition, so that a
Resident's continuing presence at Trinity Oaksetsimhental to the health or safety of the
Resident or other Residents, then the Residenbm#nansferred to an institution capable of
administering needed care and his/her Apartmeaitage shall be assigned to others,
subject to the rights of any remaining second Apartt or Cottage Resident. In such
situations, the expenses of such institution veiltie responsibility of the Resident. The final
determination will be at the discretion of the Bxtie Director. (Also see Section 14,
Personal Belongings).

Release/Readmission. If a determination is madéédpirector of Community Relations,
the Executive Director and if needed, other hezdile support staff, that any such transfer or
change described in this Section will likely berpanent in nature, the Resident hereby
agrees to release his/her rights and use of thetpat or Cottage, subject to the rights of
any remaining second Apartment or Cottage ResjdertSection 2(f) and (g)]. If, however,
the Director of Community Relations, the Execufdiezctor and if needed, other health care
support staff, subsequently determine that the deesi can resume occupancy in
accommodations equivalent to those previously declipy the Resident, the Resident shall
have priority to such accommodations as soon gstitbeome available, with no additional
Entrance Fee unless the Entrance Fee has beewledfunder the provisions described in
Section 10.
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8. Termination.

(@)

(b)

©)

(d)

(e)

Statutory 30-Day Period. This Agreement tm@yescinded by Resident at any time
within thirty (30) days following the later of thuate of execution of this Agreement or the
receipt by Resident of the Disclosure Statementired by Article 64 of Chapter 58 of

the North Carolina General Statutes. During thigyt (30) day period, Resident shall not
be required to move into Trinity Oaks. If suchisem is made, any money or property
paid or transferred to Trinity Oaks, except thoseqalic charges specified in this
Agreement and applicable only to such period ag\freztment was actually occupied by
the Resident, shall be returned in full to the Best or to the party who made the
payment or payments on behalf of the Resident @xoep non-refundable processing fee
of 2% of the Apartment or Cottage Entrance Feeayohonstandard costs (including
Major Options, custom selections and upgradesrequaested change orders for a
Cottage) specifically incurred by Trinity Oaks lagtrequest of the Resident and described
in the Residency Agreement or an amendment tgriesi by the resident. Thereafter
neither party shall have any further obligatiordaty to the other. Reimbursement due
will be refunded within 90 days of written notiftéan of recision by Resident.

Death or lliness Prior to Occupancy. If Residdies before occupying an Apartment or
Cottage or if, on account of iliness, injury orapacity Resident is precluded from occupying
an Apartment or Cottage under the terms of thisAgrent, this Agreement is automatically
canceled and Resident or his legal representaliat eceive a refund of all money or

property paid or transferred to Trinity Oaks, I¢gsthose nonstandard costs (custom
selections and upgrades) specifically incurred figify Oaks at the request of the Resident
and described in this Agreement or an additiont &igned by the Resident and (ii) the
non-refundable processing fee of $1000. Reimbweaedue will be refunded within 90 days

of written notification by Resident or his/her Iégepresentative.

Termination by Resident After Statutory 30-DRgriod. Beginning with the first full
calendar day following expiration of the statut@@-day period, and before Resident has
begun occupancy in Trinity Oaks, Resident may teate this Agreement for reasons other
than (i) death, or (ii) illness, injury or othecapacity which would make it inappropriate for
Trinity Oaks to accept the Resident's occupantlyérApartment or Cottage. Resident will
receive reimbursement of all monies paid or tramste to Trinity Oaks, less those
nonstandard costs (custom selections and upgrsplesifically incurred by Trinity Oaks at
the request of the Resident and described in this@ment or an addition to it signed by the
Resident, and the non-refundable processing fea &mjtwo percent (2%) of the Apartment
or Cottage Entrance Fee which shall be retaine@rimjty Oaks as liquidated damages for
costs incurred due to the termination by Resid&@funds will be made within 90 days of
notification by Resident or his/her legal repreate.

Termination by Resident After Occupancy. Aftecupancy, subject to the provisions of
Section 10, Resident may terminate this Agreemgghbing written notice to the Executive
Director no less than ninety (90) days before Redithtends to move out of Trinity Oaks.
Resident is responsible to pay Monthly Maintendrers during the ninety (90) day period or
until the Independent Living Apartment or Cottagevacated, whichever occurs last (see
Section 10, Reimbursement of Entrance Fees - Imatkge: Living).

Death of Resident After Occupancy. In the ¢oémhe death of Resident after occupancy,
this Agreement shall be subject to terminationodiews:
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(i)

(ii)

If there is only one Resident occugytine Living Unit, the Residency
Agreement shall be automatically terminaedaf the date of death of such
Resident or the date thereafter upon which allediéent’s property is
removed from the Living Unit, all keys, pendantfrance slide and garage
door opener (if applicable) have been turned inRirector of Resident
Services. The Monthly Maintenance Fee shall autimailit be terminated at
this point. Resident’s Estate is responsible for@eyment due Trinity Oaks.
Resident’'s Entrance Fee is subject to itasprovided in Section 8.

If there is more than one Resident occupyirglilving Unit, the second
person shall have the option of continuing to residthe Living Unit at the
single person rate under the terms of the Residdgoyement. The
surviving Resident’s Entrance Fee is subject torréfas provided in Section
8.

® Termination by Trinity Oaks. The Executive Bitor may, subject to the provisions of

Section 10, upon notice and opportunity to cureeasin provided, revoke Resident's right to

reside at Trinity Oaks and terminate this Agreenogoin the occurrence of any default by the
Resident in meeting the covenants, warranties esgmtations and terms of Residency
provided for in this Agreement or for violationspaflicies stated in the Residents Handbook.
Trinity Oaks may also terminate this Agreemenigttame for any good cause. Good cause

shall be limited to:

1.

2.

6.

Proof that you are a danger to yourself or others;
Nonpayment by you of any fee due to the Community;

Repeated conduct by you that interferes with otbgidents' quiet
enjoyment of the Community;

Persistent refusal by you to comply witke reasonable written rules and
regulations of the Community;

Material misrepresentation made intentionally aklessly by you in your

application for residency, or related materiagarding information which, if

accurately provided, would have resultedtimeg a failure of you to qualify

for residency or a material increase in th& of providing to you the care
and services provided under this Agreemantuding with respect to those
items referred to in Section 3;

Material breach by you of this Agreement.

However, we shall not terminate the Agreement agiged herein until we give you
written notice of, and a reasonable opportuniut@ within a reasonable period, the
conduct warranting the cancellation of this Agreetme

(9) Notice and Right to Cure. Once Resident has oecufiie Apartment or Cottage, the

Executive Director shall give Resident notice intiwg of any default by Resident and
Resident shall have thirty (30) days within whiokcorrect the default. If Resident fails to
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10.

correct the default within thirty (30) days, TrintDaks may, at its sole option, terminate this
Agreement at the expiration of the thirty (30) gheyiod.

Remedies Upon Termination. Upon naotificatioropportunity to cure any default as described in
Section 8(f) and (g) of this Agreement, the Exe@ibirector may, without further notice to Resident
and without further demand for amounts due, terteittdas Agreement, suspend all services provided
hereunder and re-enter the Apartment or Cottageremove all persons and property. Resident
hereby waives all demand and any and all servicetée in writing or otherwise, prescribed by any
statute or any other law whatever, of intentioretenter and waives all claims for damages that may
be caused by Trinity Oaks in re-entering and taljpgsession of the Apartment or Cottage. If
Resident shall abandon or vacate the Apartmenotiade before the termination of this Agreement,
Resident will pay Trinity Oaks liquidated damagesan amount equal to the full amount of the
Monthly Maintenance Fee due for the period of albantknt or vacation until a termination of this
Agreement is effected as provided in Section 8@rsuit of any of the above remedies shall not
preclude pursuit of any other remedies herein glexvior any other remedies given by law or equity.
All of the remedies given to Trinity Oaks in thisaiment, and all rights and remedies given by law o
equity shall be cumulative and concurrent.

Reimbursement of Entrance Fee - Independeinrid.iv

@) Amount. If, after Resident has commenced oaoaypat Trinity Oaks, if Resident or Trinity
Oaks terminates this Agreement, or in the evetit@tieath of the Resident, the Resident (or
Resident's estate) will be reimbursed as follows:

Independent Apartment and Cottage Residents - 9884 Plan: The Entrance
Fee is refundable at a minimum of ninety perce@4R® The Entrance Fee is
reduced by a one percent (1.0%) at the time ti&lrdccupancy and by one half of
one percent (0.5%) per month for the first eight@ed) months of occupancy after
which an ninety percent (90%) refund will be paidhie Resident or the Resident's
estate if the Living Unit is vacated. The balamfeany Entrance Fees to be
reimbursed after termination of the Residency Agrea will be paid by TrinityOaks
after the Living Unit is vacated and the reoccuparsfahe Apartment or Cottage.

Independent Apartment and Cottage Residents - 588 Plan: The Entrance
Fee is refundable at a minimum of fifty percentg0 The Entrance Fee is reduced
by a two percent (2.0%) at the time of initial opancy and by one percent (1.0%)
per month for the first forty-eight (48) months @fcupancy after which a fifty
percent (50%) refund will be paid to the Residenthe Resident's estate if the
Living Unit is vacated. The balance of any Enteir@es to be reimbursed after
termination of the Residency Agreement will be fmid rinity Oaks after the Living
Unit is vacated and the reoccupancy of the Apartroefottage.

Independent Apartment and Cottage Residents -édéhitefund Plan: The Entrance
Fee is reduced by a four percent (4%) servicetfdedime of occupancy and by two
percent (2%) per month for the first forty-eighBJ4months of occupancy. The
Entrance Fee is non-refundable after forty-eigi®) (#onths. The balance of any
Entrance Fees to be reimbursed after terminatitimredResidency Agreement will be
paid by Trinity Oaks after the Living Unit is vaedtand the reoccupancy of the
Apartment or Cottage.
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11.

12.

13.

14.

In addition, Trinity Oaks will retain as reimbursent for previously incurred
expenses on behalf of the Resident, a sum equal to:

0] The amount of medical expenses incurred byifiridaks for Resident's care during
the term of his/her residency, unpaid by Residedate of termination;

(i) The amount of any Monthly Maintenance Fee threo sums owed by Resident to
Trinity Oaks under this Agreement including lateuades:

(iii) The amount of any Monthly Maintenance Fee, ¢bllection of which may have been
deferred on behalf of Resident under Section &f&];

(iv) The cost of any extraordinary repairs or réfahing with respect to the Apartment or
Cottage, including the entries and doors, or atgraions required to restore the
Apartment or Cottage to standard design or comditio

(b) Multiple Residents. It is understood that witen persons are named in this Agreement,
reimbursement of the refundable portion of the &mte Fee, if any, and in accordance with
Section 10(a), will be made only after the ternimraof this Agreement.

Required Health Insurance Coverage. Resithafitraaintain Medicare Part A, Medicare Part B and

one supplemental health insurance policy or mairgguivalent insurance coverage comparable to
Medicare and approved by the Executive Directaisgure Resident's ability to cover such health care
related costs, and shall furnish to Trinity Oakislerice of such coverage as it may from time to time
request. In the event Resident is not eligiblel@es not qualify for Medicare Part A or Part B,
Resident shall maintain other health insuranceamat by Trinity Oaks. If insurance coverage is
provided through a managed health care policy,gefthe policy may dictate where the Resident
may receive health care services. If insurancemme is not maintained, or if Resident refuses
medical treatment, which, in the opinion of Resiteattending physician or the Medical Director is
medically required for the health of the Residerthe health or safety of other Residents of Tyinit
Oaks, the Executive Director may terminate Resldeight to reside at Trinity Oaks and terminate
this Agreement as provided in Section 8(f).

Religious Affiliation. Trinity Oaks is a nortegk, nonprofit North Carolina corporation sponsiog
Lutheran Services for the Aging, Inc., a not-foofiirsocial ministry agency serving senior adufts o
all faiths. It is affiliated with the North Carak Synod of the Evangelical Lutheran Church in
America, and is a 501(c)(3) tax exempt organizatioder the Internal Revenue Code. Lutheran
Services for the Aging will not be responsibletfae contractual obligations of Trinity Oaks. Thgbu
private contributions, Trinity Oaks expects to hdwem time to time, funds to assist Residents l;ab

to meet the full cost of the monthly fees, butahnot contract in advance for such assistance [see
Section 6(e)].

Funeral Expenses. Trinity Oaks will not bélkisfor the cost of the burial of the Residente thsts
of burial and related services shall be paid foth®yResident's estate, the Resident's relativether
agent designated by the Resident.

Personal Belongings. Jewelry and personalegsi&ms or effects brought into Trinity Oaks by the
Resident will remain the property of the Residaunless special arrangements are made in writing by
the Resident with the Executive Director, Trinitak3 will not be responsible for the loss or theft
thereof. Resident shall, prior to occupancy ofApartment or Cottage, make provisions in a lakt wi
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15.

16.

and testament for the final disposition of hisflueniture and possessions located at Trinity Ofaks,
burial and payment of funeral expenses and foagip@intment of a personal representative; and shall
deliver to the Director of Community Relations gpg®f the pertinent provisions of the Resident’s
Last Will and Testament at the time he/she comnsaceupancy. If removal of Resident's property
is not accomplished within thirty (30) days afemtination of residency, Trinity Oaks may remove
and place in storage with a bonded moving or sem@gnpany, all of Resident's property and
possessions, and Resident or Resident's estatiee asse may be, shall be charged for all costs
associated with the storage. These provisionsabgect to the rights of any remaining second
Apartment or Cottage Resident. Trinity Oaks shatlbe responsible for the loss of, or damage to,
any property belonging to the Resident due to th@fsterious disappearance, fire or any other cause
The Resident maintains the responsibility for atitej desired insurance protection covering any such
liability.

Indebtedness to Trinity Oaks and LSA AffiliateBo the extent allowed by applicable law, Trinity
Oaks and other LSC affiliates shall have a prefectaim against the estate of the Resident for any
care furnished or for any funds which may be adedrior the residency or care of the Resident which
may remain unpaid, and any personal property destate which the Resident owns shall stand as
security for and is hereby pledged to the paymeabhy unpaid claims due to Trinity Oaks and other
LSC affiliates. To the extent allowed by appli@law, the Resident for himself/herself, his/hérshe
and legal representatives, hereby waives any dndaiins which the Resident might have to
exemption and agrees that these personal assétbeshable for any debts owed Trinity Oaks and
other LSC affiliates by Resident.

Casualty Loss, Condemnation.

@) Total Destruction. If Resident's ApartmenCattage at Trinity Oaks is totally destroyed or
damaged by fire or other casualty not occurringulgh fault or negligence of Trinity Oaks or
those employed by or acting for Trinity Oaks, ttiet same cannot be repaired and restored
within a period of ninety (90) days, this Agreemsimall absolutely cease and terminate, and
the Monthly Maintenance Fee shall abate for tharxz of the term as of the date of the
casualty. Trinity Oaks will maintain "property"sarance coverage to cover the building and
contents losses sustained because of the necessanyation of operations from an insured
peril.

(b) Partial Destruction. If the damage causedeasribed in Section 16(a) above is only partial,
so that the Resident's Apartment or Cottage cardsonably restored within a period of
ninety (90) days to its condition prior to the pardestruction, Trinity Oaks may, at its
option, terminate this Agreement, provide alterretemporary housing, or restore Trinity
Oaks to such condition reserving the right to etiterApartment or Cottage for that purpose.

In any event, the Monthly Maintenance Fee shatkbleiced during the time Trinity Oaks is
in possession, taking into account the extent thatApartment or Cottage is rendered
untenable and the duration of Trinity Oaks' podeassTrinity Oaks will maintain "business
income" and "extra expense" insurance coverageverdosses sustained because of the
necessary suspension of operations from an ineed

(©) Condemnation. If Trinity Oaks is taken or centhed for a public or quasi-public use or a
deed in lieu is given, in whole or in part, so thaihity Oaks can no longer be operated
reasonably in the opinion of Trinity Oaks' Boardafectors, this Agreement shall terminate
as the date title shall rest in the condemnertlamionthly Maintenance Fee shall abate. In
the event of condemnation, the Resident waiveadaiths against Trinity Oaks, and Resident
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17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

22.

23.

agrees that he/she will not make or be entitlecartg claim or recovery against the
condemning authority.

Government Eligibilities. Should either TtinDaks or the Resident be eligible for federatesor
other funds on behalf of the Resident, nothinchis Agreement shall be construed so as to make
either party ineligible for such funds, and the iRest expressly waives any provision in this
Agreement which might now or hereafter be in cenflvith any federal, state or other law or
regulations, and agrees to apply for and coopéraibtaining such benefits.

Liability of Trinity Oaks. The death of the §@ent will cancel any and all obligations or liggiof
Trinity Oaks under the terms of this Agreement [Seetion 8(e)].

Rights of Management. The absolute rights of mament are reserved by Trinity Oaks. Trinity
Oaks reserves the right to accept or reject argopdor residency. The rights of the Residentsato
include any right to participate in the managenaoéftrinity Oaks, to determine admissions or terms
of admission of any other Resident, to alter comareas within Trinity Oaks, or to make unapproved
alterations to their Apartment or Cottage.

Durable Power of Attorney. Resident agreesarute under seal and maintain in effect a Durable
Power of Attorney that is valid under North Caralilaw and will survive Resident's incapacity or
mental incompetence. This Durable Power of Attpmay be effective only upon certification by a
licensed physician that Resident is incapacitatethentally incompetent, and shall designate as
Resident's attorney-in-fact a bank or some resptinpierson of his/her choice to act for him/her
managing his/her financial affairs and in filing fosurance and/or other benefits under private and
public assistance programs in as full and compl@t@nner as Resident could do if acting personally
for himself/herself. Resident shall deliver ayudkecuted original of this Durable Power of Atteyn

to Trinity Oaks prior to occupancy of the ApartmeniCottage.

Binding Effect. The covenants and conditiofthis Agreement shall bind and benefit respediivel
Trinity Oaks and its successors and assigns, asid&# and his/her heirs, personal representatives,
successors and assigns, except as herein othespésdied in this Agreement. This Agreement,
together with the rules and regulations provideddball constitute the full and entire Agreemenrt a
understanding between the parties. There are stocte®ns, promises, warranties, covenants or
undertakings, other than those set forth or refieimén this Agreement. This Agreement, the ExRibi

to this Agreement, and other documents and Agretsmrerfierred to herein supersede all prior
Agreements and undertakings between the partiésraspect to this subject matter.

Interruptions. Trinity Oaks shall not be requitegerform any condition, term or covenant in this
Agreement so long as such performance is delaypreoented by force majeure, which shall mean
acts of God, strikes, material or labor shortagdailures, lockouts, restrictions by any governtaén
authority, civil riot, floods and any other caus# reasonably within the control of Trinity Oaksdan
which by the exercise of ordinary care Trinity Oaksunable, wholly or in part, to prevent or
overcome.

Severability. If any clause or provision of thigi&ement should be illegal, invalid or unenforceabl
these provisions shall be deemed to be severabdl¢harvremainder of this Agreement shall not be
affected by this action. In lieu of the claus@mvision that is illegal, invalid, or unenforcealthere
shall be substituted a clause or provision as aimmil terms to the illegal, invalid, or unenforckeab
clause or provision as may be legal, valid andreefible. No amendment of this Agreement will be
valid and enforceable unless in writing and exetbigthe Executive Director and Resident except
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24,

25.

26.

27.

28.

29.

that management may amend this Agreement fromtortime so that this Agreement complies with
applicable laws, rules and regulations of the Fad&tate or local government.

Governing Law. This Agreement will be goverfigydand construed under the laws of the State of
North Carolina.

Execution. This Agreement has been executdxtbalf of Trinity Oaks by its duly authorized agen
No officer, director, agent or employee of Triniyks shall have any personal liability hereunder to
Resident under any circumstances.

Waiver. No waiver of any term or conditiontbfs Agreement shall be effective unless made in
writing and executed by the parties to the AgreegmbBior shall any waivers be deemed to excuse the
performance of any act other than those specificaferred to in the written notice of waiver. Any
failure of Trinity Oaks to insist upon strict andfwompt performance of the requirements, covenants
terms or conditions of this Agreement, and/or teeptance of such performance thereafter, will not
constitute or be construed as a waiver or thegelshment of Trinity Oaks' right to thereafter ento

the same strictly in the event of a continuingudrsequent default on the part of the Resident.

Interpretation. The captions contained hereirf@areonvenience and reference only and in no way
define, limit, or describe the scope or intent loik tAgreement or affect any of the terms and
provisions of this Agreement. Any reference exgeesn any gender shall be deemed to include each
of the other genders, and the singular shall benddeo include the plural and vice versa, unless th
context otherwise requires.

Notice. All notices and other communication heairshall be in writing and shall be deemed given
if delivered personally or mailed by first classihfpostage paid) to the persons at the following
addresses (or at such other address for a pastyadidhe specified by like notice):
@) If to Trinity Oaks:
() LUTHERAN RETIREMENT CENTER - SALISBURY, INC.

d/b/a TRINITY OAKS

728 Klumac Road

Salisbury, North Carolina 28144-5714
(b) If to the Resident:

0] If before Occupancy, as follows:

(i) If after Occupancy, at the Apartment or Cottag

Multiple Originals. This Agreement shall be exexlin multiple originals, so that each Resident and
Trinity Oaks shall retain an original, fully exeedtdocument.
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30. Acknowledgment of Receipt. Resident acknowledbashe has received an executed copy of this
Agreement, including Addendums | through IV.

31. IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto dulyoeed this Agreement as of the day and year first
above written.

LUTHERAN RETIREMENT CENTER —
SALISBURY, INC., d/b/a/

TRINITY OAKS
By:
Witness Executive Director
Witness Resident
Witness Resident

Date:
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ADDENDUM |

RESERVATION AGREEMENT
FOR AN APARTMENT
TRINITY OAKS- SALISBURY

THIS RESERVATION AGREEMENT is made this day of
, between LUTHERAN RETIREMENT CENTER - SSBURY, INC., a North Carolina nonprofit
corporation operating under the name of Trinity Qalad

(herein
individually or collectively called “Resident”)f & husband and wife or two other persons dedidishare an
Apartment at Trinity Oaks enter into this Agreemehe term Resident shall apply to them jointly and
severally and to the survivor of them.

WHEREAS, Trinity Oaks owns and operates the retmgincommunity located at 728 Klumac Road
in Salisbury, Rowan County, North Carolina; and

WHEREAS, Resident desires to reserve the living (idipartment”) located at Trinity Oaks and
designated in the Reservation Agreement, and ¥riDédks desires to make such Apartment available to
Resident;

NOW, THEREFORE, Resident and Trinity Oaks agrefolewys:

APARTMENT RESERVATION. Resident agrees to reserve Apartment number ,
a Apartment. nRéigm is contingent upon any prior
reservation received by a current resident fdkaadinit and the current resident shall have figsttr
of refusal to proceed with a new Residency Agregmithin 7 days.

. PROJECTED DATE OF OCCUPANCY. Resident estimates the projected date of occypdnc
the Apartment to be on or about , .

. ADMISSIONS PROCEDURES.

A. Application Forms. Within thirty (30) days afexecution of this Reservation Agreement, the
Resident agrees to submit an Application for Adioissa Personal Health History and a
Confidential Financial Statement on forms provithgdr rinity Oaks. Updated forms may be
required within thirty (30) days of occupancy.

B. Personal Interview. The Resident shall have seruiew with a representative from Trinity
Oaks prior to an Admissions Committee review.

C. Admissions Committee Review. The Admissions Cottamiwill review the Application
Forms as a basis for initial acceptance for adoms$o Trinity Oaks. The Admissions
Committee will accept or deny the application basethe criteria and policies established by
the Board of Directors. The Executive Directorapresentative appointed by Trinity Oaks will
notify the Resident in writing of the action takeythe Admissions Committee.



V.

VI.

Residency Agreement. At the time of executiothif Reservation Agreement, the Resident
will be provided a copy of the Residency Agreenieciuided in the Disclosure Statement. The
Resident shall execute the Residency Agreemeninatith (10) days of notification of initial
acceptance by the Admissions Committee.

Disclosure Statement. Upon execution of this Redi®n Agreement, Trinity Oaks shall
provide the Resident a copy of the Disclosure $tatg which fully describes the organization,
facilities, policies, services, fees, financial diiion, projections, and other vital information.

FINANCIAL ARRANGEMENTS

A. Entrance Fee. The Resident agrees to pay Yridiks an Entrance Fee equal to
$ under the Entrance Fee Refund Plan
as a condition of becoming a Resident. The amandtterms of the Entrance Fee shall be
paid as follows:

1. Reservation Deposit. A Reservation Deposit of ®neusand Dollars ($1,000.00)
is paid upon the execution of this Reservationeggrent by the Resident.

2. Ten Percent (10%) Deposit. An amount equangercent (10%) of the Entrance
Fee, less the One Thousand Dollar ($1,000.00) Raten Deposit, or
$ , is due and payable withifli@ndays of Resident having

received written notice of initial acceptance by fkdmissions Committee.

3. Balance of the Entrance Fee. The balance efty{80%) of the total Entrance Fee
will be due and payable within ninety (90) daystlod date of this Reservation
Agreement or one (1) day prior to occupancy of Ajpartment by the Resident,
unless otherwise agreed to in writing by Trinityk®a

B. Monthly Maintenance Fee. In addition to therBnte Fee, the Resident agrees to pay a
Monthly Maintenance Fee. As of the date of thisdReation Agreement, the Monthly
Maintenance Fee for the Apartment is $ per month for the
first Resident, and an additional $ per month if a second
Resident occupies the Apartment. The Monthly Maiatee Fee will begin within ninety
(90) days of the date of this Reservation Agreeroenpon occupancy of the Apartment by
the Resident, whichever first occurs, unless otlsenagreed to in writing by Trinity Oaks.

TERMINATION AND REFUND. The Resident may terminate this Agreement poientering
into the Residency Agreement for any reason bygiwiritten notice to Trinity Oaks. The Resident
shall be refunded the entire amount of the Reserv&iee of One Thousand Dollars ($1,000.00),
minus a processing fee of Five Hundred Dollars (880), within thirty (30) days of such notice.

PRELIMINARY AGREEMENT. The Residency Agreement is preliminary in natane

precedent to the Residency Agreement which willehtered into within ten (10) days upon
notification of initial acceptance by the Admissso@ommittee.



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Trinity Oaks and Resident haxecuted this Agreement and the
Reservation Deposit of One Thousand Dollars ($1@@thas been paid as of the day and year firstenri
above.

Witness Resident

Witness Resident

Current Address (Number and Street)

City, State, Zip Code

Telephone

LUTHERAN RETIREMENT CENTER - SALISBURY, INC.
d/b/a TRINITY OAKS

Signature

Title

Date






ADDENDUM |11

RESERVATION AGREEMENT
FOR A COTTAGE
TRINITY OAKS- SALISBURY

THIS RESERVATION AGREEMENT is made this y dé
, between LUTHERAN RETIREMENT CENTER - SALISRY, INC., a North Carolina nonproflt
corporation operatlng under the name of Trinity §and

rein(imedividually or collectively called “Resident’If a
husband and wife or two other persons desirinénesa Cottage at Trinity Oaks enter into this &grent, the term
Resident shall apply to them jointly and severatig to the survivor of them.

WHEREAS, Trinity Oaks owns and operates the retmethntommunity located at 728 Klumac Road in
Salisbury, Rowan County, North Carolina; and

WHEREAS, Resident desires a Cottage located aityf Mraks and designated in the Reservation Agreemen
and Trinity Oaks desires to make such Cottage @vailto Resident;

NOW, THEREFORE, Resident and Trinity Oaks agrefolewys:

COTTAGE RESERVATION. Resident agrees to reserve the Cottage at . A Cottage
Reservation must be accompanied by a deposit off@oasand Dollars ($1,000.00) upon the execution of
this Reservation Agreement by the Resident. Rafiervis contingent upon any prior reservation inesgb
from a current resident for a like unit and therent resident will have first right of refusal tmopeed with a
new Residency Agreement within 7 days after theisgof this Agreement.

. PROJECTED DATE OF OCCUPANCY. Resident estimates the prOJected date of occypudrtice Cottage
to be on or about ,

. ADMISSIONS PROCESS. Trinity Oaks and Resident agree to proceed withadmissions process as
outlined below:

A. Application Forms. Within thirty (30) days aftetezution of this Reservation Agreement, the Residen
agrees to submit an Application for Admission, esBeal Health History and a Confidential Financial
Statement on forms provided by Trinity Oaks. Upddbrms may be required within thirty (30) days of
occupancy.

B. Personal Interview. The Resident shall have arvigw with a representative from Trinity Oaks prio
to an Admissions Committee review.

C. Admissions Committee Review. The Admissions Cormaitvill review the Application Forms as a
basis for initial acceptance for admission to Tyitaks. The Admissions Committee will accept or
deny the application based on the criteria andcigsliestablished by the Board of Directors. The
Executive Director or representative appointed bigifly Oaks will notify the Resident in writing dfie
action taken by the Admissions Committee.




V.

va

D. Residency Agreement. At the time of executiorhif Reservation Agreement, the Resident will be
provided a copy of the Residency Agreement includeide Disclosure Statement. The Resident shall
execute the Residency Agreement within ten (10% ddynotification of initial acceptance by the
Admissions Committee.

E. Disclosure Statement. Upon execution of this Rediem Agreement, Trinity Oaks shall provide the
Resident a copy of the Disclosure Statement whitth describes the organization, facilities, p@gi
services, fees, financial condition, projectiong] ather vital information.

FINANCIAL ARRANGEMENTS

A. Entrance Fee. The Resident agrees to pay ¥ridaks an Entrance Fee equal to
$ under the Entrance Fee Refund Plan as a
condition of becoming a Resident. The amount andg of the Entrance Fee shall be paid as follows:

1. Reservation Deposit. A Reservation Deposit of ®neusand Dollars ($1,000.00)
is paid upon the execution of this Reservationeggrent by the Resident.

2. Ten Percent (10%) Deposit. An amount equargercent (10%) of the Entrance Fee, less
the One Thousand Dollar ($1,000.00) ReservatioroBigmr $ ,is due

and payable within ten (10) days of Resident havieggived written notice of initial
acceptance by the Admissions Committee. Paymeludgprior to any work for any options
or custom features..

3. Balance of the Entrance Fee. The balance ety{®0%) of the total Entrance Fee will be
due and payable within one hundred and twenty )(#129s of the date of this Reservation
Agreement or one (1) day prior to occupancy ofGb#age by the Resident, unless otherwise
agreed to in writing by Trinity Oaks.

B. Monthly Maintenance Fee. In addition to therBnte Fee, the Resident agrees to pay a Monthly
Maintenance Fee. As of the date of this Resemvatgreement, the Monthly Maintenance Fee for the
Cottage is $ per month for theResident, and an additional $
per month if a second Resident occupies the CotfdgeMonthly Maintenance Fee will begin within
ninety (90) days of the date of this Reservatiome&gent or upon occupancy of the Cottage by the
Resident, whichever first occurs, unless othenageed to in writing by Trinity Oaks.

TERMINATION AND REFUND.

The Resident may terminate this Agreement pri@rti@ring

into the Residency Agreement for any reason byngiwviritten notice to Trinity Oaks. The Resident
shall be refunded the entire amount of the CotRgservation Deposit of One Thousand Dollars
($1,000.00), minus a processing fee of Five Hundrelfars ($500.00), within thirty (30) days of
such notice.

PRELIMINARY AGREEMENT. This Reservation Agreement is preliminary in matand
precedent to the Residency Agreement which willebéered into within ten (10) days upon
notification of initial acceptance by the Admissso@ommittee.




IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Trinity Oaks and Resident haxecuted this Agreement and the Cottage
Reservation of One Thousand Dollars ($1,000.00kas paid as of the day and year first writtervabo

Witness Resident

Witness Resident

Current Address (Number and Street)

City, State, Zip Code

Telephone

LUTHERAN RETIREMENT CENTER - SALISBURY, INC.
d/b/a TRINITY OAKS

Signature

Title

Date






ADDENDUM I

TRINITY OAKS
DESIGNATION OF ENTRANCE FEE REFUND

This Addendum is made between and Lutheran
Retirement Center - Salisbury, Inc. (d/b/a Trinity Oaks). Disbursement of refunds will be made
in accordance with the terms of the Residency Agreement and with the following provision:

ALL REFUNDSWILL BE PAID TO THE RESIDENT OR THE ESTATE IN CARE OF:

Name

Street or P. O. Box

City, State, Zip

Phone

Signature Date

Signature Date






ADDENDUM IV

RECEIPT OF THE DISCLOSURE STATEMENT
OF LUTHERAN RETIREMENT CENTER - SALISBURY, INC.
KNOWN AS “TRINITY OAKS”

I , with this statement,
acknowledge receipt of the Disclosure Statement of Trinity Oaks Retirement Community dated
March 1, 2019. This statement was made available to me prior to signing the Residency
Agreement for Trinity Oaks.

Name

Name

Address

City, State, Zip

Date
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Independent Auditors’ Report

Board of Trustees
Lutheran Services for the Aging, Inc. and
Lutheran Family Services in the Carolinas and Affiliates

Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Lutheran Services for the Aging,
Inc. and Lutheran Family Services in the Carolinas (nonprofit organizations) and Affiliates (the
"Organizations"), which comprise the consolidated balance sheets as of September 30, 2018 and 2017,
and the related consolidated statements of operations and changes in net assets, and cash flows for the
years then ended, and the related notes to the consolidated financial statements.

Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America;
this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation
and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits.
We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from
material misstatement. The financial statements of Lutheran Services for the Aging, Inc., LSA Management,
Inc., LSA Pharmacy, Inc., Lutheran Home - Albemarle, Inc., Lutheran Home - Hickory, Inc., Lutheran Home
at Trinity Oaks, Inc., Lutheran Home - Hickory West, Inc., Lutheran Home - Winston Salem, Inc., Lutheran
Home -Forsyth County, Inc., Lutheran Home - Wilmington, Inc., Lutheran Home Albemarle Property, Inc.,
Lutheran Home Hickory Property, Inc., Lutheran Home at Trinity Oaks Property, Inc., Lutheran Home
Hickory West Property, Inc., Lutheran Home Winston-Salem Property, Inc., Lutheran Home - Forsyth
County Property, Inc., Lutheran Home Wilmington Property, Inc., Lutheran Services Property, Inc.,
Lutheran Retirement Center -Salisbury, Inc., Lutheran Retirement Center -Wilmington, Inc., Lutheran
Retirement Center at Lutheridge, Inc., LSA Elms at Tanglewood, Inc., LSA Elms Property, Inc., Lutheran
Services for the Aging Foundation, Inc., Abundant Living Adult Day Services, Inc., LSA Therapy, Inc., Trinity
at Home, Inc., Trinity Guardian Services, Inc. and LFS Real Properties, Inc. were not audited in accordance
with Government Auditing Standards.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
entity's preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the consolidated financial position of the Organizations, as of September 30, 2018 and 2017, and the results
of their operations, changes in their net assets and their cash flows for the years then ended in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Other Matters — Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated financial statements as
a whole. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards, as required by Title 2 U.S. Code
of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit
Requirements for Federal Awards (the “Uniform Guidance”), is not a required part of the consolidated
financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and
relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the consolidated financial
statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling
such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the consolidated
financial statements or to the consolidated financial statements themselves, and other additional
procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In
our opinion, the information is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the consolidated financial
statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated January 25,
2019, on our consideration of Lutheran Family Services in the Carolinas, Inc., Mountain Ridge Home, Inc.
and Whittecar Home Inc.'s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of
that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or
on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards in considering Lutheran Family Services in the Carolinas, Mountain Ridge Home, Inc. and
Whittecar Home Inc.'s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Raleigh, North Carolina
January 25, 2019



Lutheran Services for the Aging, Inc. and

Lutheran Family Services in the Carolinas and Affiliates
Consolidated Balance Sheets

September 30, 2018 and 2017

2018 2017
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 8,976,097 $ 11,144,072
Investments 22,688,759 21,260,694
Accounts receivable, residents and clients, net of
allowance for doubtful accounts of approximately
$1,200,000 and $580,000 in 2018 and 2017, respectively 10,368,677 9,866,265
Current portion of other receivables 2,641,593 3,630,060
Inventories 1,003,780 967,507
Prepaid expenses 480,969 464,703
Residents' funds 120,853 115,393
Total current assets 46,280,728 47,448,694
Assets limited as to use:
Investments - donor restricted endowment funds 3,226,332 3,047,098
Investments - temporarily restricted 4,281,068 3,762,773
Investments - board designated funds 7,673,229 7,169,035
Assets limited to use - operating reserve requirement 1,705,032 1,490,441
Bond funds 3,636,979 3,834,720
Assets restricted by donor for investment in property and equipment 1,960,323 2,442,152
Total assets limited as to use 22,482,963 21,746,219
Property and equipment, net 104,699,164 102,720,652
Assets held for sale 110,800 110,800
Other receivables, less current portion, net 276,176 348,815
Other assets 1,151,440 1,104,169
Total assets $ 175,001,271 $ 173,479,349

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.



Lutheran Services for the Aging, Inc. and

Lutheran Family Services in the Carolinas and Affiliates
Consolidated Balance Sheets

September 30, 2018 and 2017

(Continued)

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
Current liabilities:
Current maturities of long-term debt
Current maturities of obligations under capital leases
Current portion of split-interest liability
Accounts payable, trade
Accrued salaries and payroll taxes
Accrued health benefits
Accrued interest payable
Refundable fees - current
Other accrued liabilities
Residents' funds liability
Total current liabilities

Long-term liabilities:
Long-term debt, less current maturities
Long-term maturities of obligations under capital leases
Refundable fees
Deferred revenue from advance fees
Fair value of interest rate swap agreement
Split-interest liability
Total long-term liabilities

Total liabilities

Net assets:
Unrestricted:
Unrestricted, undesignated
Unrestricted, board designated funds
Total unrestricted
Temporarily restricted
Permanently restricted
Total net assets

Total liabilities and net assets

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.

2018 2017
$ 3,835,788 $ 3,602,359
33,939 73,639
49,000 49,000
2,868,164 2,750,749
5,419,457 5,416,445
467,493 420,197
318,805 290,030
923,987 871,586
1,169,460 1,033,776
120,853 115,393
15,206,946 14,623,174
70,835,387 73,286,238
55,021 21,808
7,870,967 8,311,778
7,500,443 6,821,368
892,473 1,405,176
663,250 687,650
87,817,541 90,534,018
103,024,487 105,157,192
53,837,197 50,854,110
7,673,229 7,169,035
61,510,426 58,023,145
7,240,026 7,332,646
3,226,332 2,966,366
71,976,784 68,322,157

$ 175,001,271

$ 173,479,349




Lutheran Services for the Aging, Inc. and
Lutheran Family Services in the Carolinas and Affiliates

Consolidated Statements of Operations and Changes in Net Assets

Years Ended September 30, 2018 and 2017

Changes in unrestricted net assets:
Revenues and other support:

Net patient service revenue
Amortization of deferred entrance fees
Service fees - state, county and other
Federal grants and other
Net assets released from restrictions

for operating purposes
Other revenue

Total revenue

Expenses:
Salaries and wages
Employee benefits
Supplies and other
Medicaid bed assessment
Marketing expense
Depreciation and amortization
Interest expense
Total operating costs and expenses

Operating income (loss)

Nonoperating gains (losses):
Investment income
Unrealized gains on investments
Net loss on disposal of property and equipment
Market value adjustment on swap agreement
Contributions
Loss on early extinguishment of long-term debt

Total nonoperating gains

Excess of revenue over expenses

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.

2018 2017
$ 100,493,736  $ 98,288,106
1,379,617 1,141,132
12,420,546 11,193,066
3,930,350 2,852,208
346,054 374,207
2,036,157 1,640,019
120,606,460 115,488,738
58,317,922 55,482,486
10,717,685 10,132,217
38,689,290 36,244,372
2,394,877 2,411,335
433,360 406,828
6,715,056 6,556,532
3,578,446 3,321,611
120,846,636 114,555,381
(240,176) 933,357
1,085,704 759,244
1,281,886 2,512,955
(87,302) (1,167,400)
512,703 689,297
692,874 642,685
- (550,933)

3,485,865 2,885,848
3,245,689 3,819,205




Lutheran Services for the Aging, Inc. and

Lutheran Family Services in the Carolinas and Affiliates
Consolidated Statements of Operations and Changes in Net Assets
Years Ended September 30, 2018 and 2017

(Continued)

2018 2017
Excess of revenue over expenses $ 3,245,689 $ 3,819,205
Other changes in unrestricted net assets:
Net asset transfer 15,756 (113,026)
Net asset released from restrictions for capital purposes 1,529,043 -
Non-recurring transaction (1,303,207) -
Change in unrestricted net assets 3,487,281 3,706,179
Changes in temporarily restricted net assets:
Contributions and grants 1,337,909 1,319,035
Investment income 208,206 106,294
Unrealized gains on investments 252,116 573,307
Net asset transfer (15,756) 8,015
Net assets released from restrictions (1,875,095) (374,207)
Change in temporarily restricted net assets (92,620) 1,632,444
Changes in permanently restricted net assets:
Investment income 5,329 7,759
Unrealized gains on investments 3,378 3,301
Contributions 251,259 14,710
Net asset transfer - 105,011
Change in permanently restricted net assets 259,966 130,781
Change in net assets 3,654,627 5,469,404
Net assets at beginning of year 68,322,157 62,852,753
Net assets at end of year $ 71,976,784 $ 68,322,157

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.



Lutheran Services for the Aging, Inc. and

Lutheran Family Services in the Carolinas and Affiliates
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Year ended September 30, 2018 with comparative total for 2017

Cash flows from operating activities:
Change in net assets
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net cash
provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization
Amortization of debt issuance costs and discount
Loss on early extinguishment of debt
Net loss on disposal and impairment of equipment
Provision for bad debt
Amortization of deferred entrance fees
Receipt of non-refundable entrance fees
Market value adjustment on swap agreement
Equity in income
Realized gains on investments
Unrealized gains on investments
Contributions received restricted for long-term purposes
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable, residents and clients
Other receivables
Other assets
Accounts payable and other accrued liabilities
Other liabilities
Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchase of property and equipment
Proceeds from sale of property and equipment
Purchase of investments
Proceeds from sale of investments
Dividends received from equity investment
Change in operating reserve requirement
Change in bond funds

Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from issuance of debt obligations
Payment of bond issuance costs
Principal payments on debt
Receipt of refundable entrance fees
Refunds of refundable fees
Payments on obligations under capital leases and other liabilities
Contributions received restricted for long-term purposes
Net cash used in financing activities

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year

Supplemental cash flow disclosure information:
Interest paid, net of amounts capitalized
Capital leases entered into during the year

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.

2018 2017
$ 3,654,627 $ 5469404
6,715,056 6,556,532
59,880 96,972

- 550,933

87,302 1,167,400
1,328,661 958,611
(1,379,617) (1,141,132)
2,953,963 3,079,096
(512,703) (689,297)
(329,733) (178,400)
(79,955) (873,297)
(1,537,380) (3,089,563)
- (899,431)
(1,831,073) (1,918,919)
1,061,106 (384,060)
(61,919) (219,853)
332,182 233,652
4,375 -
10,464,772 8,718,648
(8,765,476) (6,027,513)
55,844 -
(4,235,246) (33,143,520)
3,704,622 34,093,246
265,132 136,000
(214,591) 90,559
197,741 (313,997)
(8,991,974) (5,165,225)
572,025 33,940,394

- (224,006)
(2,849,327) (36,832,917)
603,362 920,490
(1,891,418) (1,602,542)
(75,415) (108,943)

- 899,431
(3,640,773) (3,008,093)
(2,167,975) 545,330
11,144,072 10,598,742
$ 8976097 $ 11,144,072
$ 3414194 $ 3,224,083
$§ 49988 § -




Lutheran Services for the Aging, Inc. and
Lutheran Family Services in the Carolinas and Affiliates
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

1. Operations and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Nature of Organization

Effective July 1, 2011, Lutheran Services for the Aging, Inc. and Lutheran Family Services in the Carolinas and
Affiliates (the "Organizations") underwent an organizational restructure forming a collective ministry. Lutheran
Services for the Aging, Inc. and Lutheran Family Services in the Carolinas and Affiliates are affiliated with the
Evangelical Lutheran Church in America ("ELCA"). The financial statements are presented on a consolidated basis
due to the existence of both an economic interest and control.

Lutheran Services for the Aging, Inc. and Affiliates ("LSA") is a nonprofit senior services provider throughout North
Carolina. LSA is supported primarily through service fees, contributions, and investment earnings. LSA owns and
operates seven nursing homes, two retirement centers, one assisted living residence, an adult day services
program, home care services, and provides associated ancillary and management services.

Lutheran Family Services in the Carolinas and Affiliates ("LFS") is a nonprofit child and family services organization.
LFS has various types of programs (adoption, partnership initiatives, community based counseling and family
services, foster care, inmate/family consultation and support, disaster response, refugee and immigration services,
residential services for adults, and residential services for children) which provide services throughout North
Carolina and South Carolina. LFS is supported primarily through service fees, contributions, and grants. LFS is
managed by LSA under a management agreement.

Program of All-Inclusive Care for the Elderly

LSA is a sponsoring member of three nonprofit organizations PACE @ Home, Inc., Senior TLC, Inc. and Community
Senior Care. The nonprofits provide services to seniors through Program of All-Inclusive Care for the Elderly
("PACE") programs. PACE programs provide comprehensive long term services and supports to Medicaid and
Medicare enrollees. An interdisciplinary team of health professionals provides individuals with coordinated care.

LSA has guaranteed $1,200,000 of PACE @ Home, Inc.'s debt which became due beginning August 28, 2016. LSA
would be obligated to perform under this guarantee should PACE @ Home, Inc. fail to make required payments to
the lender when due. As of September 30, 2018 and 2017 PACE @ Home, Inc. was current on its debt.

During 2012, LSA entered into a revolving credit agreement with Senior TLC, Inc. as the lender for an amount not
to exceed $1,000,000 at any one time with an interest rate of 5% per annum; interest began to accrue January 1,
2016. Principal payments equal to the excess of cash above 60 days cash on hand will begin the month following
the month in which Senior TLC, Inc. achieves 60 days cash on hand. As of September 30, 2018 and 2017 the line
had a balance of $693,282 and $821,805, respectively.

Unity Senior Care Group, LLC

LSA is a 6.7% member of Unity Senior Care Group, LLC ("Unity"). Unity was formed in 2011 as a risk purchasing
group, consisting of LSA and fifteen other nonprofit healthcare facilities. Unity administers and facilitates the
purchase of group insurance, currently limited to professional, general liability, and workers compensation on behalf
of its members. Each member has its own individual policy with the respective insurance company. The investment
in Unity is accounted for at cost. There were no capital contributions nor any income (loss) for Unity in 2018 or
2017.

Trinity Rehab, LLC

LSA has a 50% equity interest in Trinity Rehab, LLC. Formed during 2013, Trinity Rehab, LLC provides therapeutic
services for residents of LSA. As of September 30, 2018 and 2017, the investment with Trinity Rehab, LLC was
$447,219 and $382,604, respectively, and is accounted for under the equity method of accounting. Condensed
financial information for Trinity Rehab, LLC at September 30:



Lutheran Services for the Aging, Inc. and
Lutheran Family Services in the Carolinas and Affiliates
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

50% equity interest

2018 Trinity Rehab, LLC (LSA) Therapy, Inc.
Assets $ 1,362,788 $ 681,394
Liabilities 468,350 234,175
Equity 894,438 447,219
Net income 659,466 329,733
50% equity interest
2017 Trinity Rehab, LLC (LSA) Therapy, Inc.
Assets $ 1,151,047 $ 575,524
Liabilities 385,839 192,920
Equity 765,208 382,604
Net income 356,801 178,400

At September 30, 2018 and 2017 the Organizations had $526,865 and $546,745, respectively, in accounts payable
due to Trinity Rehab, LLC. In both 2018 and 2017, the Organizations had incurred approximately $6.6 million in
expenses to Trinity Rehab, LLC for rehabilitative services, included under the supplies and other expense line item.

Income Taxes

Substantially all Affiliates of LSA and LFS are organized as North Carolina nonprofit organizations and are exempt
from income taxes under Internal Revenue Code (IRC) Section 50I(c)(3) under a group exemption of the ELCA.
LFS Real Properties, Inc. is exempt under IRC Section 501(c)(2).

The Organizations record a liability for any tax position taken that is beneficial to the Organizations, including any
related interest and penalties, when it is more likely than not the position of management with respect to a
transaction or class of transactions will be overturned by a taxing authority upon examination. Management believes
there are no such positions as of September 30, 2018.

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated statements include balances of Lutheran Services for the Aging, Inc., Lutheran Family Services
in the Carolinas, LSA Management, Inc., LSA Pharmacy, Inc., Lutheran Home - Albemarle, Inc., Lutheran Home -
Hickory, Inc., Lutheran Home at Trinity Oaks, Inc., Lutheran Home - Hickory West, Inc., Lutheran Home - Winston
Salem, Inc., Lutheran Home - Forsyth County, Inc., Lutheran Home - Wilmington, Inc., Lutheran Home Albemarle
Property, Inc., Lutheran Home Hickory Property, Inc., Lutheran Home Trinity Oaks Property, Inc., Lutheran Home
Hickory West Property, Inc., Lutheran Home Winston-Salem Property, Inc., Lutheran Home Forsyth County
Property, Inc., Lutheran Home Wilmington Property, Inc., Lutheran Services Property, Inc., Lutheran Retirement
Center - Salisbury, Inc., Lutheran Retirement Center - Wilmington, Inc., Lutheran Retirement Center at Lutheridge,
Inc., LSA Elms at Tanglewood, Inc., LSA Elms Property, Inc., Lutheran Services for the Aging Foundation, Inc.,
Abundant Living Adult Day Services, Inc., LSA Therapy, Inc., Trinity at Home, Inc., Trinity Guardian Services, Inc.,
LFS Real Properties, Inc., Mountain Ridge Home, Inc., and Whittecar Home, Inc. Transactions between affiliated
organizations are eliminated in the consolidation financial statements.

Basis of Presentation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting. In preparing its
financial statements, net assets and revenues, expenses, gains, and losses are classified based on the existence
or absence of donor-imposed restrictions. Accordingly, net assets and the changes therein are classified and
reported as follows:

Unrestricted net assets - Net assets that are not subject to donor-imposed stipulations.

Temporarily restricted net assets - Net assets subject to donor-imposed stipulations that may or will be met
either by management actions of the Organizations and/or by the passage of time.



Lutheran Services for the Aging, Inc. and
Lutheran Family Services in the Carolinas and Affiliates
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Permanently restricted net assets - Net assets subject to donor-imposed stipulations that they be maintained
permanently by the Organizations. Generally, the donors of these assets permit the Organizations to use all
or part of the earnings on related investments for general or specific purposes.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

LSA and LFS consider all unrestricted short-term investments with an original maturity of three months or less when
purchased to be cash equivalents. The Organizations maintain their cash accounts with high quality financial
institutions, which at times, exceed federally insured limits. They have not experienced any losses in such accounts
and do not believe they are exposed to any significant credit risk on cash.

Net Service Fees
Net service fees for the Organizations are reported at the estimated net realizable amounts from clients, third party
payors and others for services rendered.

LSA provides services to patients covered under the Medicaid and Medicare programs. LFS provides services to
clients utilizing Medicaid and through contractual arrangements with managed care organizations for developmental
disabilities, mental health, and substance abuse services and others located in North and South Carolina. During
2018 and 2017, approximately 52% of net service revenue was derived from services provided under these
arrangements. Likewise, a substantial portion of accounts receivable are due from these agencies. Management
does not believe there are significant credit risks with these programs.

Payment arrangements include prospectively determined rates. However, federal and state regulations provide for
certain retroactive adjustments, to current and prior years' payment rates, based on industry-wide and entity-specific
data. Provisions for estimated third-party settlements are provided in the period the related services are rendered.
Any differences between estimated final settlement amounts and actual final settlements are recorded in the year
the final settlement is determined.

The Organizations perform an evaluation of the collectability of net revenues recorded and records an allowance
for doubtful accounts. Provisions for doubtful accounts is primarily estimated based on cash collection analysis by
payor classification and the age of the account. When considering the adequacy of allowances for doubtful
accounts, receivable balances are routinely reviewed in conjunction with historical collection rates, industry trends,
and other business and economic conditions that might reasonably be expected to affect the collectability of
accounts. Accounts receivable are written off after collection efforts have been pursued in accordance with
established policies and procedures.

Inventory
Inventory consists of pharmaceutical, medical, housekeeping, and dietary supplies and is stated at the lower of cost
(first-in, first-out) or net realizable value.

Investments

Investments in marketable securities with readily determinable fair values and all investments in debt securities are
reported at their fair values on the consolidated balance sheets. Management believes investments to be trading
securities and as such unrealized gains and losses are included in the performance indicator.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The carrying amount of cash and cash equivalents approximates its fair value. The fair value of the Organizations’
investments is presented in Note 8 and is based on quoted market prices. The carrying values of accounts
receivable, third-party reserves, other receivables, accounts payable, and accrued expenses approximate fair value
due to the short-term nature of these instruments. The fair value of the long-term debt was estimated using
discounted cash flows based on market yield on comparable bonds for a similar type of borrowing arrangement.
The Organizations’ debt carrying values approximate fair values of those obligations.

10



Lutheran Services for the Aging, Inc. and
Lutheran Family Services in the Carolinas and Affiliates
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Fair Market Measurements

The Organizations follow the Fair Value Measurements accounting standard. Under this standard, fair value is
defined as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants.

The fair value hierarchy consists of three levels of inputs that may be used to measure fair value as follows:

e Level 1 - Inputs that utilize quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
that the Organizations have the ability to access.

e Level 2 - Inputs that include quoted prices for similar assets and liabilities in active markets and inputs
that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly, for substantially the full term of the
financial instrument. Fair values for these instruments are estimated using pricing models, quoted prices
of securities with similar characteristics, or discounted cash flows.

e Level 3 - Inputs that are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability, which are typically based on an
entity's own assumptions, as there is little, if any, related market activity.

In instances where the determination of the fair value measurement is based on inputs from different levels of the
fair value hierarchy, the level in the fair value hierarchy within which the entire fair value measurement falls is based
on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement in its entirety.

Additionally, from time to time, the Organizations may be required to record at fair value other assets on a
nonrecurring basis in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. These adjustments to fair value
usually result from the application of the lower-of-cost-or-market accounting or write down of individual assets.

Assets Limited as to Use

Assets limited as to use, reported at fair value, include donor restricted endowment funds, assets temporarily
restricted for long-term purposes, assets reserved in accordance with statutory operating reserve requirements,
bond funds restricted under debt agreements - (money market funds, fixed income and U.S. Government
Securities), and funds designated by the Board of Trustees for future capital improvements, over which the Board
retains control and may at its discretion subsequently use for other purposes .

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment expenditures are capitalized at cost. The Organizations' capitalization policy requires
individual assets greater than $1,000 for LSA and $2,500 for LFS with a useful life of two or more years to be
capitalized. Depreciation of property and equipment is provided for by the straight-line method over the following
estimated useful lives:

Years
Land improvements 5-25
Buildings 27 -40
Building improvements 20
Certificate of need 15
Leasehold improvements and furnishings and equipment 5
Computer software 3-5
Automotive equipment 5

Leasehold improvements are depreciated using the shorter of their useful life or the lease term.
Interest costs incurred on borrowed funds during the period of construction of capital assets are capitalized as a

component of the cost of acquiring those assets, and depreciated over the estimated useful lives by the straight-
line method of depreciation.
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Property and equipment includes purchases through and for use in government programs. Under the terms of these
programs' agreements, title to the property and equipment shall revert back to the contracting governmental agency
upon termination of the contract. As of September 30, 2018 and 2017, property and equipment costs incurred under
the above-mentioned contracts were $594,079 and $594,086 with a net carrying value of $241,138 and $266,583,
respectively, subject to potential future reversion.

The Organizations evaluate, on an on-going basis, the carrying value of property and equipment based on estimated
future undiscounted cash flows. In the event such cash flows are not expected to be sufficient to recover the carrying
value of the assets, the useful lives of the assets are revised or the assets are written down to their estimated fair
values.

Debt Issuance Costs
Debt issuance costs are being amortized using the straight-line method, which approximates the effective interest
method, over the term of the related financing agreement.

Advance Fees

Fees paid by a resident upon entering into a residency agreement at Trinity Oaks - LSA's continuing care retirement
community, net of the portion thereof that is refundable to the resident, are recorded as deferred revenue and are
amortized to income using the straight-line method over the estimated remaining life expectancy of the resident.

Through July 31, 2013, Trinity Oaks offered two types of agreements. One type, the 80% Entrance Fee Refund
Plan, states the refund is equal to the entrance fee less a four percent (4%) non-refundable fee paid at time of
occupancy and by one percent (1%) per month for the first 16 months of occupancy, after which 80% of the entrance
fee is refundable. The other type, the Limited Refund Plan, states the refund for apartments is equal to the entrance
fee less a four percent (4%) non-refundable fee paid at time of occupancy and two percent (2%) per month for the
first 48 months, after which the entrance fees is non-refundable; the refund for cottages under the Limited Refund
Plan is equal to the Entrance Fee, which is comprised of the basic Cottage fee and selected Major Options, reduced
by five percent (5%) per month, or any portion of a month of occupancy for the first twenty (20) months of occupancy.
Following twenty (20) months of occupancy, there is no refund on any amount paid by the Resident. Any refund is
payable upon reoccupancy or within two years, whichever occurs first. LSA records a current portion of advance
fees that is expected to be refunded in the next year.

Beginning August 1, 2013, Trinity Oaks offers three types of agreements. The 90% Refund Plan, states the refund
is equal to the entrance fee less a one percent (1%) non-refundable fee paid at time of occupancy and by one half
percent (0.5%) per month for the first 18 months of occupancy, after which 90% of the entrance fee is refundable.
The 50% Refund Plan, states the refund is equal to the entrance fee less two percent (2%) non-refundable fee paid
at time of occupancy and by one percent (1%) per month for the first 48 months of occupancy, after which 50% of
the entrance fee is refundable. The Limited Refund Plan, states the refund is equal to the entrance free less a four
percent non-refundable fee paid at the time of occupancy and two percent (2%) per month for the first 48 months,
after which the entrance fee is non-refundable. Any refund is payable upon reoccupancy.

Contributions, Grants, and Federal Awards

Contributions, grants, and federal awards received by the Organizations are recorded as unrestricted, temporarily
restricted, or permanently restricted support depending on the existence and/or nature of any donor/grantor
restrictions. Conditional promises to give are recognized when the conditions on which they depend are
substantially met.

Unconditional promises to give that are expected to be collected within one year are recorded at their net realizable
value. Unconditional promises to give that are expected to be collected in future years are recorded at the present
value of estimated future cash flows. The discounts on those amounts are computed using a risk-adjusted interest
rate applicable to the year in which the promise is received. Amortization of the discount is included in contribution
revenue.
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Donated Assets and Services

Donated materials and property and equipment are recorded at their estimated fair values at the date of receipt and
are reflected as contributions in the accompanying consolidated financial statements. The Organizations do not
imply time restrictions on gifts of long-lived assets. Various contributed services are performed for the Organizations
by volunteers. The services are significant and form an integral part of the efforts of the Organizations, but these
services do not meet the criteria for recognition as contributed services.

Advertising

The cost of advertising is expensed as incurred. LSA and LFS incurred advertising costs of $393,647 and $41,605,
respectively, for the year ended September 30, 2018 and $373,445 and $34,100, respectively, for the year ended
September 30, 2017.

Derivatives

Derivative financial instruments, such as interest rate swap agreements, are recognized in the consolidated financial
statements and measured at fair value, regardless of the purpose or intent for holding them. The carrying value of
LSA's financial instruments approximate fair value. Fair value is based on estimates using present value or other
valuation techniques.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities, the disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and
the reported revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Risk Management

The Organizations are exposed to various risks of loss from torts; theft of, damage to and destruction of assets;
business interruption; errors and omissions; employee injuries and illnesses; natural disasters; employee health,
dental, and accident benefits; and medical malpractice. Commercial insurance and stop loss coverage is purchased
for claims arising from such matters, subject to various deductibles.

Reclassifications

Certain amounts in the 2017 consolidated financial statements have been reclassified to conform to the presentation
of the 2018 consolidated financial statements. Changes in net assets previously reported for 2017 were not affected
by these reclassifications.

Future Accounting and Reporting Requirements

In February 2016, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued Accounting Standards Update
(“ASU”) 2016-02, Leases (Topic 842). The amendments in this ASU revise the accounting related to lessee
accounting. Under the new guidance, lessees will be required to recognize a lease liability and a right-of-use asset
for all leases. The amendments in this ASU are effective for the Organizations beginning on October 1, 2019, with
early adoption permitted, and should be applied through a modified retrospective transition approach for leases
existing at, or entered into after, the beginning of the earliest comparative period presented in the financial
statements. Management has not yet determined what the effects of adopting this ASU will be on its consolidated
financial statements.

In May 2014, FASB issued ASU 2014-09 Revenue from Contracts with Customers, which will eliminate the
transaction and industry-specific revenue recognition guidance under current accounting standards and replace it
with a principle-based approach using the following steps: identify the contract(s) with a customer, identify the
performance obligations in the contract, determine the transaction price, allocate the transaction price to the
performance obligations in the contract and recognize revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a performance
obligation. In August 2015, the FASB issued ASU 2015-14 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Topic 606),
Deferral of the Effective Date” which granted a one-year deferral of this ASU. The guidance in ASU 2014-09 will
now be effective for the Organizations beginning October 1, 2018, with early adoption permitted beginning
October 1, 2017. The guidance allows for either a full retrospective or a modified retrospective transition method.
The Organizations are currently evaluating the impact of this guidance, including the transition method, on its
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consolidated financial position, results of operations and cash flows. At the present time, management has not yet
determined what the effects of adopting this ASU will be on its consolidated financial statements.

In August 2016, FASB issued ASU 2016-14, Not-For-Profit Entities (Topic 958), Presentation of Financial
Statements of Not-for Profit Entities. The amendments in this ASU make certain improvements that address many,
but not all, of the identified issues about the current financial reporting for Not-for-Profit (NFP) entities. Under the
new guidance, financial statements and noted disclosures requirements for NFP entities include the following:

Present on the face of the statement of financial position net assets with and without donor restrictions.
Present on the statement of activities additional operation measures.

Continue to present on the face of the statement of cash flows the net amount for operating cash flows
using either the direct or indirect method of reporting but no longer require the presentation or disclosure
of the indirect method (reconciliation) if using the direct method.

Enhanced disclosures that provide quantitative and qualitative information about liquidity management.

The amendments in ASU 2016-14 are effective for the Organizations beginning on October 1, 2018, with early
adoption permitted. Management has not yet determined what the effects of adopting these ASUs will be on its
consolidated financial statements.

In August 2018, FASB issued Accounting Standards Update (ASU) 2018-08, Not-For-Profit Entities (Topic 958):
Clarifying the Scope and the Accounting Guidance for Contributions Received and Contributions Made. The ASU
2018-08 clarifies and improves current guidance about whether a transfer of assets, or the reduction, settlement,
or cancellation of liabilities, is a contribution or an exchange transaction. It provides criteria for determining whether
the resource provider is receiving commensurate value in return for the resources transferred which, depending on
the outcome, determines whether the organization follows contribution guidance or exchange transaction guidance
in the revenue recognition and other applicable standards. The new standard is effective for fiscal years beginning
after December 15, 2018. Management has not yet determined what the effects of adopting these ASUs will be on
its consolidated financial statements.

2. Pledges Receivable
Pledges receivable are included within other receivables on the consolidated balance sheet.

Pledges receivable for LSA are summarized as follows:

2018 2017
Receivable in less than one year $ 30,390 $ 41,146
Receivable in greater than one year 142,830 198,015
173,220 239,161
Less allowance for uncollectible pledges 655 2,861
Less discounts to net present value - 3,385
$ 172,565 § 232915
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Pledges receivable for LFS are summarized as follows:

Receivable in less than one year
Receivable in greater than one year

Less allowance for uncollectible pledges
Less discounts to net present value

3. Investments

2018 2017
80,849 42,217
161,364 167,533
242,213 209,750
12,070 10,487
15,293 -
$ 214,850 $ 199,263

Investments, including those included in assets limited as to use and bond funds, except for assets restricted for
investment in property and equipment, consisted of the following at September 30:

2018
Net
Unrealized
Appreciation
Cost Fair Value (Depreciation)

LSA:
U.S. treasury notes $ 2,034,927 $ 2,006,597 $ (28,330)
Money market funds 1,693,600 1,693,600 -
Marketable equity securities 34,427,062 39,163,368 4,736,306
38,155,589 42,863,565 4,707,976

LFS:
Money market funds 100 100 -
Marketable equity securities 302,714 347,734 45,020
302,814 347,834 45,020
Total $ 38458403  $ 43,211,399 § 4,752,996

2017
Net
Unrealized
Appreciation
Cost Fair Value (Depreciation)

LSA:
U.S. treasury notes $ 3,022,867 $ 3,022,867 $ -
Money market funds 842,485 842,485 -
Marketable equity securities 33,233,257 36,376,936 3,143,679
37,098,609 40,242,288 3,143,679

LFS:
Money market funds 100 100 -
Marketable equity securities 295,995 322,373 26,378
296,095 322,473 26,378
Total $ 37,394,704 $ 40,564,761 $ 3,170,057
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Investment income is summarized as follows for the year ended September 30:

2018
LSA LFS Total
Nonoperating — unrestricted investment income (loss) $ 1,085,580 $ 124 $ 1,085,704
Nonoperating — unrestricted unrealized gains 1,281,886 - 1,281,886
Temporarily restricted investment income (loss) 202,283 5,923 208,206
Temporarily restricted unrealized gains 236,451 15,665 252,116
Permanently restricted investment income 4,534 795 5,329
Permanently restricted unrealized gains - 3,378 3,378
Total investment income $ 2810734 $ 25885 $ 2,836,619
2017
LSA LFS Total
Nonoperating — unrestricted investment income (loss) $ 759,319 $ (75) % 759,244
Nonoperating — unrestricted unrealized gains 2,512,955 - 2,512,955
Temporarily restricted investment income (loss) 111,295 (5,001) 106,294
Temporarily restricted unrealized gains 560,363 12,944 573,307
Permanently restricted investment income 2,691 5,068 7,759
Permanently restricted unrealized gains - 3,301 3,301
Total investment income $ 3,946,623 $ 16,237 $ 3,962,860

The Organizations invests in a combination of money market funds, common and foreign stocks, mutual funds, U.S.
government agency bonds, municipal bonds, corporate bonds and foreign bonds. Investment securities are exposed
to various risks, such as interest rate, market and credit. Due to the level of risk associated with certain investment
securities, it is at least reasonably possible that changes in risks in the near term would materially affect the
Organizations' investment balance reported on the consolidated balance sheet.

4. Endowment Funds

The Organizations' endowments consist of numerous individual funds established for a variety of purposes. The
endowment funds include both donor restricted endowment funds and funds designated by the Board of Trustees
to function as endowments. As required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America, net assets associated with endowment funds, including funds designated by the board to function as
endowments, are classified and reported based on the existence or absence of donor imposed restrictions.

The Board of Trustees of the Organizations have interpreted the State Prudent Management of Institutional Funds
Act (SPMIFA) as requiring the preservation of the fair value of the original gift as of the gift date of the donor-
restricted endowment funds absent explicit donor stipulations to the contrary. As a result of the interpretation, the
Organizations classify as permanently restricted net assets (a) the original value of gifts donated to the permanent
endowment, (b) the original value of subsequent gifts to the permanent endowment, and (c) accumulations to the
permanent endowment made in accordance with the direction of the applicable donor gift instrument at the time the
accumulation is added to the fund. The remaining portion of the donor restricted endowment fund that is not
classified in permanently restricted net assets is classified as temporarily restricted net assets until those amounts
are appropriated for expenditure in a manner consistent with the standard of prudence prescribed by SPMIFA.

In accordance with SPMIFA, the Organizations consider the following factors in making a determination to

appropriate or accumulate donor-restricted endowment funds: (1) the duration and preservation of the various
funds, (2) the purposes of the donor-restricted endowment funds, (3) general economic conditions, (4) the possible
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effect of inflation and deflation, (5) the expected total return from income and the appreciation of investments, (6)
other resources of the Organizations, and (7) the Organizations' investment policies.

Investment Return Objectives, Risk Parameters and Strategies. The Organizations have adopted investment and
spending policies, approved by the Board of Trustees, for endowment assets that attempt to provide a predictable
stream of funding to programs supported by its endowment funds while also maintaining the purchasing power of
those endowment assets over the long-term. Accordingly, the investment process seeks to achieve an after-cost
total real rate of return, including investment income as well as capital appreciation, which exceeds the annual
distribution with acceptable levels of risk. The investment objective is a balanced asset allocation, while attempting
to achieve preservation of capital is a secondary objective. For LSA, asset allocation is expected to be 60% equity
and 40% income investments, and for LFS, 60% equity and 40% income investments.

Spending Policy. The Board of Trustees determines annual disbursements from the endowment funds. No
distributions from the endowment will be made if the market value of the endowment fund principal becomes less
than the original corpus value, unless otherwise stated in the endowment document.

Following is the endowment net assets composition by type of endowment as of September 30:

2018
Total Net
Temporarily Permanently Endowment
Unrestricted Restricted Restricted Assets

LSA:
Board designated funds $ 7,673,229 $ - $ - $ 7,673,229
Donor restricted endowment funds - 4,180,148 2,990,338 7,170,486
7,673,229 4,180,148 2,990,338 14,843,715

LFS:
Donor restricted endowment funds - 100,920 235,994 336,914
Total endowment $ 7673229 § 4,281,068 $ 3,226,332 §$15,180,629

2017
Total Net
Temporarily Permanently Endowment
Unrestricted Restricted Restricted Assets

LSA:
Board designated funds $ 7,169,035 $ - $ - $ 7,169,035
Donor restricted endowment funds - 3,762,773 2,734,545 6,497,318
7,169,035 3,762,773 2,734,545 13,666,353

LFS:
Donor restricted endowment funds - 80,732 231,821 312,553
Total endowment $ 7,169,035 $ 3,843,505 $ 2,966,366 $ 13,978,906
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Changes in endowment net assets for the years ended September 30, 2018 and 2017 are as follows:

LSA:

Endowment net assets-September 30, 2016

Contributions

Investment income

Net asset transfer

Reclassified from endowment
Amounts appropriated for expenditure
Net appreciation

Endowment net assets-September 30, 2017

Contributions

Investment income

Amounts appropriated for expenditure
Net appreciation

Endowment net assets-September 30, 2018

LFS:

Endowment net assets-September 30, 2016

Investment income (loss)
Amounts appropriated for expenditure
Net appreciation

Endowment net assets-September 30, 2017

Investment income (loss)
Amounts appropriated for expenditure
Net appreciation

Endowment net assets-September 30, 2018

Total

Total Net
Temporarily Permanently Endowment

Unrestricted Restricted Restricted Assets
$ 6,656,397 $ 3,561,906 $ 2,612,133 $ 12,830,436
- - 14,710 14,710
113,509 111,295 2,691 227,495
- (105,011) 105,011 -
- (297,175) - (297,175)
(197,995) (68,605) - (266,600)
597,124 560,363 - 1,157,487
7,169,035 3,762,773 2,734,545 13,666,353
18,428 42,855 251,259 312,542
168,166 202,283 4,534 374,983
- (64,214) - (64,214)
317,600 236,451 - 554,051
7,673,229 4,180,148 2,990,338 14,843,715
- 82,078 223,452 305,530
- (5,001) 5,068 67
- (9,289) - (9,289)
- 12,944 3,301 16,245
- 80,732 231,821 312,553
- 8,498 795 9,293
- (997) - (997)
- 12,687 3,378 16,065
- 100,920 235,994 336,914
$ 7,673,229 $ 4,281,068 $ 3,226,332 $ 15,180,629
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5. Property and Equipment

Following is a summary of net property and equipment at September 30:

2018
LSA LFS Total

Land $ 12,763,387 $ 242182 $ 13,005,569
Land improvements 4,310,739 90,933 4,401,672
Building and building improvements 120,122,433 1,785,817 121,908,250
Certificate of need 4,212,500 - 4,212,500
Leasehold improvements - 319,761 319,761
Furnishings and equipment 18,196,202 776,039 18,972,241
Computer software 847,235 39,086 886,321
Automotive equipment 1,170,998 900,513 2,071,511
Construction in progress 7171.779 - 7,171,779

168,795,273 4,154,331 172,949,604
Less accumulated depreciation (65.876,219) (2,374,221) (68,250,440)

Net property and equipment

$ 102,919,054 § 1,781,110 $ 104,699,164

2017
LSA LFS Total

Land $ 12,831,694 $ 279,015 $ 13,110,709
Land improvements 4,310,739 83,183 4,393,922
Building and building improvements 117,813,453 1,804,788 119,618,241
Certificate of need 4,212,500 - 4,212,500
Leasehold improvements - 279,412 279,412
Furnishings and equipment 17,688,317 677,437 18,365,754
Computer software 847,235 39,086 886,321
Automotive equipment 1,170,998 789,827 1,960,825
Construction in progress 1,482,332 - 1,482,332

160,357,268 3,952,748 164,310,016
Less accumulated depreciation (59,314,684) (2,274,680) (61,589,364)
Net property and equipment $ 101,042,584 $ 1678,068 $ 102,720,652

The Organizations were holding building and building improvements of $110,800 in assets held for sale at
September 30, 2018 and 2017. The Organizations incurred impairment of $1,076,850 based on market value at
September 30, 2017 included in net loss on disposal of property and equipment. No impairment was incurred for the
year ended September 30, 2018.

Total depreciation expense for LSA was $6,561,536 and $6,371,260 for the years ended September 30, 2018 and
2017, respectively. Total depreciation expense for LFS was $132,268 and $164,022 for the years ended
September 30, 2018 and 2017, respectively.

The Organizations’ policy is to capitalize interest costs incurred on borrowed funds during the period of construction
of capital assets. The Organizations had no capitalized interest in 2018 or 2017.
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6. Long-term Debt

Following is a summary of long-term debt at September 30:

Bonds Payable:
Series 2012A
Series 2017

HUD Loans:
Section 202
Section 811

Note Payable
Other Loans

Less current maturities of long-term debt
Less discount on bonds payable, net
Less bond issuance costs, net

Bonds Payable:
Series 2012A
Series 2017

HUD Loans:
Section 202
Section 811

Note Payable
Other Loans

Less current maturities of long-term debt
Less discount on bonds payable, net
Less bond issuance costs, net

Bonds Payable

Master Trust Indenture:

2018

LSA LFS Total
$ 42,190,000 $ - $ 42,190,000
31,564,998 - 31,564,998
73,754,998 - 73,754,998
- 172,713 172,713
- 249,800 249,800
- 422,513 422,513
- 880,794 880,794
368,496 399,515 597,931
74,123,494 1,702,822 75,826,316
(2,940,997) (894,791) (3,835,788)
(49,059) - (49,059)
(1,106,082) - (1,106,082)
$ 70,027,356 $ 808,031 $ 70,835,387

2017

LSA LFS Total
$ 43,150,000 $ - $ 43,150,000
33,067,500 - 33,067,500
76,217,500 - 76,217,500
- 179,016 179,016
- 249,800 249,800
- 428,816 428.816
- 1,160,914 1,160,914
- 296,388 296,388
76,217,500 1,886,118 78,103,618
(2,415,000) (1,187,359) (3,602,359)
(62,127) - (62,127)
(1,152,894) - (1,152.894)
$ 72,587,479 $ 698,759 $ 73,286,238

In December 2012, LSA entered into a Master Trust Indenture for the purpose of providing for the issuance of
obligations by the Obligated Group. The Obligated Group consists of LSA entities, specifically Lutheran Services
for the Aging, Inc., LSA Management, Inc., LSA Pharmacy, Inc., Lutheran Home-Albemarle, Inc., Lutheran Home-
Hickory, Inc., Lutheran Home at Trinity Oaks, Inc., Lutheran Home-Hickory West, Inc., Lutheran Home-Winston-
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Salem, Inc., Lutheran Home-Forsyth County, Inc., Lutheran Home Forsyth County Property, Inc., Lutheran Home-
Wilmington, Inc., Lutheran Home Albemarle Property, Inc., Lutheran Home Hickory Property, Inc., Lutheran Home
at Trinity Oaks Property, Inc., Lutheran Home Hickory West Property, Inc., Lutheran Home Winston-Salem Property,
Inc., Lutheran Home Wilmington Property, Inc., Lutheran Services Property, Inc., Lutheran Retirement Center-
Salisbury, Inc., Lutheran Retirement Center-Wilmington, Inc., Lutheran Retirement Center at Lutheridge, Inc.,
Lutheran Services for the Aging Foundation, Inc., Abundant Living Adult Day Services, Inc., LSA Elms at
Tanglewood, Inc., and LSA Elms Property, Inc. Each member of the Obligated Group is jointly and severally liable
for each obligation issued under the Master Trust Indenture.

There are numerous restrictive covenants including requirements regarding debt service coverage ratios, liquidity,
minimum fund balance, debt and reserve ratios, restrictions on the sale of assets, restrictions on additional
borrowings, requirements to maintain adequate insurance coverage on property and maintenance of its tax exempt
status. Also, certain financial information must be supplied to the specified parties on a timely basis. Management
believes that the Obligated Group was in compliance with all debt covenants.

Series 2017:

In March 2017, LSA issued $33,795,000 tax exempt Health Care Facilities First Mortgage Revenue Refunding
Bonds (Lutheran Services for the Aging) Series 2017 Bonds through the North Carolina Medical Care Commission
("Commission") under the Master Trust Indenture and other related agreements. The proceeds were used to refund
the outstanding Series 1998 and Series 2012B Bonds and pay certain expenses incurred in connection with the
authorization and issuance of the bonds.

The 2017 Bonds mature annually on March 1 in amounts ranging from $870,000 to $2,345,000 and bear interest
at the bank bought rate of 68% of LIBOR plus 1.28% to 1.48% based on leverage ratio until converted to daily,
weekly or adjusted rate for amounts maturing between 2018 and 2038. The 2017 Bonds are secured by the
Obligated Group's Deeds of Trust on real property and fixtures under the Master Trust Indenture.

Series 2012A:

In December 2012, LSA issued $44,790,000 tax exempt Health Care Facilities First Mortgage Revenue Refunding
Bonds (Lutheran Services for the Aging) Series 2012A Bonds through the North Carolina Medical Care Commission
("Commission") under the Master Trust Indenture and other related agreements. The proceeds were used to refund
the outstanding Series 2009 and Series 2010 Bonds, as well as other loans and fund debt service reserve fund and
issuance costs.

The 2012A Bonds mature annually on March 1 in amounts ranging from $220,000 to $2,885,000 and bear interest
at rates between 2.00% and 5.00% for amounts maturing between 2013 and 2042. The 2012A Bonds are secured
by the Obligated Group's Deeds of Trust on real property and fixtures under the Master Trust Indenture.

Series 2012B:

In December 2012, the Commission entered into agreements with LSA and the Bond Trustee to issue up to
$26,254,401 in Health Care Facilities First Mortgage Revenue Bonds (Lutheran Services for the Aging) Series
2012B under the Master Trust Indenture and other related agreements. The proceeds were used to finance the
cost of construction of a 120 bed nursing facility in Hickory, North Carolina, a 100 bed nursing facility in Clemmons,
North Carolina, routine capital improvements and renovations to other facilities owned and operated by the
Obligated Group and issuance costs.

Payments of interest only were due until the bonds were scheduled to mature annually beginning on March 1, 2016
in amounts ranging from $92,782 to $1,742,998 and bear interest at the bank bought rate of 78% of LIBOR plus
1.60% until converted to daily, weekly or adjusted rate. Amounts outstanding were to be due in full March 1, 2039.
The 2012B Bonds were secured by the Obligated Group's Deeds of Trust on real property and fixtures under the
Master Trust Indenture. The 2012B bonds were refunded by the proceeds of the 2017 bonds.
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Series 1998:

In March 1998, LSA issued $23,625,000 tax exempt Variable Rate Demand Health Care Facility Revenue (Lutheran
Services for the Aging), Series 1998 Bonds through the North Carolina Medical Care Commission ("Commission").
The 1998 bonds were issued pursuant to a Trust Agreement Indenture ("Indenture") between the Commission and
Trustee. The payment of principal, or premium, if any, and interest on the Series 1998 bonds, was secured by an
irrevocable Letter of Credit and reimbursement agreement ("Letter of Credit") obtained by LSA in favor of the
Trustee. The 1998 bonds were refunded by the proceeds of the 2017 bonds in March 2017 and the Letter of Credit
expired July 1, 2017.

The Series 1998 bonds bore interest at the Weekly Interest Rate as determined by the Remarketing agent and is
payable monthly. As required by the Loan agreement, LSA entered into an interest rate swap agreement (See Note
14). Principal payments on the Series 1998 tax-exempt bonds were due annually with a final payment due on
March 1, 2028.

Pursuant to the issuance of the tax-exempt Series 1998 bonds, LSA obtained an irrevocable letter of credit in favor
of the Trustee in the amount of the outstanding bonds plus 55 days of interest expense. Advances on the Letter of
Credit bore interest at 12%. The Letter of Credit was collateralized by deeds of trust on EIms at Tanglewood,
Hickory, Trinity Elms, Trinity Glen, Trinity Grove, Trinity Oaks, Trinity Oaks Retirement, Trinity Ridge, and
Wilmington vacant land and expired July 1, 2017 as the bonds had been refunded.

In December 2012, the Series 1998 Trust, Loan and Letter of Credit and Reimbursement agreements were
amended and restated to correspond with the Master Trust Indenture dated December 1, 2012.

HUD Loans:

LFS has a note payable to the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development ("HUD") under Section 202,
due August 1, 2032, payable in monthly installments of $1,755, including interest at 8.375%, collateralized by
property at Lake Woodard Dr., Raleigh, North Carolina.

LFS has an interest-free note payable to the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development ("HUD") under
Section 811, due immediately in the event that the property is not used for eligible handicapped individuals as
defined in the agreement with HUD which expires January 1, 2034, collateralized by property at King Arthur Drive,
Cramerton, North Carolina.

Note Payable:

LFS has a note payable due April 4, 2019, payable in monthly installments of $29,072 at prime plus 2% (7.25% at
September 30, 2018), collateralized by substantially all of LFS's assets.

Other Loans:
Remaining debt consists primarily of long-term mortgages and vehicle loans. The interest rates for other loans

ranged from 0% to approximately 8% at September 30, 2018. The Organization's debt has various maturity dates
from 2018 through 2036, and is secured by various deeds of trust on real property and equipment.

2018
LSA LFS Total
Interest $ 3,367,043 $ 151,523 $ 3,518,566
Amortization of bond costs 59,880 - 59,880
Total interest expense $ 3,426,923 $ 151,523 $ 3,578,446
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2017
LSA LFS Total
Interest $ 3,112,049 $ 112,590 $ 3,224,639
Amortization of bond costs 96,972 - 96,972
Total interest expense $ 3,209,021 $ 112,590 $ 3,321,611
Future maturities of long-term debt are as follows:
LSA LFS Total
Year ending September 30,
2019 $ 2,940,997 $ 894,791 $ 3,835,788
2020 2,635,000 75,101 2,710,101
2021 2,785,000 77,761 2,862,761
2022 2,880,000 67,937 2,947,937
2023 2,980,000 34,479 3,014,479
Thereafter 59,902,497 552,753 60,455,250

$ 74,123,494 $ 1,702,822 $ 75,826,316

LSA incurred deferred financing costs in the amount of $224,006, $1,111,022, $476,152, and $490,673 in
association with the issuance of the above Series Bonds. Amortization expense of $59,880 and $96,972 was
recognized during 2018 and 2017 to the interest expense line item of the statements of operations, respectively.
Accumulated amortization was $471,712 and $182,134 for the years ended September 30, 2018 and 2017,
respectively. Deferred financing costs associated with the refunded bonds totaled $966,825 and were disposed,
leading to a loss on extinguishment of debt of $550,933 in 2017.

7. Retirement Plans

LSA has a 401(k) retirement plan which covers all employees who are at least 21 years of age with one or more
years of service. LSA's contribution is based on matching 50% of the salary deferral elected by each eligible
employee up to a maximum of 2% of each eligible employee's compensation. LSA's contributions for the year ended
September 30, 2018 and 2017 were $171,440 and $179,824, respectively.

LSA sponsors an IRC Section 457(b) defined retirement plan covering certain classifications of employees meeting

eligibility requirements regarding service and age. The accompanying consolidated balance sheets at
September 30, 2018 and 2017 includes a liability of $653,496 and $509,759, respectively, related to the plan.
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8. Fair Value Measurements

Following is a summary of the fair value of assets at September 30:

2018

LSA:
Measured on a recurring basis:

Assets:
Money market funds
U.S. treasury notes

Mutual funds:
Equity mutual funds
Balance strategy mutual funds
Domestic stock mutual funds
International stock mutual funds
Commodity mutual funds
Specific strategy funds
Fixed income funds
Corporate bond funds
International bond funds
Governmental bond funds

Liabilities:
Hedging Instrument - Interest
rate swap agreement

LFS:
Measured on a recurring basis:

Assets:
Money market funds

Mutual funds:
Equity mutual funds
Domestic stock mutual funds
International stock mutual funds
Corporate bond funds
Government bond funds
Specialty bond funds

Total

Measurements at Reporting Date using

Quoted Prices

In Active Significant
Markets for Other Significant
Identical Observable Unobservable
Assets Inputs Inputs

Fair Value (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
$ 1,693,600 $ 1,693,600 $ - $ -
2,006,597 2,006,597 - -
1,210,414 1,210,414 - -
165,100 165,100 - -
14,973,898 14,973,898 - -
9,240,133 9,240,133 - -
49,975 49,975 - -
141,164 141,164 - -
77,959 77,959 - -
4,620,715 4,620,715 - -
4,650,858 4,650,858 - -
4,033,152 4,033,152 - -
42,863,565 42,863,565 - -
(892,473) - (892,473) -
100 100 - -
40,905 40,905 - -
123,389 123,389 - -
72,318 72,318 - -
38,478 38,478 - -
38,652 38,652 - -
33,992 33,992 - -
347,834 347,834 - -
$42,318,926 $43.211,399 $ (892473) §$ -
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2017

LSA:
Measured on a recurring basis:

Assets:
Money market funds
Common stock
U.S. treasury notes

Mutual funds:
Equity mutual funds
Balance strategy mutual funds
Domestic stock mutual funds
International stock mutual funds
Commodity mutual funds
Specific strategy funds
Fixed income funds
Corporate bond funds
International bond funds
Governmental bond funds

Liabilities:
Hedging Instrument - Interest
rate swap agreement

LFS:
Measured on a recurring basis:

Assets:
Money market funds

Mutual funds:
Equity mutual funds
Domestic stock mutual funds
International stock mutual funds
Corporate bond funds
Government bond funds
Specialty bond funds

Total

Measurements at Reporting Date using

Quoted Prices

In Active Significant
Markets for Other Significant
Identical Observable Unobservable
Assets Inputs Inputs

Fair Value (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
$ 842,485 $ 842,485 $ - $ -
637 637 - -
3,022,867 3,022,867 - -
1,074,394 1,074,394 - -
153,089 153,089 - -
12,771,460 12,771,460 - -
9,116,399 9,116,399 - -
9,071 9,071 - -
105,843 105,843 - -
116,867 116,867 - -
4,559,075 4,559,075 - -
3,877,990 3,877,990 - -
4,592,111 4,592,111 - -
40,242,288 40,242,288 - -
(1,405,176) - (1,405,176) -
100 100 - -
34,841 34,841 - _
105,015 105,015 - -
71,154 71,154 - -
38,983 38,983 - -
39,127 39,127 - -
33,253 33,253 - -
322,473 322,473 - -
$39.159585  $40564,761 $ (1,405.176) $ -
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Financial assets valued using Level 1 inputs are based on unadjusted quoted market prices within active markets.
Level 2 inputs are those inputs that are observable, either directly or indirectly, for the assets or liability other than
quoted prices included in Level 1. Level 2 inputs have been valued using an income approach. Level 3 inputs are
unobservable, and apply only when there is little or no market activity for the asset or liability. There were no
changes in the valuation techniques during the years ended September 30, 2018 or 2017.

The Organizations' recognize transfers of assets into and out of levels as of the date an event or change in
circumstances causes the transfer. There were no transfers of assets between levels in 2018.
9. Temporarily Restricted Net Assets

Temporarily restricted net assets are available for the following at September 30:

2018
LSA LFS Total
Endowment $ 4,180,148 $ 100,920 $ 4,281,068
Property and equipment 1,294,894 665,429 1,960,323
Operations 864,855 133,780 998,635
$ 6339897 $§ 9001129 § 7,240,026
2017
LSA LFS Total
Endowment $ 3,762,773 $ 80,732 $ 3,843,505
Property and equipment 2,036,005 406,147 2,442,152
Operations 875,963 171,026 1,046,989

$ 6.674,741 $ 657,905 $ 7.332,646

Net assets released from restrictions for LSA were $1,669,850 and $197,642 for the years ended September 30,
2018 and 2017, respectively. Net assets released from restrictions for LFS were $205,245 and $176,565 for the
years ended September 30, 2018 and 2017, respectively.

10. Lease Commitments
LFS has lease commitments under various operating leases for office facilities, and office equipment. Total rental
expense under cancelable and noncancelable operating leases was $666,324 and $617,807 for the years ended

September 30, 2018 and 2017, respectively.

At September 30, 2018, the future minimum lease payments under the noncancelable operating leases are as
follows:

2019 $ 403,979
2020 346,275
2021 177,934
2022 120,784
2023 107,268
Thereafter 44,289
Total minimum lease payments $ 1,200,529

LSA and LFS have lease commitments under various capital leases for equipment and vehicles. The assets and
liabilities under capital leases are recorded at the lower of the present value of the minimum lease payments or the
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fair value of the assets. The assets are amortized over the lesser of the related lease term or the estimated useful
life. Amortization of the assets for LSA under capital lease was $0 and $60,140 for the years ended
September 30, 2018 and 2017, respectively. Amortization of the assets for LFS under capital lease was $33,237
and $85,533 for the years ended September 30, 2018 and 2017, respectively. Assets held under the capital leases
and the related accumulated amortization at September 30, 2018 and 2017 is as follows:

2018 2017
LFS:
Equipment $ 139,502 $ 139,502
Vehicles 263,314 261,191
Less accumulated amortization (355,106) (321,869)
$ 47,710 $ 78,824
The present values of future minimum capital lease payments are as follows:
LSA LFS Total

Year ending September 30,

2019 $ - $ 33,939 $ 33,939

2020 - 26,373 26,373

2021 - 13,643 13,643

2022 - 10,817 10,817

2023 - 4,188 4,188

Total minimum lease payments $ - $ 88,960 $ 88,960

11. Commitments

At September 30, 2018 the Organizations had commitments relating to various construction projects at year end.
The estimated cost to complete these projects is $2,550,000.

12, Contingencies

The Organizations self-insure a portion of their employee health benefits exposure up to $100,000 per employee.
An accrual for the self-insurance program is established to provide for estimated claims and losses and applicable
legal expenses for claims incurred through September 30, 2018 but not reported. This accrual was determined by
an actuary and totaled approximately $467,000 and $367,000 at September 30, 2018 and 2017, respectively. The
accrual is included in accrued health benefits in the accompanying consolidated balance sheet. Commercial
insurance has been obtained for coverage in excess of the self-insured amounts.

During 2013, LSA began participating in a "high deductible" workers' compensation insurance policy. They are
responsible for the first dollar claims up to $100,000 per occurrence or $500,000 in the aggregate. The accrual for
estimated claims incurred through September 30, 2018 and 2017 is $291,034 and $123,143, respectively, and is
recorded in accounts payable.

The Organizations are involved in litigation arising in the normal course of business. Although the outcome of the
claims and proceedings cannot be predicted with certainty, management believes that there are no existing claims
or proceedings that are likely to have a material effect on financial position, results of operations, or cash flows.

As a result of the Organizations' participation in the Medicare and Medicaid programs, they are subject to various
governmental reviews, audits and investigations to verify the Organizations’ compliance with these programs and
applicable laws and regulations. The Organizations are routinely subject to audits under various government
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programs. Private pay sources such as third party insurance and managed care entities also often reserve the right
to conduct audits as well.

The Organizations have received proceeds from several federal grants. These amounts are subject to additional
audit procedures in accordance with federal regulations. Certain costs charged to the grants may be questioned as
not being appropriate expenses under the grant agreements. Any questioned costs could result in the refund of
grant monies to grantor agencies. Management expects such amounts, if any, to be immaterial.

13. Split Interest Agreements

In 2011, LSA received two $500,000 charitable gift annuities. Under the terms of the agreements, LSA is to pay the
donors $6,250 and $6,000, respectively, on a quarterly basis over the donors' remaining life.

The annuity obligation of $712,250 and $736,650 at September 30, 2018 and 2017, respectively, represents the
present value of the expected future cash payments to the donors computed over the life expectancy of the donors.
LSA made payments totaling $49,000 during the years ended September 30, 2018 and 2017, respectively under
the terms of the agreements.

14. Interest Rate Swap Agreement

LSA has an interest rate swap with a notional amount of $9,390,000 and $10,065,000 at September 30, 2018 and
2017, respectively. Under the terms of the swap (which expires in March 2028), LSA pays monthly a fixed interest
rate of 4.088% and receives monthly the variable interest rate on the interest rate swap. The estimated fair value
of the agreement at September 30, 2018 and 2017 was $(892,473) and $(1,405,176), respectively with the change
in fair value of the instrument recognized in the accompanying consolidated statement of operations and changes
in net assets. LSA assumes no ineffectiveness in the hedging relationship.

15. Functional Expenses
Operating expenses not directly attributable to a specific function are allocated to specific functions by the

Organizations’ management based on what it considers to be the best available objective criteria, such as time
spent or relative benefit. Functional expenses are summarized as follows as September 30:

2018
LSA LFS Eliminations Total
Program services $ 87,344,997 $ 20,914,843 $ - $108,259,840
Development/Marketing 1,430,168 506,590 (506,590) 1,430,168
General and administrative 9,074,633 3,643,430 (1,561,435) 11,156,628
$97,849,798  §$25,064.863 §$ (2,068,025) $120,846,636
2017
LSA LFS Eliminations Total
Program services $ 84,689,579 $ 17,942,731 $ - $102,632,310
Development/Marketing 1,439,912 587,120 (587,120) 1,439,912
General and administrative 8,330,985 2,410,365 (258,191) 10,483,159
$ 94,460,476 $ 20,940,216 $ (845,311) $114,555,381
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16. Subsequent Events

On November 20, 2018 LSA entered into a new revolving line of credit agreement as the lender with Senior Total
Life Care for an additional amount not to exceed $750,000 at 5% under the same terms as described in Note 1.

On December 6, 2018 LSA Elms Property, Inc. entered into a term loan for an independent living facility in
Clemmons, North Carolina. The loan for $11 million matures December 6, 2028 with escalating monthly payments
starting at $14,223 beginning January 1, 2020 at one month LIBOR +1.75%. The loan is collateralized by the
apartment complex.

On December 14, 2018 LFS refinanced the note payable discussed in Note 6. The refinanced note payable is due
December 4, 2021, payable in monthly installments of $24,339 at one month LIBOR plus 2.5%, collateralized by
substantially all of LFS's assets.

Management has evaluated subsequent events through January 25, 2019, the date which the financial statements
were issued.
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Independent Auditors’ Report on Internal Control Over
Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters
Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in
Accordance with Government Auditing Standards

Board of Trustees
Lutheran Family Services in the Carolinas and Affiliates

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the consolidated financial statements of Lutheran
Services for the Aging, Inc. and Lutheran Family Services in the Carolinas and Affiliates (a nonprofit
organization), which comprise the consolidated balance sheets as of September 30, 2018 and 2017 and
the related consolidated statements of operations and changes in net assets, and cash flows for the years
then ended, and the related notes to the consolidated financial statements, and have issued our report
thereon dated January 25, 2019. The financial statements of Lutheran Services for the Aging, Inc., LSA
Management, Inc., LSA Pharmacy, Inc., Lutheran Home -Albemarle, Inc., Lutheran Home -Hickory, Inc.,
Lutheran Home at Trinity Oaks, Inc., Lutheran Home - Hickory West, Inc., Lutheran Home - Winston Salem,
Inc., Lutheran Home - Forsyth County, Inc., Lutheran Home - Wilmington, Inc., Lutheran Home Albemarle
Property, Inc., Lutheran Home Hickory Property, Inc., Lutheran Home at Trinity Oaks Property, Inc.,
Lutheran Home Hickory West Property, Inc., Lutheran Home Winston-Salem Property, Inc., Lutheran
Home Forsyth County Property, Inc., Lutheran Home Wilmington Property, Inc., Lutheran Services
Property, Inc., Lutheran Retirement Center - Salisbury, Inc., Lutheran Retirement Center - Wilmington, Inc.,
Lutheran Retirement Center at Lutheridge, Inc., LSA Elms at Tanglewood, Inc., LSA Elms Property, Inc.,
Lutheran Services for the Aging Foundation, Inc. Abundant Living Adult Day Services, Inc., LSA Therapy,
Inc., Trinity at Home, Inc., Trinity Guardian Services, Inc. and LFS Real Properties, Inc. were not audited
in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and, accordingly, this report does not include reporting
on internal control over financial reporting or instances of reportable noncompliance associated with these
entities.

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the consolidated financial statements, we considered Lutheran Family
Services in the Carolinas, Mountain Ridge Home, Inc. and Whittecar Home, Inc.'s (“Lutheran Family Services
in the Carolinas and Affiliates”) internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Lutheran Family Services
in the Carolinas and Affiliates’ internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness
of Lutheran Family Services in the Carolinas and Affiliates’ internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management
or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in
internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of Lutheran Family
Services in the Carolinas and Affiliates’ financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected
on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control
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that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with
governance.

Our consideration of the internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may
exist that have not been identified. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. We did identify a certain
deficiency in internal control, described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as
item 2018-001 that we consider to be a significant deficiency.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Lutheran Family Services in the Carolinas and
Affiliates’ financial statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could
have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing
an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do
not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other
matters that are required to be reported under Govemment Auditing Standards.

Lutheran Family Services in the Carolinas and Affiliates’ Corrective Action Plan

Lutheran Family Services in the Carolinas and Affiliates’s corrective action plan regarding the findings
identified in our audit is described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. Lutheran
Family Services in the Carolinas and Affiliates’ corrective action plan was not subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on it.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the organizations’
internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering the organizations’ internal control and compliance.
Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Raleigh, North Carolina
January 25, 2019
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Independent Auditors’ Report on Compliance for each Major
Program and on Internal Control Over Compliance Required by
The Uniform Guidance

Board of Trustees
Lutheran Family Services in the Carolinas and Affiliates

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited Lutheran Family Services in the Carolinas, Mountain Ridge Home, Inc. and Whittecar
Home, Inc.'s (“Lutheran Family Services in the Carolinas and Affiliates”) compliance with the types of
compliance requirements described in the OMB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and
material effect on Lutheran Family Services in the Carolinas and Affiliates' major federal programs for the
year ended September 30, 2018. Lutheran Family Services in the Carolinas and Affiliates' major federal
programs are identified in the summary of auditors’ results section on the accompanying schedule of
findings and questioned costs.

Management's Responsibility
Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants
applicable to its federal programs.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for Lutheran Family Services in the Carolinas and
Affiliates’ major federal programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to
above. We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in
the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit requirements of Title 2
U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and
Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (the “Uniform Guidance”). Those standards and the Uniform
Guidance require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and
material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence
about Lutheran Family Services in the Carolinas and Affiliates’ compliance with those requirements and
performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for the major federal
programs. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of Lutheran Family Services in the
Carolinas and Affiliates’ compliance.

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

In our opinion, Lutheran Family Services in the Carolinas and Affiliates complied, in all material respects,
with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on
its major federal programs for the year ended September 30, 2018.
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Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of Lutheran Family Services in the Carolinas and Affiliates is responsible for establishing and
maintaining effective internal control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred
to above. In planning and performing our audit of compliance, we considered Lutheran Family Services in
the Carolinas and Affiliates’ internal control over compliance with the types of requirements that could have
a direct and material effect on the major federal programs to determine the auditing procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance for the major
federal programs and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform
Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over
compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Lutheran Family Services
in the Carolinas and Affiliates’ internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a
federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency,
or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility
that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be
prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over
compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type
of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal
control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance
that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal
control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may
exist that have not been identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing

of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the Uniform
Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

Raleigh, North Carolina
January 25, 2019
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Pass-Through
Entity Identifying
Number

Total
Federal
Expenditures

Federal
CFDA
Number
Federal Grantor/Pass-Through Grantor/Program Title
U.S. Department of Homeland Security
Passed through from North Carolina Division of
Emergency Management
Disaster Case Management Program 97.088
U.S. Department of Health and Human Services
Passed through from Lutheran Immigration
and Refugee Service
Refugee and Entrant Assistance Voluntary Agency
Programs 93.567
Passed through from SC Department of Health and
Human Services, Division of Social Services
Refugee and Entrant Assistance - State Administered
Programs 93.566
Refugee and Entrant Assistance - State Administered
Programs 93.566
Refugee and Entrant Assistance - State Administered
Programs 93.566
Refugee and Entrant Assistance - State Administered
Programs 93.566
Refugee and Entrant Assistance - State Administered
Programs 93.566
Passed through from NC Department of Health and
Human Services, Division of Social Services
Refugee and Entrant Assistance - Discretionary Grants
Programs 93.576
Passed through from Lutheran Immigration and Refugee
Services
Refugee AmeriCorps 93.576
Preferred Communities: Intensive Case Management 93.576
Home Studies and Post Release Services 93.676
Unaccompanied Alien Children Programs 93.676
Safe Release and Support Services 93.676

Total U.S. Department of Health and Human Services

FEMA-4285-DR-NC

1802MDRVMG

4400017388

4400017080

00035574

4400017893

4400017170

00036179

90RP0113-02-00

HHS-2016-ACF-ORR-RP-1116

90ZU0172-01-00
90ZU0172-02-00
90ZU0223-01-00
90ZU0223-02-00
90ZU0223-02

The accompanying notes are an intergral part of this schedule.

$

1,981,376

143,756

75,001
88,198
203,641
15,072

62,000
443,912

60,936

16,697

79,555

297,741

497,899

1,831

1,542,327
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(Continued)

Federal Pass-Through Total
CFDA Entity Identifying Federal
Number Number Expenditures
Federal Grantor/Pass-Through Grantor/Program Title
U.S. Department of Veterans Affairs
VA Homeless Provider Grant and Per Diem Program 64.024 N/A 88,420
U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development
Supportive Housing for the Elderly 14.157 N/A 179,016
Supportive Housing for Persons with Disabilities 14.181 N/A 249,800
Total U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development 428,816
U.S. Department of State
Passed-through Lutheran Immigration and Refugee Service
U.S. Refugee Admissions Program 19.510 SPRMCO18CA0003 227,234
U.S. Refugee Admissions Program 19.510 S-PRMCO-17-CA-1010 3,693
Total U.S. Department of State 230,927
Total Federal Awards $ 4,271,866

The accompanying notes are an intergral part of this schedule.
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Lutheran Services for the Aging, Inc. and

Lutheran Family Services in the Carolinas and Affiliates
Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
Year Ended September 30, 2018

1. Basis of Presentation

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards (the "Schedule") includes the federal grant
activity of Lutheran Family Services in the Carolinas and Affiliates under programs of the federal
government for the year ended September 30, 2018. The information in this Schedule is presented in
accordance with the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (the “Uniform
Guidance”). Because the Schedule presents only a selected portion of the operations of Lutheran Family
Services in the Carolinas and Affiliates, it is not intended to and does not present the financial position, and
statements of operations and changes in net assets or cash flows of Lutheran Family Services in the
Carolinas and Affiliates.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of accounting. Such expenditures
are recognized following the cost principles contained in the Uniform Guidance, wherein certain types of
expenditures are not allowable or are limited as to reimbursement. Negative amounts shown on the
Schedule represent adjustments or credits made in the normal course of business to amounts reported as
expenditures in prior years. Pass-through entity identifying numbers are presented where available.

3. Indirect Cost Rate

Lutheran Family Services in the Carolinas and Affiliates has not elected to use the 10-percent de minimus
indirect cost rate allowed under the Uniform Guidance.
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Lutheran Services for the Aging, Inc. and

Lutheran Family Services in the Carolinas and Affiliates

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs

Year Ended September 30, 2018

Section I--Summary of Auditors’ Results

Consolidated Financial Statements

Type of report the auditors issued on whether the consolidated financial statements audited were prepared in

accordance with GAAP: Unmodified

Internal control over financial reporting:

e Material weakness(es) identified?

o Significant deficiency(ies) identified that are
not considered to be material weaknesses?

Noncompliance material to financial

statements noted?

Federal Awards

Internal control over major federal
program:

e Material weakness(es) identified?
¢ Significant deficiency(ies) identified that are

not considered to be material weaknesses?

Noncompliance material to federal awards

Type of auditors’ report issued on compliance for major program: Unmodified

Any audit findings disclosed that are
required to be reported in accordance
with 2 CFR 200.516(a)?

yes

yes

yes

yes

yes

yes

yes

no

none reported

no

no

none reported

no

no
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Lutheran Services for the Aging, Inc. and

Lutheran Family Services in the Carolinas and Affiliates
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs

Year Ended September 30, 2018

Section —Summary of Auditors’ Results, Continued

Identification of major federal programs:

CEDA Number Name of Federal Program or Cluster
93.676 Unaccompanied Alien Children Program
97.088 Disaster Case Management Program

Dollar threshold used to distinguish
between Type A and Type B programs: $750,000

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? X yes no

Section ll—Financial Statement Findings

Finding 2018-001
SIGNIFICANT DEFICIENCY

Criteria: An Organization’s internal control over financial reporting is a
process designed to provide reasonable assurance that the
financial statements are free of material errors.

Condition: It was noted during the audit that account roll forwards initially
provided by management related to fixed assets and debt did
not reconcile to the general ledger.

Effect: Debt and fixed assets were understated and fixed asset
disposals were recorded incorrectly. Adjustments had to be
made in order to add unrecorded debt and fixed assets to the
general ledger and correct disposals.

Cause: Reconciliations of fixed assets and debt were not properly
reviewed.
Recommendation: Management should implement separate reviews over roll

forwards of key accounts to ensure roll forwards properly
reconcile to the general ledger and subsidiary ledgers. Proper
roll forwards will help provide financial clarity and accuracy.
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Lutheran Services for the Aging, Inc. and

Lutheran Family Services in the Carolinas and Affiliates
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs

Year Ended September 30, 2018

Views of Responsible Officials

and Planned Corrective Actions: Management agrees with comments regarding significant
deficiency over internal control. See corrective action
plan.

Section lll—Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs

No matters are reportable.
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[LUTHERAN
SERVICES
CAROLINAS

Lutheran Family Services in the Carolinas
Corrective Action Plan
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2018

SIGNIFICANT DEFICIENCY

2018 — 001 Account roll forwards
Name of contact person: Tonya Frye, Controller

Corrective Action:  Management plans to implement further cross-training of duties surrounding
fixed assets. Additionally, procedures will be put in place outlining the process for adding fixed
assets to the corporation’s books, including the proper posting of debt. Beyond the Controller’s
oversight, the specific positions that will be involved are the Senior Accountant handling fixed
assets and the Accounts Payable Specialist.

Proposed Completion Date: Management will implement the above procedure immediately.
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DHG

DIXON HUGHES GOODMAN we

Independent Auditors’ Report on Consolidating Information

Board of Trustees
Lutheran Services for the Aging, Inc. and
Lutheran Family Services in the Carolinas and Affiliates

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Lutheran Services for the Aging, Inc. and
Lutheran Family Services in the Carolinas and Affiliates (the “Organization”) as of and for the year ended
September 30, 2018, and have issued our report thereon dated January 25, 2019, which contained an
unmodified opinion on those consolidated financial statements, appears on pages 1 - 2. Our audit was
performed for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated financial statements as a whole. The
consolidating information on pages 42 - 69 is presented for purposes of additional analysis of the
consolidated financial statements rather than to present the financial position and results of operations and
changes in net assets of the individual companies, and it is not a required part of the consolidated financial
statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly
to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the consolidated financial statements. The
consolidating information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling
such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the consolidated
financial statements or to the consolidated financial statements themselves, and other additional
procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In
our opinion, the consolidating information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the
consolidated financial statements as a whole.

Raleigh, North Carolina
January 25, 2019
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Certified Forecast Financial
Statements






LUTHERAN RETIREMENT CENTER - SALISBURY, INC.
d/b/a Trinity Oaks

FORECASTED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS’ COMPILATION
REPORT

FOR THE YEARS ENDING SEPTEMBER 30, 2019 THROUGH
SEPTEMBER 30, 2023
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TA CliftonLarsonAllen LLP
CLAconnect.com

CliftonLarsonAllen

INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS’ COMPILATION REPORT

Board of Trustees
Lutheran Retirement Center — Salisbury, Inc. d/b/a Trinity Oaks
Salisbury, North Carolina

Management is responsible for the accompanying forecasted financial statements of Lutheran Retirement Center —
Salisbury, Inc. d/b/a Trinity Oaks (“Trinity Oaks”), which comprise the forecasted balance sheets as of September
30, 2019, 2020, 2021, 2022, and 2023, and the related forecasted statements of operations and changes in net assets,
and cash flows for the years then ending, and the related summaries of significant forecast assumptions and
accounting policies in accordance with the guidelines for presentation of a financial forecast established by the
American Institute of Certified Public Accountants (AICPA). We have performed a compilation engagement in
accordance with Statements on Standards for Accounting and Review Services promulgated by the Accounting and
Review Services Committee of the AICPA. We did not examine or review the forecasted financial statements nor
were we required to perform any procedures to verify the accuracy or completeness of the information provided by
management. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion, a conclusion, nor provide any form of assurance on these
forecasted financial statements or the assumptions. Furthermore, there will usually be differences between the
forecasted and actual results, because events and circumstances frequently do not occur as expected, and those
differences may be material.

The accompanying forecast information and this report are intended solely for the information and use of

management, the Board of Trustees, and the North Carolina Department of Insurance (pursuant to the requirement of
North Carolina General Statutes, Chapter 58, Article 64 and is included in Trinity Oaks disclosure statement filing),

and is not intended to be and should not be used, by anyone other than these specified parties.

We have no responsibility to update this report for events and circumstances occurring after the date of this report.

WM"’% N

CliftonLarsonAllen LLP

Charlotte, North Carolina
February 21, 2019

A member of

Nexia

Internatlonal



LUTHERAN RETIREMENT CENTER - SALISBURY, INC.
d/b/a Trinity Oaks
FORECASTED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
FOR YEARS ENDING SEPTEMBER 30,

(In Thousands of Dollars)

OPERATING REVENUE
Net Resident Service Revenue:
Monthly Fee Revenues

Health Care Revenues - Assisted Living

Amortization of Deferred Entrance Fees
Other Revenue
Total Revenues and Other Support
EXPENSES
Health Care
Operations:
Maintenance
Utilities
Laundry
Housekeeping
Groundskeeping
Secunty
Dietary
Activities, Transportation, and Ministry
Administrative
Management Fee
Depreciation
Interest
Total Expenses

OPERATING INCOME
OTHER INCOME
Investment Income

Contrbutions
Total Other Income

EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER EXPENSES

Net Assets Released from Restriction Used for Purchase

of Equipment

INCREASEIN NET ASSETS (DEFICIT) WITHOUT DONOR RESTRICTIONS
Change in Net Assets With Donor Restrictions:

Contributions

Net Assets Released from Restriction Used for Purchase

of Equipment

Change in Net Assets With Donor Restrictions

Increase in Net Assets (Deficit)

Net Assets (Deficit) - Beginning of Year

Net Assets (Deficit) - End of Year

2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
$ 5769 $§ 5954 $ 6169 § 6368 S 6619
2413 2,505 2,580 2,657 2,737
1,123 1,298 1430 1,529 1,547
16 16 17 17 18
9321 9,773 10,196 10.571 10,921
884 921 947 972 1,000
453 4n 485 498 512
401 418 429 441 453
29 30 31 31 32
223 233 239 245 252
180 188 193 198 204
140 146 150 154 158
1,616 1,684 1731 1777 1827
42 439 451 463 476
1,423 1,484 1,525 1,565 1,609
386 397 409 421 434
2,200 2291 2358 2410 2449
275 253 230 205 179
8,631 8,956 9178 9,380 9,585
690 817 1,018 1,191 1336
50 80 82 84 87
: 6 6 6 6
50 86 83 920 93
740 903 1.106 1281 1429
5 = - = =
745 903 1,106 1281 1429
5 - - - -
©) - - - -
745 903 1,106 1281 1429
(815) (70) 833 1,939 3220
$ (70) § 833 § 1939 § 3220 § 4649

See Summary of Significant Forecast Assumptions and Accounting Policies and
Independent Accountants’ Compilation Report
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LUTHERAN RETIREMENT CENTER - SALISBURY, INC.
d/b/a Trinity Oaks
FORECASTED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR YEARS ENDING SEPTEMBER 30,
(In Thousands of Dollars)

2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

CASHFLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Increase in Net Assets (Deficit) $ 745 $ 903 S 1,106 $ 1281 § 1,429
Adjustments to Reconcile Increase in Net Assets (Deficit) to Net
Cash Provided by Operating Activities:

Depreciation and Amortization 2.200 2,291 2,358 2410 2449
Amortization of Deferred Entrance Fees (1,123) (1,298) (L430) (1,529) (1.547)
Decrease in Cumrent Assets 72 - - - -
Increase in Current Liabilities 8 14 14 14 15
Advance Fees Received, Net 881 861 1,094 1.043 1,185
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 2783 2771 3142 3219 3,531
CASHFLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchases of Property and Equipment (2.156) (1,500) (1,300) (1,000) (750)
Purchases of Investments, Net (1,023) 8) (13) (17) (487)
Net Change in Assets Limited as to Use (91) (71) (71) (76) (75)
Net Cash Used in Investing Activities (3.270) (1,579) (1,384) (1.093) (1.312)
CASHFLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Principal Payments on Long-term Debt (390) (414) 439) (465) (492)
Cash Paid to Related Party (146) (708) (1,199) (1.510) (1,505)
Net Cash Used in Fmancing Activities (536) (1,122) (1,638) (1.975) (1,997)
NET CHANGEIN CASHAND CASHEQUIVALENTS (1,023) 70 120 151 222
Cash and Cash Equivalents - Beginning 1,284 261 331 451 602
CASHAND CASH EQUIVALENTS - ENDING $ 261 $ 331§ 451 $§ 602 S 824
SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION
Cash Paid for Interest $ 25 3 253 § 230 $ 205 § 179

See Summary of Significant Forecast Assumptions and Accounting Policies and

Independent Accountants’ Compilation Report
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d/b/a Trinity Oaks
FORECASTED BALANCE SHEETS
AT SEPTEMBER 30,

(In Thousands of Dollars)

LUTHERAN RETIREMENT CENTER - SALISBURY, INC.

2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 261 § 331 § 451 § 602 $ 824
Accounts Receivable, Residents, Net of Allowance for
Doubtful Accounts 15 15 15 15 15
Other Receivables 185 185 185 185 185
Inventories 39 40 38 38 40
Total Cumrent Assets 500 571 689 840 1,064
Assets Limited as to Use
Board Designated Investments 858 884 912 938 967
Opernatmg Reserve Requirement 1,769 1,814 1,858 1,907 1953
Total Assets Limited as to Use 2,627 2,698 2,770 2845 2920
Investments 46 54 67 84 57
Property and Equipment 42552 44,052 45352 46352 47,102
Accunmilated Depreciation (19666)  (21957)  (24315)  (26725)  (29.175)
Property and Equipment, Net 22 886 22,095 21,037 19,627 17,927
Total Assets $ 26059 § 25418 § 24563 $ 23_,2.96 $ 22482
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities
Current Maturities of Long-Term Debt $ 414 S 439 $ 465 $ 492 § 522
Accounts Payable, Trade 152 157 162 166 171
Accrued Health Benefits 22 23 23 24 25
Accrued Salanes and Payroll Taxes 276 285 293 302 311
Refundable Fees - Cumrent 924 924 924 924 924
Payable to Related Parties 4,957 4,249 3.050 1,540 35
Total Current Liabilities 6.745 6,077 4917 3,448 1,988
Long-Term Liabilities
Refundable Fees 6437 5263 4294 3,490 2,879
Deferred Revenue from Advance Fees 8.244 9,011 9,639 9,991 10,249
Deposits 357 326 331 296 288
Long-TermDebt, Less Cumrent Matunties 4,346 3,908 3443 2951 2429
Total Long-term Liabilities 19,384 18,508 17,707 16,728 15,845
Total Liabilities 26,129 24,585 22,624 20,176 17,833
NET ASSEIS (DEFICIT)
Net Assets without Donor Restrictions (85) 818 1,924 3,205 4,634
Net Assets with Donor Restrictions 15 15 15 15 15
Total Net Assets (Deficit) (70) 833 1,939 3,220 4,649
Total Liabilities and Net Assets (Deficit) $ 26059 25418 $ 24563 $§ 23396 § 22482

See Summary of Significant Forecast Assumptions and Accounting Policies and
Independent Accountants’ Compilation Report
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Summary of Significant Forecast Assumptions and Accounting Policies
Introduction

Basis of Presentation

This financial forecast presents, to the best of management’s (“Management™) knowledge and belief Lutheran
Retirement Center — Salisbury, Inc. d/b/a Trinity Oaks (“Trinity Oaks™) expected balance sheets, statements of
operations and changes in net assets and cash flows as of September 30, 2019, 2020, 2021, 2022, and 2023 and for

each of the years then ending (the “Forecast” or the “Forecast Period”).

Accordingly, the forecast reflects Management’s judgment as of February 21, 2019, the date of this forecast, of the
expected conditions and its expected course of action during the forecast period. The financial forecast is based on
Management’s assumptions concerning future events and circumstances. The assumptions disclosed herein are
those that Management believes are significant to the forecast or are key factors upon which the financial results of
the Organization depend.

There will usually be differences between the forecasted and actual results becanse events and circumstances
frequently do not occur as expected and those differences may be material. Management does not intend to revise
this forecast to reflect changes in present circumstances or the occurrence of unanticipated events.

See Independent Accountants’ Compilation Report
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Summary of Significant Forecast Assumptions and Accounting Policies
Background Information

Background

Trinity Oaks is an affiliate of Lutheran Services for the Aging, Inc. (“LSA™), a social ministry organization affiliated
with the North Carolina Synod of the Evangelical Lutheran Church in America. Both Trinity Oaks and LSA are
nonprofit corporations under section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code and are located in Salisbury, North
Carolina.

LSA began operations in 1962 as North Carolina Lutheran Homes, growing from a small nursing home in Hickory
to seven nursing homes, two retirement communities, an assisted living facility, an adult day services operation, a
pharmacy, a home care agency and a foundation. LSA has also partnered with agencies in both Catawba and Gaston
counties to provide services to seniors through Program of All-Inclusive Care for the Elderly (PACE) programs.

As of December 31, 2018, LSA and affililates consist of:

Independent Assisted Skilled Associated

Corporate Name d/b/a Location Living Living Nursing Co ion
Lutheran Services for the Aging, Inc. Salisbury, NC - - Lutheran Services Property, Inc.

Lutheran Home - Albemarle, Inc. Trinity Place Albemrle, NC - 10 76  Intheran Home Albemmare Property, Inc.
Lutheran Home - Hickory, Inc. Trinity Village Hickory, NC - % 14  Intheran Home Hickory Propesty, Inc.
Lutheran Home at Trinity Oaks, Inc. Trinity Oaks Health & Rehab ~ Salisbury, NC 0] 1 115  Lutheran Home at Trinity Oaks Property, Inc.
Litheran Home - Hickory West, Inc. Trinity Ridge Hickory, NC - - 120  Lutheran Home Hickory West Property, Inc.
Lutheran Home - Winston-Salem, Ine. Trinity Glen Winston-Salem NC - - 117 ILutheran Home Winston-Salem Property, Inc.
Iutheran Home - Wilmington, Inc. Trinity Grove Wilmington, NC - - 100 Inthern Home Wiktington Property, Inc.
Lutheran Home - Forsyth County, Inc. Tonity Elus Health & Rehab  Clezomons, NC - - 100 Iotheran Home Forsyth County Property, Inc.
1SA Hns at Tanglewood, Inc. Trnity Elos Clemmons, NC - ISA Flos Property, Inc.
Tutheran Retirement Center at Lutheridge, Inc.  Trinity View Arden NC b 2 - WA
Lutheran Retirement Center - Salisbury, Inc. Trinity Oaks Salisbury, NC 167 38 - NA
ILutheran Retirement Center - Clemmons Trinity Bns Clemmons, NC - - - NA
1SA Blnx Property, Inc. b2} - - NA
I1SA Management, Inc. Intheran Services Carofnas  Salishury, NC - - - NA
LSA Phamucy, Inc. Salisbury, NC - = = NA
Abundant Living Adult Day Services, Inc. Trinity Living Salisbury, NC - - - NA
Lutheran Retirement Center - Wilmington, Inc. Trinity Landing Wilmington, NC - - - NA
Lntheran Services for the Aging Foundation, Inc. Salisbury, NC - - -  NA
LSA Therapy, Inc. Salisbury, NC - - - NA
Trinity at Home, ne. Salisbury, NC - - - NA
Trinity Guardian Services, Inc. Salisbury, NC - - - NA

EIT 259 732

Source: Management

In December 2018, LSA Elms Property, Inc. purchased 54 independent living apartment buildings adjacent to
Lutheran Retirement Center — Clemmons (Trinity Elms).

In 2011, LSA entered into an affiliation with Lutheran Family Services in the Carolinas (“LFS”).

LSA Management, Inc. provides management, accounting, management information and resource development
services to all of the affiliates. LSA Pharmacy, Inc. provides pharmacy services to the seven Lutheran Homes in
operation. Trinity Place, Trinity Village, Trinity Oaks Health & Rehab, Trinity Ridge, Trinity Glen, Trinity Grove
and Trinity Elms are separately owned and operated. All seven homes provide skilled and intermediate nursing
services and Trinity Place, Trinity Village and Trinity Oaks Health & Rehab provide home for the aged services
(generically, assisted living). The Lutheran Home Property affiliates own the buildings, land improvements and
building services equipment for their respective operations and the facilities are leased to the operating corporations.
The retirement center affiliates were established to develop and operate rental retirement and continuing care
retirement communities.

See Independent Accountants’ Compilation Report
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Summary of Significant Forecast Assumptions and Accounting Policies
Background Information (continued)

Overview of Services Provided by Trinity Oaks

Trinity Oaks is a fee-for-service retirement community consisting of 167 independent living units (125 apartments
and 42 cottages) and 38 assisted living residences. The independent living apartments, housed in a three-story
building, include 45 two-bedroom units, 63 one-bedroom units and 17 studio units. All 38 assisted living residences
are single occupancy rooms. Trinity Oaks currently occupies approximately 11 acres, part of the larger 40-acre site
upon which the skilled nursing facility known as Trinity Oaks Health & Rehab is located. Trinity Oaks and the
Trinity Oaks Health & Rehab operate together as a North Carolina licensed continuing care retirement community
(a “CCRC™).

The following paragraph is a summary of key provisions of the Resident Agreemeni. For more detailed
information regarding this agreement, please refer to Trinily Oaks’ Resident Agreement which is included in
Trinity Oaks’ Disclosure Statement filed with the North Carolina Department of Insurance.

Trinity Oaks offers three entrance fee plans for all of its apartments and cottages (as further described in “Advance
Fees” on pages 9 and 10). The entrance fee entitles occupancy of a residence by the resident at Trinity Oaks,
together with the use and benefits of its common areas, amenities, services and programs. The entrance fee also
assures the residents priority access to the assisted living center and Trinity Oaks Health & Rehab. Upon leaving
Trinity Oaks independent living units, the resident or the resident’s estate will receive a refund of the entrance fee,
depending upon the entrance plan selected. A monthly service fee for the independent living apartments include
all occupancy costs (except telephone service and cable TV) and includes two meals per day in the community
dining room. Service fees are based on the size and type of apartment occupied. Apartments occupied by more
than one person are assessed a fee for each additional occupant to cover the additional maintenance and meal cost.
Monthly fees and services for cottage residents are modeled after those provided apartment residents, with
variations in dietary and certain other services. Monthly fees for the assisted living residents include three meals
per day and all occupancy costs (except telephone service and cable TV). Trinity Oaks provides activity and
transportation opportunities for all of its residents. Trinity Oaks maintains a staff of approximately 86 full-time

equivalents.

See Independent Accountants’ Compilation Report
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Summary of Significant Forecast Assumptions and Accounting Policies
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Accounting

Trinity Oaks maintains its accounting and financial records according to the accrual basis of accounting.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Trinity Oaks maintains its cash and cash equivalents in bank deposit accounts which, at times, may exceed federally
insured limits. Trinity Oaks has not experienced any losses in such accounts. Trinity Oaks believes it is not exposed
to any significant credit risk on cash.

For purposes of the forecasted statements of cash flows, Trinity Oaks considers all unrestricted highly liquid
investments with an initial maturity date of three months or less to be cash equivalents.

Investments

Investments in marketable equity securities with readily determinable fair values and all investments in debt
securities are measured at fair value in the forecasted balance sheets. Investment income or loss (including realized
gains and losses on investments, interest and dividends) is included in the excess of revenues over expenses unless
the income or loss is restricted by donor or law. Unrealized gains and losses on investments are included in the
excess of revenue over expenses if the investments are trading securities. Management has not forecasted unrealized
gains or losses during the Forecast Period.

Trinity Oaks records its investments under the provisions of U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. In
accordance with those standards, the Trinity Oaks has characterized its investments in securities, based on the
priority of the inputs used to value the investments, into a three-level fair value hierarchy. The fair value hierarchy
gives the highest priority to unobservable inputs (Level 3). If the inputs used fo measure the investments fall within
different levels of the hierarchy, the categorization is based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement of the investment.

Investments recorded in the forecasted balance sheets are categorized based on the inputs to valuation techniques
as follows:

e Level 1 - These are investments where values are based on unadjusted quoted prices for identical assets in
an active market which Trinity Oaks has the ability to access. These investments are exchange-traded
investments in equity securities and U.S. Treasury securities.

e Level 2 - These are investments where values are based on quoted prices in markets that are not active or
model inputs that are observable either directly or indirectly for substantially the full term of the
investments. These investments are comprised of corporate and municipal bonds that trade infrequently.

See Independent Accountants’ Compilation Report
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Summary of Significant Forecast Assumptions and Accounting Policies
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

e Level 3 - These are investments where values are based on prices or valuation techniques that require inputs
that are both unobservable and significant to the overall fair value measurement. These inputs reflect
assumptions of management about assumptions market participants would use in pricing the investments.
These investments are certain private equity investments.

Management has not forecasted that investment allocations would vary between levels 1, 2 and 3 beyond historical
patterns.

Revenue and Accounts Receivable

Trinity Oaks considers accounts receivable to be fully collectible; accordingly no allowance for doubtful accounts
is required. If amounts become uncollectible, they will be charged to operations when that determination is made.
Management does not expect these amounts to be material. Generally, no finance charges are assessed on trade
receivables.

Assets Limited as to Use

Assets limited as to use are forecasted to primarily include investments for which the board has designated and the
stafutorily required operating reserve.

Debt Issuance Costs

Debt issuance costs are being amortized using the straight-line method, which approximates the effective interest
method, over the term of the related financing agreement.

As noted hereinafter, the debt issuance costs for the Series 2017 Bonds are carried on the financial records of LSA
Management, Inc. and all related amortization expense associated with the amortization of the debt issuance costs
are allocated through intercompany accounts and the amortization of which is included as a component of interest
expense on the forecasted statements of operations and changes in net assets.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment having an estimated useful life greater than two years and a value greater than $1,000 are
forecasted to be stated at cost if purchased or at fair market value at the date of donation. Maintenance and repairs
are forecasted to be charged to expense as incurred and renewals and betterments are forecasted to be capitalized.
Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets.

Compensation Absences
Compensated absences are forecasted to be accrued for employees as benefits are earned.

Refundable Fees and Deferred Revenue from Advance Fees

Fees paid by a resident upon entering into a residency agreement at Trinity Oaks continuing care retirement
community, net of the portion thereof that is refundable to the resident, are recorded as deferred revenue from
advance fees and are amortized to income using the straight-line method over the estimated remaining life
expectancy of the resident.

See Independent Accountants’ Compilation Report
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Summary of Significant Forecast Assumptions and Accounting Policies
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Through July 31, 2013, Trinity Oaks offered two types of agreements. One type, the 80% Entrance Fee Refund
Plan, states the refund is equal to the entrance fee less a four percent (4%) non-refundable fee paid at time of
occupancy and by one percent (1%) per month for the first 16 months of occupancy, after which 80% of the entrance
fee is refundable. The other type, the Limited Refund Plan, states the refund for apartments is equal to the entrance
fee less a four percent (4%) non-refundable fee paid at time of occupancy and two percent (2%) per month for the
first 48 months, after which the entrance fees is non-refundable; the refund for cottages under the Limited Refund
Plan is equal to the Entrance Fee, which is comprised of the basic Cottage fee and selected Major Options, reduced
by five percent (5%) per month, or any portion of a month of occupancy for the first twenty (20) months of
occupancy. Following twenty (20) months of occupancy, there is no refund on any amount paid by the Resident.
Any refund is payable upon reoccupancy or within two years, whichever occurs first. Trinity Oaks records a current
portion of refundable fees that is expected to be refunded in the next year.

Beginning August 1, 2013, Trinity Oaks offers three types of agreements. The 90% Refund Plan, states the refund
is equal to the entrance fee less a one percent (1%) non-refundable fee paid at time of occupancy and by one-half
percent (0.5%) per month for the first 18 months of occupancy, after which 90% of the entrance fee is refundable.
The 50% Refund Plan, states the refund is equal to the entrance fee less two percent (2%) non-refundable fee paid
at time of occupancy and by one percent (1%) per month for the first 48 months of occupancy. after which 50% of
the entrance fee is refundable. The Limited Refund Plan, states the refund is equal to the entrance fee less a four
percent non-refundable fee paid at the time of occupancy and two percent (2%) per month for the first 48 months,
after which the entrance fee is non-refundable. Any refund is payable upon re-occupancy.

Net Assets With Donor Restrictions

Net assets with donor restrictions are those whose use by Trinity Oaks has been limited by donors to a specific time
period or purpose.

Excess of Revenue Over Expenses

The forecasted statements of operations and changes in net assets include excess of revenue over expenses. Changes
in net assets without donor restrictions, which are excluded from excess of revenue over expenses, consistent with
industry practice, include unrealized gains and losses on investments other than trading securities, permanent
transfers of assets to and from affiliates for other than goods and services, and contributions of long-lived assets
(including assets acquired using contributions which by donor restriction were to be used for the purposes of
acquiring such assets).

Donor-Restricted Gifts

Unconditional promises to give cash and other assets to Trinity Oaks are reported at fair value at the date the promise
is received. Conditional promises to give and indications of intentions to give are reported at fair value at the date
the gift is received. The gifts are reported as restricted support if they are received with donor stipulations that limit
the use of the donated assets. When a donor restriction expires, that is, when a stipulated time restriction ends or
purpose restriction is accomplished, net assets under donor restriction are reclassified to net assets without donor
restrictions and reported in the forecasted statements of operations and changes in nef assets as net assets released
from restrictions. Donor-restricted contributions whose restrictions are met within the same year as received are
reported as restricted contributions and released from net assets under donor restrictions in the accompanying
forecasted financial statements.

See Independent Accountants’ Compilation Report
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Summary of Significant Forecast Assumptions and Accounting Policies
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Advertising Costs

Advertising costs are charged to operations when incurred.

Long-Lived Assets

Trinity Oaks periodically reviews the carrying value of its long-lived assets (primarily property and equipment)
whenever events or circumstances provide evidence that suggests that the carrying amount of long-lived assets may
not be recovered. If this review indicates that the long-lived assets may not be recoverable, Trinity Oaks reviews
the expected undiscounted future net operating cash flows from its facilities, as well as property valuations. Any
permanent impairment of value is recognized as a charge against earnings in the forecasted statements of operations
and changes in net assets. Management has not forecasted any impairment of its long-lived assets.

Income Taxes

Trinity Oaks has been recognized as tax-exempt pursuant to Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code. Trinity
Oaks has implemented the accounting requirements associated with uncertainty in income taxes using the provisions
of Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB") ASC 740, Income Taxes. Using that guidance, tax positions
initially need to be recognized in the forecasted financial statements when it is more-likely-than-not the positions
will be sustained upon examination by the tax authorities. It also provides guidance for derecognition, classification,
interest and penalties, accounting in interim periods, disclosure and transition.

See Independent Accountants’ Compilation Report
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Summary of Significant Forecast Assumptions and Accounting Policies
Management’s Basis for Forecast of Revenue

Revenues for Trinity Oaks are primarily generated from monthly service fees for the independent living units,
amortization of entrance fees, and per diem charges for the assisted living units.

Net resident service revenue is composed of:

e Revenue for the independent living units, which are based on the monthly service fees assumed by
Management to be charged to the residents and the assumed utilization of the independent living units and,
e Revenue for the assisted living units based on the assumed daily charges.

Forecasted Occupancy Levels

Management has assumed the following forecasted occupancy levels at Trinity Oaks throughout the Forecast
Period.

Table 1
Average Yearly Forecasted Utilization of Trinity Oaks - Independent Living Units
2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
Units Occupied 158 157 157 157 157
Units Available 167 167 167 167 167
Average Occupancy Percentage 94.6% 94.0% 94.0% 94.0% 94.0%

Source: Management

Management has forecasted second person occupancy percentages of 34%, 36%, 36%. 39%, and 39%, respectively,
for 2019, 2020, 2021, 2022, and 2023.

Table 2
Average Yearly Forecasted Utilization of Trinity Oaks - Assisted Living
2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
Units Occupied 37 37 37 37 37
Units Available 38 38 38 38 38
Average Occupancy Percentage 98.5% 98.5% 98& 98.5% 98.5%

Source: Management

See Independent Accountants’ Compilation Report
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Summary of Significant Forecast Assumptions and Accounting Policies
Management’s Basis for Forecast of Revenue (continued)

Forecasted Entrance Fees, Monthly Fees and Daily Fees Increases

Increases in fees are generally anticipated to equal or exceed increases in operating expenses during the Forecast
Period. The following table reflects forecasted rate increases for the Forecast Period.

Table 3
Trinity Oaks Forecasted Rate Increases
2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
Independent Living  Entrance Fee n/a® 0% 0% 0% 0%
Independent Living  Private Pay - Monthly Fee na® 3% 3% 3% 3%
Assisted Living Private Pay n/a® 3% 3% 3% 3%

Source: Management
Note (1) Rates used in forecast are set forth in following tables

Assisted Living Fees

The following table summarizes Management’s forecasted per diem rates for the assisted living facility of Trinity
Oaks:

Table 4
Trinity Oaks — Forecasted Assisted Living Daily Rates

2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

Daily Rates $178 $183 $189 $195 $200

Source: Management

Assisted Living Payer Mix

The following table summarizes Management’s forecasted payer mix by resident days for Trinity Oaks assisted
living facility:

Table 5
Trinity Oaks — Forecasted Assisted Living Payer Mix

2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

Private Pay 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%

Source: Management

See Independent Accountants’ Compilation Report
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Summary of Significant Forecast Assumptions and Accounting Policies
Management’s Basis for Forecast of Revenue (continued)

Independent Living Entrance Fees and Monthly Service Fees

The following chart reflects the monthly rental fee for each unit type effective January 1, 2019 for the fiscal year
ending September 30, 2019:

Table 6
Trinity Oaks Independent Living Monthly Service Fees

Unit Type No. of Units Square Feet Monthly Fee
Studio 17 504 $1,924
One Bedroom 18 607 $2.415
One BedroomDeluxe 45 695 $2,584
Two Bedroom 45 955 $3.084
Cottage 42 1,463-2,800 $2.598
Total/ Weighted Average 167 1.097 $2.637

Source: Management

Below is a table setting forth the entrance fees effective March 1, 2019 for the fiscal year ending September 30,
2019:

Table 7
Trinity Oaks Independent Living Entrance Fees

Entrance Fees
No. of Units Square Ft. Limited-Refund 50% Refund 90% Refund
Apartments:

Studio 17 504 $56,650 $75,705 $135.445
One Bedroom 18 607 $66,700 $88.840 $159,135
One Bedroom Deluze 45 695 $70,040 $93.215 $166.860
Two Bedroom 45 955 $104,545 $139,565 $249,520
Cottages 4 1,463 — 2.800 $135,000 $180,000 $318,000

Second Person - Apartments $3.865 $5.150 $9.270

Second Person - Cottages $5.410 $7.210 $12.875
Total/W eiEh!ed Avemse 167 1,097 $93,952 $125277 $223.114

Source: Management

See Independent Accountants’ Compilation Report
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Summary of Significant Forecast Assumptions and Accounting Policies
Management’s Basis for Forecast of Revenue (continued) '

Entrance Fee Receipts and Refund

Entrance fee receipts and refunds are based on information provided by Management based on historical experience,
as well as Management’s assumptions relating to occupancy increases during the forecast period. The following
table reflects entrance fees received and refunds paid during the Forecast Period for Trinity Oaks, as forecasted by

Management.

Table 8
Trinity Oaks Independent Living Forecasted Entrance Fees, Net
(In Thousands of Dollars)

2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
Entrance fees received fromunit tumover $ 2581 $ 2361 % 2394 $ 2,143 § 2.085
Entrance fees refunded fromunit tumover (1.700) (1,500) (1.300) (1.100) (900)
Total entrance fees received, net of refunds 5] 881 3§ 861 $ 1094 $ 1,043 § 1,185

Source: Management

Management has assumed that selection of the entrance fee plans would be as follows:
e 80 percent selecting the Limited-Refund Plan;
e 10 percent selecting the 50% Refund Plan; and
e 10 percent selecting the 90% Refund Plan.

Investment Income

Interest income consists of interest earned on available cash and cash equivalents, investments and assets limited as
to use. The following table reflects Management’s assumed realized (net of expenses) investment earning rates
during the Forecast Period for funds invested by Trinity Oaks.

Table 9
Forecasted Investment Earning Rates

2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
Cash and Cash Equivalents 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Investments 2.00% 2.00% 2.00% 2.00% 2.00%
Assets Limited as to Use 3.00% 3.00% 3.00% 3.00% 3.00%

Source: Management

Management does not project any unrealized gains/losses from the valuation of investments during the Forecast
Period for 2019 through 2023.

Contributions

Management has forecasted $6.000 in annual, unrestricted contributions beginning in 2020 and continuing through
2023.

See Independent Accountants’ Compilation Report
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Summary of Significant Forecast Assumptions and Accounting Policies
Management’s Basis for Forecast of Expenses

Operating Expenses

Operating expenses have been forecasted to be recognized during the month incurred. Management has forecasted
operating expenses based upon Management’s operating plans for Trinity Oaks, based on the historical operations
of Trinity Oaks. In general, operating expenses are forecasted to increase approximately 3.0 percent annually
throughout the Forecast Period for inflation.

The specific basis for major expense items was formulated by Management and is discussed below.

Salaries and Wages

A full time equivalent employee (“FTE”) represents 2,080 hours of time paid annually. Average hourly rates are
forecasted to increase at a rate of 3.0 percent per annum for inflation throughout the Forecast Period.

The following table reflects Management’s forecasted staffing relating to Trinity Oaks:

Table 10
Forecasted Staffing
(In Full Time Equivalents —FTEs)
2019 2020 2021 w0 2023
Avg. Hourly Avg. Hourly Avg. Houly Avg. Hourly Avg. Houdy
FIEs Wage FIEs Wage FIEs Wage FIEs Wage FIEs Wage
Healthcare 2325 § 1319 B § 1358 BB § BN B3 § 144 B25 § 1484
Aduministration 155 § 2369 1550 § 2441 155 § 2514 155 § 2589 1550 § 2667
e and Plant Op 800 § 1875 BOD § 1932 800 § 195 800 § 2049 800 § 2111
Housekeeping 1o § 818 10 $ 842 1100 § 868 10 § 8% 1100 § 920
Dietary 3600 § 107 3600 § 1104 3600 § 1137 3600 $ 1M 3600 § 1207
Total Weighted Average 9375 § 1387 9375 § 1428 9375 § 1471 9375 § 1515 9375 § 1561

Source: Management

Emplovee Benefits

Benefit costs include payroll taxes and employee benefits including FICA, unemployment taxes, workers’
compensation, health insurance, pension plan, incentives and other miscellaneous benefits for Trinity Oaks. These
benefit costs have been forecasted by department based on the historical experience of Trinity Oaks. Management
has forecasted that benefits would approximate 19 percent of wages and salaries during the Forecast Period.
Management assuines that these costs would increase at approximately 5.0 percent annually for inflation during the
Forecast Period.

Healthcare

Healthcare costs have been estimated based upon the historical costs of Trinity Oaks, Management’s estimates, and
industry experience. Management assumes that these costs increase 3.0 percent annually for inflation during the
Forecast Period.

Maintenance / Groundskeeping / Security

Non-salary related costs in this department include Management’s estimate of the costs for service contracts, repairs,
general maintenance, and operating supplies which Management assumes are primarily fixed in nature, and adjusted
to reflect changes in occupancy levels. Management assumes that these costs would increase 3.0 percent annually
for inflation during the Forecast Period.

See Independent Accountants’ Compilation Report
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Summary of Significant Forecast Assumptions and Accounting Policies
Management’s Basis for Forecast of Expenses (continued)

Utilities

Utilities costs’ have been estimated based upon the historical utilities’ costs of Trinity Oaks, Management’s
estimates, and industry experience. Management assumes that these costs would increase 3.0 percent annually for
inflation during the Forecast Period.

Housekeeping / Laundry

Non-salary costs of housekeeping and laundry services include Management’s estimate of the costs for contract
services, supplies, and other miscellaneous costs associated with providing housekeeping and laundry services to
residents. Management assumes that these costs would increase 3.0 percent annually for inflation during the

Forecast Period.

Groundskeeping and Security

Groundskeeping and security costs have been estimated based upon the historical costs of Trinity Oaks,
Management’s estimates, and industry experience. Management assumes that these costs would increase 3.0 percent
annually for inflation during the Forecast Period.

Dietary

Non-salary related costs of the food services department include Management’s estimate of the costs for raw food,
contracted services, dietary supplies, equipment, linens and other such costs. Nutrition costs are forecasted to vary
with changes in meal consumptions as a result in changes in occupancy levels and inflation. Management assumes
that these costs would vary with changes in occupancy levels as well as Management has assumed the costs for raw
food would increase 5.0 percent annually for inflation during the Forecast Period and all other non-salary related
costs would increase 3.0 percent annually for inflation during the Forecast Period.

Activities, Transportation, and Ministiy

Activity, transportation, and ministry costs have been estimated based upon the historical costs of Trinity Oaks,
Management’s estimates, and industry experience. Management assumes that these costs would increase 3.0 percent
annually for inflation during the Forecast Period.

Administration

Non-salary related costs of administration are forecasted to include Management’s estimate of costs for professional
fees, insurance, supplies and other miscellaneous costs. In addition, non-salary related costs of marketing and sales
are forecasted to include Management’s estimates of costs for advertising, print and online materials and website,
contract services, professional fees and other miscellaneous costs. Management assumes these costs would increase
3.0 percent annually for inflation during the Forecast Period.

Management Fee

Effective October 1, 2017, Trinity Oaks entered into a Management Services Agreement with LSA Management,
Inc. to provide management services on behalf of Trinity Oaks. The Management Services Agreement will be for
a term of five years, and at the end of the five-year period, LSA Management, Inc. shall have the option to extend
this Agreement for two additional five-year terms or for such shorter period coterminous with the period the Facility
is leased or owned by Trinity Oaks. The Management Services Agreement may be immediately terminated if any
party is in defanlt under its terms and the default is not cured within the applicable cure period. Management has
forecasted that it would extend the Management Services Agreement upon its expiration.

According to the terms of the Management Services Agreement, LSA Management, Inc. is to be paid a management
fee equal to 4% of Gross Revenue of Trinity Oaks net of governmental contractual adjustments. The expense is
shown as an operating expense on the forecasted statements of operations and changes in net assets and has been
recorded as a payable to related party on the forecasted balance sheets.

See Independent Accountants’ Compilation Report
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Summary of Significant Forecast Assumptions and Accounting Policies
Management’s Basis for Forecast of Other Items

Current Assets and Current Liabilities

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent balances for the Forecast Period are based on the results of the Forecasted Statements of
Cash Flows and reflect amounts that are highly liquid with a maturity of three months or less. For purposes of
presentations, cash and cash equivalent balances are estimated to be approximately 15 days for 2019, 19 days for
2020, 25 days for 2021, 32 days for 2022, and 43 days for 2023. Amounts in excess of these amounts are classified
as investments.

Accounts Receivable, Residents, Net of Allowance for Doubtful Accounts
Accounts receivable, net of allowance for non-collectible accounts, are forecasted based on historical levels based

on 1 day of operating revenues.

Inventories
Inventories have been forecasted based on historical experience based on 2 days of operating expenses.

Accounts Payable, Trade
Accounts payable, trade, have been forecasted based on historical levels for Trinity Oaks based on 9 days of

operating expenses.

Acerued Health Benefits
Accrued Health Benefits have been forecasted based on historical levels for the Trinity Oaks based on 1 day of
operating expenses.

Accrued Salavies and Payroll Taxes
Accrued salaries and payroll taxes have been forecasted based on historical levels for Trinity Oaks based on 37 days
of total salaries and taxes.

Refundable Fees - Current
Refundable Fees — Current - have been forecasted based on a fixed amount and Management has not forecasted that

the current balances would change during the Forecast Period.

Payable to Related Parties

Payable to Related Parties have been forecasted by Management based upon forecasted cash flow needs of Trinity
Oaks and forecasted repayment to LSA during the Forecast Period based upon available cash flows. See additional
description contained hereinafter.

See Independent Accountants’ Compilation Report
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Summary of Significant Forecast Assumptions and Accounting Policies
Management’s Basis for Forecast of Other Items (continued)

Assets Limited as to Use

A narrative description of the assets limited as to use follows.

Under Board Designation

Board Designated Investments — Funds designed by the Board are for capital acquisitions and are assumed to remain
stable throughout the Forecast Period.

Restricted Cash and Investments — Operating Reserve Requirements —In North Carolina, continuing care retirement
communities are required to establish an operating reserve equal to 50 percent of operating expenses if the
community’s average occupancy is below 90 percent and 25 percent if the occupancy is in excess of 90 percent.
The statufory operating reserve is based on operating expenses (excluding depreciation and amortization), and
Trinity Oaks can exclude interest and principal payments if a separate debt service reserve fund has been established.
Management has forecasted its occupancy at Trinity Oaks, which is a continuing care retirement community, to
exceed 90 percent. As such, Management has forecasted an operating reserve in the amount of 25 percent of
operating expenses for all fiscal years. The Operating Reserve can be accessed for operating needs, but permission
must be granted by the North Carolina Department of Insurance.

Table 11
Forecasted Operating Reserve Calculation — Trinity Oaks
For the Years Ending September 30,
(In Thousands of Dollars)

Estimated
2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
Forecasted Total Expenses $ 80956 $ 9178 $ 938 $ 958 $ 9780
Inchude:
Principal Payment 414 439 465 492 522
Exclude:
Depreciation (2201) (2.358) (2.410) (2.449) (2,486)
Amortization of Debt Issuance Costs Included
in Interest Expense @ @ ()] ) )
Total Operating Costs § 7077 $ 7257 $ 7433 § 7626 $ 7814
Operating Reserve Percentage 25% 25% 25% 25% 25%
Operating Reserve $ 1,769 $ 1814 $ 1858 $ 1907 $ 1953
Independent Living Available Units . 167 167 167 167 167
Occupied Units 158 157 157 157 157
Occupancy Percentage 95% 94% 94% 9% 94%
Assisted Living Available Units 38 38 38 38 38
Occupied Units 37 37 37 37 37
Occupancy Percentage 09% 99% 99% 09% 99%
Combined Available Units 205 205 205 205 205
Occupied Units 195 194 194 194 194
Occupancy Percentage 95% 95% 05% 95% 95%

Source: Management
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Summary of Significant Forecast Assumptions and Accounting Policies

Management’s Basis for Forecast of Other Items (continued)

Investments

Investments reflect amounts whose maturities exceeding three months or that are not highly liquid. Forecasted
changes in investments are a result of the Forecasted Statements of Cash Flows, less amounts that are included in

cash and cash equivalents.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment balances, net of accumulated depreciation, were forecasted based on the costs of property

and equipment additions during the Forecast Period, reduced by estimated annual depreciation.

The following table reflects the forecasted property and equipment balances as of September 30:

Table 12
Forecasted Property and Equipment as of September 30,
(In Thousands of Dollars)
2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

Land and Land Improvements $ 2998 $ 3001 § 3172 § 3234 § 3,281
Building 37,690 39,041 40212 41,113 41,789
Equipment and Furnishings 1,080 1,120 1,155 1,181 1,201
Software 114 119 123 126 128
Automotive 270 281 290 298 303
Construction in Progress 400 400 / 400 400 400
Subtotal 42,552 44,052 45352 46,352 47,102
Less: Accunmlated Depreciation (19.666) (21,957) (24.315) (26.725) (29,175)
Net Property and Equipment $ 22,886 § 22,095 - § 21,037 $ 19,627 § 17,927

Source: Management

The following table reflects routine capital additions during the Forecast.

Table 13
Forecasted Property and Equipment Additions
(In Thousands of Dollars)

2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

Capital Expenditures - Routine $ 2156 $ 1,500 $ 1300 § 1,000 §

750

Source: Management
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Summary of Significant Forecast Assumptions and Accounting Policies
Management’s Basis for Forecast of Other Items (continued)

Long-Term Debt and Interest Expense

Trinity Oaks is one of several members of LSA that are part of an Obligated Group (the “Obligated Group™) which
was established as part of its previous financings. The Obligated Group has a number of existing outstanding debt
agreements which Trinity Oaks is subject to. Management has indicated that the long-term debt of the Obligated
Group consisted of the following at October 1, 2018:

e $31,564,998 (“Series 2017 Bonds™)

o InMarch 2017, LSA issued $33,795.000 tax exempt Health Care Facilities First Mortgage Revenue
Refunding Bonds (Lutheran Services for the Aging) Series 2017 Bonds through the North Carolina
Medical Care Commission ("Commission") under the Master Trust Indenture and other related
agreements. The proceeds were used to refund the outstanding Series 1998 and Series 2012B Bonds
and pay certain expenses incurred in connection with the authorization and issuance of the 2017
Bonds. The 2017 Bonds mature annually on March 1 in amounts ranging from $870.000 to
$2,345,000 and bear interest at the bank bought rate of 68% of LIBOR plus 1.28% to 1.48% based
on leverage ratio until converted to daily, weekly or adjusted rate for amounts maturing between
2018 and 2038. The 2017 Bonds are secured by the Obligated Group's Deeds of Trust on real
property and fixtures under the Master Trust Indenture.

e $42,190.000 (““Series 2012A Bonds™)

o In December 2012, LSA issued $44,790,000 tax-exempt Health Care Facilities First Mortgage
Revenue Refunding Bonds (Lutheran Services for the Aging) Series 2012A Bonds through the
North Carolina Medical Care Commission under the Master Trust Indenture and other related
agreements. The proceeds were used to refund the outstanding Series 2009 and Series 2010 Bonds,
as well as other loans and fund debt service reserve fund and issuance costs.

o The 2012A Bonds mature annually on March 1 in amounts ranging from $220,000 to $2.885,000
and bear interest at rates between 2.00% and 5.00% for amounts maturing between 2013 and 2042.
The 2012A Bonds are secured by the Obligated Group’s Deeds of Trust on real property and
fixtures under the Master Trust Indenture.

Regarding the Series 2012A Bonds. Trinity Oaks was not allocated any of the principal, as such, Trinity Oaks is
not forecasted to have any principal and interest payments on the Series 2012A Bonds.

The deferred loan costs for the Series 2017 Bonds are carried on the financial records of LSA Management, Inc.
and all related amortization expense associated with the amortization of the deferred loan costs are allocated through
intercompany accounts. Trinity Oaks presents amortization of deferred financing costs as a component of interest
expense on the forecasted statements of operations and changes in net assets. As a result, included in interest
expense during each year presented in the Forecast Period is approximately $1,700 of amortization expense

annually.
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Summary of Significant Forecast Assumptions and Accounting Policies
Management’s Basis for Forecast of Other Items (continued)

Regarding the Series 2017 Bonds, Management has allocated the principal and interest for Series 2017
Bonds during the Forecast Period as follows:

Series 2017 Bonds Allocation:

Lutheran Home Forsyth County Property, Inc. 31.4%
Lutheran Home Hickory West Property, Inc. 12.0%
Lutheran Home Albemarle Property, Inc. 1.0%
Trinity Village 0.7%
LSA Management, Inc. 0.7%
Trinity Oaks 24.5%
Trinity View 10.7%
Trinity Place 0.5%
Lutheran Home Hickory Property, Inc. 17.0%
Trinity Oaks Health and Rehab 0.4%
LSA Elns Property, Inc. 0.3%
Trinity Grove 0.1%
Lutheran Home at Trinity Oaks Property, Inc. 0.1%
Trinity Elms 0.1%
Trinity Landing 0.3%

100.0%
== =}

Fair Value of Interest Rate Swap Agreement

LSA has an interest rate swap (with a total notional amount of $9,390,000 at September 30, 2018). Under the terms
of the swap (which expires in March 2028), L.SA pays monthly a fixed interest rate of 4.088%. LSA receives a
floating rate on the interest rate swap based on the SIFMA Municipal Swap Index. The estimated fair value of this
agreement at September 30, 2018 was a liability of $892,473. This amount is subsequently reclassified into interest
expense as a yield adjustment in the same period in which the related interest on the floating-rate debt obligation
affects earnings. As there are no differences between the critical terms of the interest rate swap and the hedged debt
obligation, LSA assumes no ineffectiveness in the hedging relationship. Management has not forecasted any change
in the underlying interest rate swap valuation during the Forecast Period.
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Summary of Significant Forecast Assumptions and Accounting Policies

Management’s Basis for Forecast of Other Items (continued)

The following table summarizes the existing debt obligations:

Table 14
Forecasted Principal Payments
(In Thousands of Dollars)
Obligated Group Trinity Oaks
Total Management Total Remaiming
Series Allocated Obligated Group
2017 Payment Series 2017 Bonds
Bonds Series 2017 Bonds Payments
2019 $ 1573 $ 39 § 1,183
2020 1,648 414 1,234
2021 1,725 439 1,286
2022 1,775 465 1310
2023 1,857 492 1,365
2024 1,973 522 1451
Thereafter 21,014 2428 18,586
Total $ 31,565 $ 5150 § 26415

Source: Management and the Underwriter
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Summary of Significant Forecast Assumptions and Accounting Policies
Management’s Basis for Forecast of Other Items (continued)

Obligated Group — Security on Long-Term Debt

Upon the issuance of the Series 2017 Bonds and the refunding of the 2012B Bonds, the Series 1998 Bonds, the
Series 2009 Bonds and Series 2010 Bonds, the Series 2012A Bonds, and the Series 2017 Bonds and the swap
agreement (collectively, the “Initial Obligations™) were evidenced by parity obligations issued by the Obligated
Group under the Master Trust Indenture. As security for repayment of all obligations issued under the Master Trust
Indenture, including the Initial Obligations, certain members of the Obligated Group executed and delivered nine
deeds of trust, pursuant to which such members of the Obligated Group granted a first lien on the mortgaged
property described therein.

Obligated Group Facilities to be Pledged as Mortgaged Property

Member of Obligated Group Name of Facility
Lutheran Home Hickory Property, Inc. and Trinity Village
Lutheran Home-Hickory, Inc.

Lutheran Home Hickory West Property, Inc. and Trinity Ridge
Lutheran Home-Hickory West, Inc.

Lutheran Home at Trinity Oaks Property, Inc. Trinity Oaks Health and Rehab @
Lutheran Home at Trinity Oaks, Inc.

Lutheran Retirement Center - Salisbury. Inc. Trinity Oaks m

Lutheran Home Winston-Salem Property. Inc. and Trinity Glen
Lutheran Home Winston-Salem, Inc.

Lutheran Home Wilmington Property, Inc. and Trinity Grove
Lutheran Home Wilmington, Inc.

Lutheran Services for the Aging, Inc. 12 acres adjacent to Trinity Grove

Lutheran Home Forsyth County Property, Inc. and Trinity Flms Health and Rehab
Lutheran Home-Forsyth County, Inc.

LSA Elms Property, Inc. and Trinity Elms
LSA Elms at Tanglewood, Inc.

O Tutheran Home at Trinity Oaks and Trinity Oaks operate together as a North Carolina licensed continuing care retirement community.
Other Items

Payable to Related Parties

The payable to related parties includes the balance of previous cash transfers that were funded by other members
of the Obligated Group. Management has forecasted that the payable to related party amounts will be repaid during

the Forecast period; however, there is no set repayment terms associated with the due to related party payable and
as such, repayment amounts could materially change and are at the discretion of Management.
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Attachment 4

Interim Financials
(January 31, 2019)






Lutheran Services Carolinas
Balance Sheet
Trinity Oaks

For the Four Months Ending January
Assets
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalenis
Receivables - Net of allowance
Inventories
Other

Total current assets
Investments
Assets limited as o use - operating reserve

Net Property and equipment

Total Assets

Liabilities

Current Liabilities

Accounts payable - trade

Accrued salaries and payroll
Accrued employee benefits
Refundable Fees - Current Portion
Due to related party

Total current liabilities

Other liabilities and credits

Long-term debt

Refundable fees

Deferred revenue from advance fees
Total other liabilities and credits
Total liabilities

Net Assets

Unresftricted

Temporarily restricted

Total net assets

Total liabilities and net assets

31, 2019

$ 1,191,995
81,868
38,282

203,749

7,988
1,705,032

22,836,762

119,533
264,521
21,277
786,897
5,137,270

5,044,978
7,978,146
7,024,368

20,047,492

14,977




Lutheran Services Carolinas
Trinity Oaks
Consolidating Statement of Operations
For the Four Months Ending January 31, 2019

Revenue and other Support

Net resident service revenue $ 2,747,273
Amgortization of deferred entrance fees 370,317
Other revenue 12,501
Total revenue and other support 3,130,080
Expenses
Salaries and Wages 927,271
Employee benefits 156,939
Supplies and other 949,595
Marketing 52,992
Depreciation 733,333
Interest expense 104,007
Total expenses 2,924,138
Operating income (loss) 205,952
Unrestricted investment income 14,778
Unrealized gains/(losses) on investments (62,764 )
Unrestricted contributions and bequest 145,327
Total Non-Operating Gains (Losses) 97,341
Excess revenues over expenses 303,294

Other changes in net assets

Temporary restricted confributions 3,215
Release of Restricted Funds {2,809)
Total other changes in net assets 406

Increase (dec) net assets $ 303,700




Lutheran Services Carolinas
Trinity Oaks
Cash Flow Statement

For the Four Months Ending January 31, 2019

Change in net assets

Cash flows from operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization
Amortization of deferred entrance fees
(Increase) decrease in assets
Increase (decrease) in liabiiities

Net.adjustments
Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash flows from purchase of property and equipment

Cash flows from financing activities:
Change in refundable deferred fees
Change in deferred revenue
Change in debt

Net cash used by financing activities
Net increase {decrease) in cash

Cash at the beginning of the year

Cash at the end of the period

$

303,700

733,333
(370,317 )
( 165,068 )

(3,249)

194,700

498,400

(440,692)

61,396
(105,758

)
(105,379 )
( 149,740 )

(92,033)

1,284,028

1,191,995







Attachment 5

Assisted Living
Enhanced Care Program






LEVEL OF CARE DETERMINATION

Our philosophy of providing assisted living services in a Level of Care Format allows us the
opportunity to provide residents with certain services as needs arise.

Assessment Date

Resident Name Apt. #
Responsible Party Phone
Attending Physician Phone

Levels of Care are defined as follows:

Independent
This service level provides accommodation, meals, minimal help with ADLs and residents that self
administer medication or minimal help with medication administration, selected additional services such
as special dietary planning. Residents in this level are typically independent.

Enhanced Care services
This level of care provides moderate levels of help with ADLs to residents that can perform part of the
activity for him/herself, and several additional services including but not limited to, assistance with
medications, ambulation, bathing, dressing, grooming, eating, hygiene and toileting. These residents
may require some assistance from Licensed Health Professional Support as well as confusion
management and/or management of diabetes, skin integrity, and/or fall risk intervention.

Enhanced Care Plus services
This level of care provides a significant degree of help with ADLs and is geared towards residents who
can perform part of the activity and are very frail/impaired or will require several services on a regular
basis. These residents may require some assistance from Licensed Health Professional Support as well
as confusion management and/or management of diabetes, skin integrity, and/or fall risk interventions.

Maximum Care
This level of care provides assistance to residents that need someone else to complete the task for the
resident most of the time. These residents may require extensive assistance with confusion
management and/or management of diabetes, skin integrity, and /or fall risk interventions.
DETERMINATION OF LEVEL OF CARE AND RELATED EXPENSES
PERFORMANCE CODE TOTAL from ADL and BEHAVIORAL Assessment Tool

Independent Enhanced Enhanced Plus Maximum

(0-8) (9-15) (16-22) (23+)



RESIDENT ASSESSMENT FORM
Level of Care before Assessment
Level of Care after Assessment

RESIDENT
ADL NEEDS CHECKLIST
ADL
BATHING 0 1 2 3 4
DRESSING 0 1 2 3 4
HYGIENE 0 1 2 3 4
TOILETING 0 1 2 3 4
TANSFERRING 0 1 2 3 4
EATING 0 1 2 3 4
Mobility/Ambulation 0 1 2 3 4
(may include assistive devices, fall risk)
Medication Administration 1 2 3 4
(1-4 meds) (5-10 meds) (11-15 meds) (16+ meds)
Or self adm.
LPHS tasks 0 1 2 3 4
(except meds by injection, ambulation with assistive devices or transferring)
Other ADL: 0 1 2 3 4
le: skin care
BEHAVIORAL
0 Generally oriented to time and place
1 Oriented but occasionally forgetful. Some confusion — may need prompting and orienting
2 Shows feelings of hopelessness, depression, nervousness or restlessness requiring intervention
3 Obvious impairment of memory. Some disorientation and may display anxiety or irritability with

memory difficulties. Verbally and/or physically abusive to others
4 Sever impairment most of the time. Demonstrates poor judgement — requires behavior

management

TOTAL SCORE




DEFINITION OF PERFORMANCE CODES

0. INDEPENDENT
The resident performs the activity without help, or may require minimal supervision of
assistance only once or twice a week. For example, a resident who usually transfers on and off
the toilet unassisted may need someone to stand by the toilet room door after an especially
tiring day away from the home.

1. SUPERVISION
The resident can perform the activity when another person provides oversight, encouragement
and prompting, or with supervision plus some physical assistance only once or twice a week.
For example, an incontinent resident may be able to use the toilet room unassisted if regularly
reminded to do so.

2. LIMITED ASSISTANCE
The resident is highly involved in performing the activity for him/herself. The resident also
requires help from another person in guided maneuvering of limbs or other non-weight bearing
assistance only once or twice during a week. For example, a resident may need another person
to hold up his/her shirt and physically guide his/her hand to the sleeve opening, but the
resident can push his/her arm through the sleeve.

3. EXTENSIVE ASSISTANCE
The resident can perform part of the activity for him/herself. The resident also requires other
weight bearing support from another person three or more times a week, or someone else to
perform the task for him/her (three or more times) during part, but not all, of the week). For
example, on three occasions the resident needed another person to lean against and steady
him/her while transferring from standing with a walker into a bed or chair.

4. TOTALLY DEPENDENT
Someone else must complete the task for the resident at all times. For example, a resident who
cannot do any part of dressing for him/herself, and requires total assistance with dressing from
other people.

Staff completing assessment Date







Attachment 6

Cottage Unbundling of
Services Program






Trinity Oaks Retirement Community
Cottage Unbundling of Services Program

January 1 thru December 31, 2019

1st Occupant | 2nd Occupant | Total Mthly Rate
Unbundled Base Rate $2,596.00 | $773.00 | $3,369.00
A la carte options
Dining Services (All meals are charged to your monthly statement)
Breakfast $3.90 per meal
Lunch/Dinner $10.00 per meal
Housekeeping (Choose One)
O Weekly $83 per visit/ $360 per month
O Bi-weekly $107 per visit/ $232 per month

O None

Transportation - All inclusive (activity outings, shopping trips, doctor visits)
O 1 person $70.00 per month per person
0 2 persons
O None

Fee for Service Transportation

Rowan County $5.00 per trip per person
Outside Rowan County $10.00 per trip per person

Wellness Program (Access to exercise programs and swimming pool)

O 1 person $35.00
O 2 persons $65.00
0 None
Healthcare days: 10% discount at T.O. Health & Rehab

| agree with the unbundling program fee structure and the additional a la carte pricing as listed for
January 1 thru December 31, 2019.

Base $2,596.00
Hskp
Signature Date Trans
Wellness
Mthly rate S
Signature Date 2nd person

Total mthly rate S



